SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
300 Lakeside Drive, P. O. Box 12688, Oakland, CA 94604-2688

*»E*REVISED #*+
BOARD MEETING AGENDA
June 14, 2018
9:00 a.m.

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors will be held at 9:00 a.m. on Thursday, June 14, 2018, in
the BART Board Room, 2040 Webster Street, Oakland, California.

Members of the public may address the Board of Directors regarding any matter on this agenda.
Please complete a “Request to Address the Board™ form (available at the entrance to the Board Room)
and hand it to the Secretary before the item is considered by the Board. If you wish to discuss a matter
that is not on the agenda during a regular meeting, you may do so under Public Comment.

Any action requiring more than a majority vote for passage will be so noted.

Items placed under “consent calendar” are considered routine and will be received, enacted, approved,
or adopted by one motion unless a request for removal for discussion or explanation is received from a
Director or from a member of the audience.

Please refrain from wearing scented products (perfume, cologne, after-shave, etc.) to these meetings, as
there may be people in attendance susceptible to environmental illnesses.

BART provides service/accommodations upon request to persons with disabilities and individuals who
are limited English proficient who wish to address BART Board matters. A request must be made
within one and five days in advance of Board meetings, depending on the service requested. Please
contact the Office of the District Secretary at 510-464-6083 for information.

Rules governing the participation of the public at meetings of the Board of Directors and Standing
Committees are available for review on the District's website (http://www.bart.gov/about/bod), in the
BART Board Room, and upon request, in person or via mail.

Meeting notices and agendas are available for review on the District's website
(http://www.bart.gov/about/bod/meetings.aspx); at bart.legistar.com; and via email
(https://public.govdelivery.com/accounts/CATRANBART/subscriber/new?topic_id=CATRANBART _
1904) or via regular mail upon request submitted to the District Secretary. Complete agenda packets
(in PDF format) are available for review on the District's website and bart.legistar.com no later than 48
hours in advance of the meeting.

Please submit your requests to the District Secretary via email to BoardofDirectors(@bart.gov; in
person or U.S. mail at 300 Lakeside Drive, 23" Floor, Oakland, CA 94612; fax 510-464-6011; or
telephone 510-464-6083.

Patricia K. Williams
Interim District Secretary



Regular Meeting of the
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The purpose of the Board Meeting is to consider and take such action as the Board may desire
in connection with:

1. CALL TO ORDER

A. Roll Call.
B. Pledge of Allegiance.
a Introduction of Special Guests.

2. CONSENT CALENDAR

A. Approval of Minutes of the Meeting of May 24, 2018.* Board requested
to authorize.

B. Title VI Fare Equity Analysis for Discontinuing the BART Discounted
Orange Ticket Program for Students at Participating Middle and High
Schools.* Board requested to authorize.

C. Agreements with the California Department of Transportation (Caltrans)
for the Sustainable Access Strategy for BART’s Transit-Oriented
Development Program.* Board requested to authorize.

D. 2018 Organization of Committees and Special Appointments Revision.*
Board requested to authorize.

3. PUBLIC COMMENT — 15 Minutes
(An opportunity for members of the public to address the Board of Directors on
matters under their jurisdiction and not on the agenda. An additional period for
Public Comment is provided at the end of the Meeting.)

4. ADMINISTRATION ITEMS
Director Allen, Chairperson

A. Update on Proof of Payment. For information.

B. Resolution Approving the Fiscal Year 2019 Annual Budget.*
Board requested to adopt.

L (CONTINUED from May 10, 2018 Board Meeting)
Pension Funding Strategies Update.* For information.

5.  ENGINEERING AND OPERATIONS ITEMS
Director Simon, Chairperson

A. Award of Contract No. 09AF-111A, TBT Cross Passage Doors
Replacement.* Board requested to authorize.

* Attachment available 20f5



8.

B. Award of Professional Services Agreements to Provide Construction
Management Services for BART Projects.*

a.

S o aoe o

Agreement No. 6M8132, with AECOM Technical Services, Inc./Cooper
Pegueda Management, Inc., a Joint Venture

Agreement No. 6M8133, with Ghirardelli Associates, Inc.

Agreement No. 6M8134, with HDR Construction Control Corporation
Agreement No. 6M8135, with Jacobs Project Management Company
Agreement No. 6M8136, with Parsons Transportation Group, Inc.
Agreement No. 6M8137, with PGH Wong Engineering, Inc.

Agreement No. 6M8150, with PreScience Corporation

Agreement No. 6M8151, with Allen Group, LLC/Vali Cooper

& Associates, Inc., a Joint Venture

Board requested to authorize.

C.  Agreements for Temporary Bus Bridge Services.*
Board requested to authorize.

D.  Change Order to Contract No. 79HM-120, SFTS MB, with Manson
Construction Company, Inc., for Extension of Time for Revised
Cathodic Protection (C.O. No. 104).* Board requested to authorize.

PLANNING, PUBLIC AFFAIRS, ACCESS, AND LEGISLATION ITEMS

Director Blalock, Chairperson

A. Scoop Carpool Matching Service Contract Amendment.*
Board requested to authorize.

B. Resolution in Support of Advocating for BART’s Transit-Oriented
Development and Station Access Policies at Santa Clara
County BART Stations.* Board requested to adopt.

C. North Concord Transit-Oriented Development Update.* For information.

D.  Art Master Plan Update.* For information.

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT

A. Review of the Draft Agenda for the Capitol Corridor Joint Powers Board
Meeting of June 20, 2018.* For information.

B.  Report of Activities, including Updates of Operational, Administrative,
and Roll Call for Introductions Items.

CONTROLLER/TREASURER’S REPORT

A.  Quarterly Report of the Controller/Treasurer for the Period Ending
March 31, 2018.* For information.

* Attachment available 30of5



9. BOARD MATTERS

A.  (CONTINUED from May 10, 2018 Board Meeting)
Resolution to Direct Profits Derived from Paid Advertising by
Progressives for Immigration Reform to BART’s Office of Civil Rights.*
Board requested to adopt. (Director Dufty’s request.)

B.  Board Member Reports.
(Board member reports as required by Government Code Section
53232.3(d) are available through the Office of the District Secretary. An
opportunity for Board members to report on their District activities and
observations since last Board Meeting.)

C.  Roll Call for Introductions.
(An opportunity for Board members to introduce a matter for
consideration at a future Committee or Board Meeting or to request
District staff to prepare items or reports.)

D. In Memoriam.
(An opportunity for Board members to introduce individuals to be
commemorated.)

10. PUBLIC COMMENT
(An opportunity for members of the public to address the Board of Directors on
matters under their jurisdiction and not on the agenda.)

11. CLOSED SESSION (Room 303, Board Conference Room)

A. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS:
Designated representatives: Grace Crunican, General Manager;
Michael Jones, Assistant General Manager,
Administration; and Martin Gran, Chief
Employee Relations Officer
Employee Organizations: (1) Amalgamated Transit Union, Local 1555;
(2) American Federation of State, County and Municipal
Employees, Local 3993;
(3) BART Police Officers Association;
(4) BART Police Managers Association;
(5) Service Employees International Union, Local 1021; and
(6) Service Employees International Union, Local 1021,
BART Professional Chapter
(7) Unrepresented employees (Positions: all)
Government Code Section: ~ 54957.6

B. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE EMPLOYMENT

Tifle: District Secretary
Government Code Section:  54957(b)(1)

* Attachment available 4 of 5



C. CONFERENCE WITH NEGOTIATORS
Designated Representatives: Directors Keller, Raburn, and Simon
Title: District Secretary
Government Code Section: 54957.6

D. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL — EXISTING LITIGATION
Name of Case: McClure v. BART and the City and County of San Francisco
Case No.: CGC-16-556766, San Francisco Superior Court
Government Code Section:  54956.9(a)

12. OPEN SESSION

* Attachment available 50of5



DRAFT

SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
300 Lakeside Drive, P.O. Box 12688, Oakland, CA 94604-2688

Board of Directors
Minutes of the 1,814th Meeting
May 24, 2018

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors was held May 24, 2018, convening at 5:00 p.m. in
the Board Room, 2040 Webster Street, Oakland, California. President Raburn presided; Patricia
K. Williams, Interim District Secretary.

Directors present: Directors Allen, Dufty, Josefowitz, Keller, McPartland, Saltzman, Simon,
and Raburn.

Absent:  None. Director Blalock entered the Meeting later.

President Raburn announced that agenda Item 2, Closed Session, would be continued to a future
meeting.

President Raburn called for Introduction of Special Guests. Director Dufty welcomed Lt.
Colonels Cindy and Tim Foley of the San Francisco Salvation Army.

Lt. Col. Cindy Foley addressed the Board.

President Raburn announced that under the provisions of the Rules of the Board of Directors of
the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District, this was the time set to hold a public hearing
on the Fiscal Year 2019 Budget, that staff would give a brief presentation on the 1tem and that

the meeting would then be opened for comments from the public.

Ms. Pamela Herhold; Acting Assistant General Manager, Performance and Budgets and Mr.
Dennis Markham, Department Manager, Operating Budgets, presented the item.

Clarence Fischer addressed the Board
There being no further public comment, the Public Hearing was closed.
Consent Calendar items brought before the Board were:
1. Approval of Minutes of the Meeting of May 10, 2018.
2. Fiscal Year 2019 Proposition 4 Appropriations Limit.
3. Change Order to Agreement No. 6M4474 with Occupational Health
Centers of California for Pre-Employment Medical, Drug & Alcohol

Screening.

4, Award of Contract No. 09DJ-150A, TBT Cathodic Protection Reference
Cell Replacement

-1-



7.

DRAFT

Award of Contract No. 15NP-110, Elevator Lobby LED Lighting
Improvements.

Award of Contract No. 15TH-120A, Reroofing and Water Intrusion
Repairs at Train Control Rooms.

Award of Invitation for Bid No. 9049, Fuse, Collector Shoe.

Consent Calendar report brought before the Board was:

1.

Fiscal Year 2018 Third Quarter Financial Report.

Director Saltzman made the following motions as a unit. Director Simon seconded the motions,
which carried by unanimous electronic vote. Ayes — 8: Directors Allen, Dufty, Josefowitz,
Keller, McPartland, Saltzman, Simon and Raburn. Noes — 0. Absent — 1: Director Blalock.

1.

2.

That the Minutes of the Meeting of May 10, 2018, be approved.

Adoption of Resolution No. 5371, In the Matter of Establishment of the
Fiscal Year 2019 Appropriations Limit.

That the General Manager be authorized to execute a change order to
Agreement No. 6M4474, Pre-Employment Medical, Drug & Alcohol
Screening and Hepatitis B Screening, with Occupational Health Centers of
California, by $75,000.00 and extend time frame to December 31, 2018.

That the General Manager be authorized to award Contract No. 09DJ-
150A, TBT Cathodic Protection Reference Cell Replacement, to DMZ
Builders, for the total bid price of $949,850.00, pursuant to notification to
be issued by the General Manager and subject to compliance with the
District’s protest procedures and Federal Transportation Administration’s
requirements related to protest procedures.

That the General Manager be authorized to award Contract No. 15NP-110,
Elevator Lobby LED Lighting Improvements, to Sustainable Group, Inc.,
for the bid price of $445,285.00, pursuant to notification to be issued by
the General Manager and subject to the District’s protest procedures and
FTA’s requirements related to protests.

That the General Manager be authorized to award Contract No. 15TH-
120A, Reroofing and Water Intrusion Repairs at Train Control Rooms, to
Pioneer Contractors, Inc., for the bid price of $1,280,400.00, pursuant to
notification to be issued by the General Manager, and subject to the
District’s protest procedures.

That the General Manager be authorized to award Invitation for Bid No.
9049, for Fuse, Collector Shoe, to Alameda Electric Distributors for an

-



DRAFT

amount of $655,339.20 including tax, pursuant to notification to be issued
by the General Manager.

(The foregoing motion was made on the basis of analysis by the staff and
certification by the Controller/Treasurer that funds are available for this purpose.)

President Raburn called for Public Comment.
The following individuals addressed the Board.

Herb Hastings
Andrea Rogers
Charlotta Wallace
Kevin Burke

Bob Feinbaum

Director Blalock entered the meeting.
President Raburn announced that the order of agenda items would be changed.

Director Blalock, Chairperson of the Planning, Public Affairs, Access, and Legislation
Committee, brought the matter of Certify the BART to Livermore Extension Project Final
Environmental Impact Report (FEIR) and Potential Next Steps before the Board. Mr. Carl
Holmes, Assistant General Manager of Planning, Development and Construction; Mr. Val
Menotti, Chief Planning and Development Officer; and Mr. Andrew Tang, Principal Planner,
presented the item. The item was discussed. ‘

The following individuals addressed the Board:

Alameda County Supervisor Scott Hagerty
Herb Hastings
Augie Beltran
Nancy Bankhead
John Collins

Ed DelBeccaro
Sal Parisi

Buck Koonce
Patricia Muro
Veronica Vargas
Susana Chau
Sally Marone
Gerald Cauther
Sherri Souza
Matthew Wardlaw
John Marchand
Bob Vinn

Lisa Tarnontch
Amir Law



DRAFT

Scott Miller

Arne Olsen
Robert S. Allen
Bob Allen

Dale Kase

Jeanie Haigh
Evan Branning
Dawn Argula
Cindy Chin
Vamsee Lakamsani
Sbend Sbelndorio
Kristine Kansa
Don Cose
Edward Alvarez
Dino Magaros
Joel Ramos

Zach Deutsch-Gross
Matt Chiado
Mike Godfrey
Patrisha Piras
Jonathan Bair

Cat Carter

Echa Schneider
Joshua Davis

Bob Feinbaum
David Stark

Jerry Grace

Chris Kinther
David Ying
Carlos Castellanos
Ian Monroe

Alex Merritt
David Schonbrum
David Best

The item was discussed.
Director Keller made the following motions as a unit.

1. That the Board certifies the BART to Livermore Extension Project FEIR has been
completed in compliance with California Environmental Quality Act;

2. That the Board certifies the BART to Livermore Extension Project FEIR was
presented to the BART Board and the BART Board has reviewed and considered
the information contained in the BART to Livermore Extension Project FEIR; and

3. That the Board certifies the BART to Livermore Extension Project FEIR reflects
BART’s independent judgment and analysis.

-



DRAFT

Director Simon seconded the motion. Directors Keller and Simon rescinded their motions.

Director McPartland made the following motions as a unit, that the Board of Directors certify the
BART to Livermore Extension Project Final Environmental Impact Report (FEIR):

1. That the Board certifies the BART to Livermore Extension Project FEIR has been
completed in compliance with California Environmental Quality Act;

2. That the Board certifies the BART to Livermore Extension Project FEIR was
presented to the BART Board and the BART Board has reviewed and considered the
information contained in the BART to Livermore Extension Project FEIR; and

3. That the Board certifies the BART to Livermore Extension Project FEIR reflects
BART’s independent judgment and analysis.

Director Keller seconded the motion, which carried by unanimous electronic vote. Ayes —9:
Directors Allen, Blalock, Dufty, Josefowitz, Keller, McPartland, Saltzman, Simon and Raburn.
Noes - 0.

Director McPartland moved that the General Manager be directed to bring conventional BART
alternative to Livermore to the Board for future consideration. Director Allen seconded the
motion, which failed by electronic vote. Ayes —4: Directors Allen, Blalock, Keller, and
~McPartland. Noes —5: Directors Dufty, Josefowitz, Saltzman, Simon and Raburn.

Discussion continued.

Director Saltzman moved that the General Manager be directed to bring a Bus Rapid Transit to
Livermore alternative to the Board for future consideration. Director Raburn seconded the
motion, which failed by electronic vote. Ayes —3: Directors Josefowitz, Saltzman and Raburn.
Noes — 5: Directors Allen, Blalock, Dufty, Keller and McPartland. Abstain — 1: Director Simon.

Discussion continued.

Director Dufty exited the meeting.

Director Josefowitz moved that the General Manager not be directed to bring any alternatives to
the Board and to continue to collaborate with the District’s regional partners. Director
McPartland seconded the motion, which carried by electronic vote. Ayes -5: Directors Allen,
Josefowitz, Keller, McPartland and Simon. Noes — 2: Directors Saltzman and Raburn.

Abstain —1 Director Blalock. Absent — 1: Director Dufty.

The Board meeting recessed at 8:45 p.m.

The Board meeting reconvened at 9:02 p.m.



DRAFT

Directors present: - Directors Allen, Blalock, Josefowitz, Keller, McPartland, Saltzman,
Simon and Raburn.

Absent:  Director Dufty.

Director Allen, Chairperson of the Administration Committee, brought the matter of Award of
Digital Railway Exclusive Negotiating Agreement, with Mobilitie Management, LLC., before
the Board. Director Saltzman moved that the General Manager be authorized to execute an
Exclusive Negotiating Agreement to negotiate exclusively for a six month period, with a staff
option to extend for an additional six months, with Mobilitie Management, LLC, for
development of the BART Digital Railway, and the San Francisco Municipal Transportation
Agency (SFMTA) project including negotiations regarding designs, construction plans, and
development of license agreements for 1) Underground Cellular Services for SFMTA, 2)
Wayside and Fleet of the Future Wireless Services, 3) In-Station Wireless Services, and 4) Fiber
Optic Telecommunication Services. Director Allen seconded the motion. The motion carried by
unanimous electronic vote. Ayes —8: Directors Allen, Blalock, Josefowitz, Keller, McPartland,
Saltzman, Simon, and Raburn. Noes —0 Absent — 1: Director Dufty.

Director Allen brought the matter of Fiscal Year 2019 Annual Budget before the Board. General
Manager Grace Crunican, Ms. Pamela Herhold; and Mr. Dennis Markham presented the item.
The item was discussed.

Jerry Grace addressed the Board.

Director Simon, Chairperson of the Engineering and Operations Committee, brought the
following items before the Board.

1. Change Order to Contract No. 09AU-120, TBT Internal Retrofit,
with Shimmick and CEC, a Joint Venture, for Additional Restraint
at Tube Joints (C.O. No. 7.1, Part 1).

2. Change Order to Contract No. 09AU-120, TBT Internal Retrofit,
with Shimmick and CEC, a Joint Venture, for Impacts from Rule
Changes (C.O. No. 30.2, Part 1).

3. Award of Invitation for Bid No. 9048, Stainless Steel Capped Contact Rail.

4. Agreement with the San Francisco Department of Homelessness and
Supportive Housing (HSH) for Homeless Outreach Teams (HOT).

Tim Chan, Manager of Planning presented the San Francisco Homeless Outreach Team
Agreement. The item was discussed.

President Saltzman made the following motions as a unit. Director Raburn seconded the
motions, which carried by unanimous electronic vote. Ayes— 8: Directors Allen, Blalock,
Josefowitz, Keller, McPartland, Saltzman, Simon, and Raburn. Noes - 0. Absent — 1: Director
Dufty.



DRAFT

1. That the General Manager be authorized to execute Change Order No. 7.1 Part 1,
Additional Restraint at Tube Joints, to Contract No. 09AU-120, BART Earthquake
Safety Program TBT Internal Retrofit, with Shimmick/CEC Joint Venture, in an
amount not to exceed $2,000,000.00.

2. That the General Manager be authorized to execute Change Order No. 30.2 Part 1,
Impacts from Rule Changes, in an amount not to exceed $7,500,000.00, and extend
the Contract completion date by 99 days, for Contact No. 09AU-120, BART
Earthquake Safety Program TBT Internal Retrofit, with Shimmick/CEC Joint
Venture.

N

3. That the General Manager be authorized to award Invitation For Bid No. 9048, for
Stainless Steel Capped Contact Rail, to Conductix, Inc., for an amount of
$2,676,923.40, pursuant to notification to be issued by the General Manager, subject
to compliance with the District’s protest procedures.

4. That the Board approve the first Agreement with the San Francisco Department of
Homelessness and Supportive Housing (HSH) in the amount of $125,00.00 for one
homeless outreach team (HOT), and that the General Manager be authorized to enter
into direct negotiations with HSH to execute annual agreements upon budget
adoption by the Board that includes the HOTs. The total for the five-year program
shall not exceed $1,062,500.00

President Raburn called for the General Manager’s Report.

Ms. Crunican reported on steps she had taken and activities and meetings she had participated in,
ridership, upcoming events, and outstanding Roll Call for Introductions items.

President Raburn noted that the matter of Resolution to Direct Profits Derived from Paid
Aduvertising by Progressives for Immigration Reform to BART’s Office of Civil Rights would be
continued to a future Board meeting.

President Raburn called for Board Member Reports, Roll Call for Introductions, and In
Memoriam.

Director Simon acknowledged Directors Dufty, Saltzman, and Allen and General Manager
Crunican’s presentation and support at Equality California and BART’s commitment to
diversity.

Director Blalock reported he had attended the California Transportation Foundation award
ceremony where BART received the Project of the Year award for it’s Warm Springs BART
Station.

Director Simon exited the meeting.

Director Josefowitz requested staff to bring back a resolution for the adoption of the
Metropolitan Transportation Commissions Regional Means Based Fare for adoption.

-7-



DRAFT

Director Allen echoed the sentiments of Director Simon.

Director Raburn reported he had attended the Pittsburg Center Station ribbon cutting and the
Sacramento California Spring Legislative Conference.

President Raburn called for Public Comment. No comments were received.
The Meeting was adjourned at 9:19 p.m. in honor of Julius Turman.

Patricia K. Williams
Interim District Secretary



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL: GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:

. g Jue Zei g
W

DATE: 6/5/2018 BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No

Originator/Prepared by: Jennella er'/er C u/nsel Controller/Treasurer| District Secretary BARC
Sambour-Wallace .

" N 1\ Ho>
Dept: Office of Civil Rights

(z
S-gnature/Date%j /\Ab’w © %/5//5/ [ ]MM ] [ ] UU\‘?]

Title VI Fare Equity Analysis for Discontinuing the BART Discounted Orange
Ticket Program for Students at Participating Middle and High Schools

PURPOSE:

To request the Board to approve the “Title VI Fare Equity Analysis for Discontinuing the
BART Discounted Orange Ticket Program for Students at Participating Middle and High
Schools.”

DISCUSSION:

To ensure compliance with federal and state civil rights regulations, BART performs an
analysis of any fare change, in this case discontinuing the discounted Orange ticket, to
determine if the change has a disparate impact on minority riders or a disproportionate
burden on low-income riders.

The Orange ticket is sold to students at participating middle and high schools at a 50%
discount; students pay $16 and receive a ticket valued at $32. The Orange Ticket Program
was implemented in the late 1990s to provide students a discount on school-related trips
taken on Monday through Friday only. Currently, 147 schools participate in the program.

Analysis Results

The Federal Transit Administration (FTA) requires a transit agency to use ridership survey
data when evaluating whether a fare change has adverse effects on low-income and minority
populations. Staff circulated a survey between February 20, 2018 through April 6, 2018 for
parents of students that use the Orange ticket. The survey was offered in English, Spanish,
and Chinese. Additional language support services were offered in Korean, Tagalog, and



Title VI Fare Equity Analysis for Discontinuing the BART Discounted Orange Ticket Program for Students at Participating
Middle and High Schools ‘

Vietnamese and all surveys were completed online.

Fifty-nine parents of students who use the Orange ticket responded to the survey. The table
below shows the demographic results from this survey compared to BART’s overall
ridership (data from the 2016 Customer Satisfaction Survey). This analysis finds that the
discontinuance of the Orange ticket could disproportionately impact minority and low-
income riders, as Orange ticket users are disproportionately more minority and low-income
compared to BART’s overall ridership, exceeding BART’s Disparate
Impact/Disproportionate Burden Policy threshold of 10%.

Minority | Non- Total | Sample| Low | Non- Total | Sample
Minority Size | Income | Low Size
Income
All Riders | 63.3% | 36.7% | 100.0% | 5211 | 26.4% | 73.6% | 100.0% | 4,880
Orange 77.6% | 224% |100.0% | 58 38.0% | 62.0% | 100.0% 50
Ticket
Riders
Difference | 14.3% 11.6%
Sfrom All
Riders

FTA Circular 4702.1B "Title VI Requirements and Guidelines for FTA Recipients" (Circular)
requires transit providers to analyze measures to minimize or mitigate potential disparate
impacts resulting from proposed fare changes and to provide meaningful opportunity for
public comment on such measures. The report concludes that existing fare product
alternatives--the discount Youth Clipper card and Red youth magnetic stripe ticket—serve to
avoid, minimize, or mitigate any adverse effects of the Orange Ticket Program termination.

These fare products offer better or similar fares and enhanced benefits, particularly in the
case of the free-of-charge youth discount Clipper card. The table below provides a
comparison of the fare media:



Title VI Fare Equity Analysis for Discontinuing the BART Discounted Orange Ticket Program for Students at Participating

Middle and High Schools
Youth Fare Discount Surcharge Use How to Additional
Medium per Trip Limitations Obtain Benefits
Alternative
Youth 50% No None--good | At 3 Clipper | Youth
Clipper any time or | Customer Clipper card
Card day and for | Service is free of
any purpose | Centers; at charge. If
more than 20 | card lost or
locations stolen, new
through card can be
Clipper obtained and
partner transit | card balance
agencies; via | of funds
mail, e-mail, | restored.
or fax (proof | Value can be
of eligibility | loaded at any
required) BART ticket
vending
machine
using cash,
credit, or
debit card;
autoload also
available.
Youth Red 50% Yes (25 None--good | Viamail or at -
Mag-Stripe cents) any time or | BART
Ticket day and for | Customer
any purpose | Services
Center, Lake
Merritt
Station
Orange 50% Yes (25 Only for Sold only at -
Ticket cents) school- participating
related schools
purposes,
travel
Monday
through
Friday




Title VI Fare Equity Analysis for Discontinuing the BART Discounted Orange Ticket Program for Students at Participating
Middle and High Schools

Public Outreach

As part of the Title VI assessment, BART undertook public outreach to receive input on the
Orange ticket elimination from low-income, minority, and Limited English Proficient (LEP)
populations, in accordance with BART’s Public Participation Plan, completed in May 2010
and revised in July 2011, and the Circular.

The survey included a question on how elimination of the Orange ticket would impact the
respondent’s household. An analysis of the responses by protected populations shows that
46.7% of the 45 minority respondents either supported or did not comment on the
elimination of the Orange ticket, while 53.3% did not support the proposal. Of the 19 low-
income respondents, 47.4% either supported or had no comment, and 52.6% were not in
support. Not commenting on a proposal can indicate neutrality or potentially some level of
acceptance of it. Review of the comments shows that many people misunderstood how the
youth discount Clipper card actually works, including that it automatically gives a 50%
discount to youth on BART.

Members of BART’s Title VI/Environmental Justice Advisory Committee and Limited
English Proficiency Advisory Committee provided input at meetings in April and May 2018.
Members were supportive of eliminating the Orange ticket fare media and program.

Equity Finding

An equity finding is made after considering both the fare change analysis results and public
comment received. This report concludes that the termination of the Orange Ticket Program
will not result in a disparate impact or disproportionate burden on minority riders or low-
income riders, respectively, since the existing youth discount Clipper card and Red magnetic
stripe youth ticket offer better or similar fares and enhanced benefits, particularly the youth
discount Clipper card, compared to the Orange ticket.

FISCAL IMPACT:
Discontinuing the Orange Ticket Program will result in a one-time savings for the District of
up to approximately $10,000 in material and ticket stock costs.

ALTERNATIVES:
Do not approve or defer approval of the Title VI Fare Equity Analysis.

RECOMMENDATION:
Approval of the following Motion.

MOTION:
Approve the attached “Title VI Fare Equity Analysis for Discontinuing the BART



Title VI Fare Equity Analysis for Discontinuing the BART Discounted Orange Ticket Program for Students at Participating
Middle and High Schools

Discounted Orange Ticket Program for Students at Participating Middle and High Schools.”



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL: GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:

VUt 0.

DATE: 5/29/2018 BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No

Originator/Prepared by: Nikki Foletta Controller/Treasurer{ District Secretary BARC

(k0|
t%im@u [N e\

Dept: Grant Development

fond) Gt 0I5 /)3

I Status: Routed | Date Created: 5/29/2018

A

~

Authorization to Receive Caltrans Planning Grant Funds for a Sustainable Access
Strategy for Transit-Oriented Development, and Authorization to Execute a Pass-
Through Agreement with TransForm as a Grant Sub-Recipient

PURPOSE:

Authorize the BART General Manager to enter into a contract with Caltrans and a pass-
through agreement with TransForm for the Sustainable Access Strategy for BART's Transit-
Oriented Development Program under the following Grant Program: Federal Transit
Administration, Section 5304 - Sustainable Communities.

DISCUSSION:

On May 11, 2018 BART received a letter from the California Department of Transportation
(Caltrans), Division of Transportation Planning, announcing the award of the above
mentioned federal transportation planning grant for fiscal year 2018-2019. A condition of
grant acceptance is a Jocal resolution from the BART Board stating the grant project title and
the title of the person authorized to enter into a contract with Caltrans.

The Sustainable Access Strategy for BART's Transit-Oriented Development (TOD)
Program is a collaboration between BART and TransForm to implement multimodal station
access for stations identified as "Urban with Parking" in the Station Access Typology. The
grant supports BART's anticipated TOD projects at the Lake Merritt BART Station in
Oakland and the El Cerrito Plaza BART Station. The project will address TOD policy
strategies which "strive for no or limited parking replacement at 'Urban with Parking'
stations," and "encourage reverse-commute, off-peak, and non-work trips on BART and
other modes of non-auto transportation." The intent is to explore ways to viably encourage




Authorization to Receive Caltrans Planning Grant Funds for a Sustainable Access Strategy for Transit (cont.)

alternative modes of access and reduce parking while still accommodating riders' needs. The
project scope includes engaging the communities and identifying solutions to parking
overflow, station access, gentrification concerns, and sharing lessons learned with other
agencies including BART's partner cities with "Urban with Parking" stations.

BART is the grant recipient and TransForm is a grant sub-recipient. The total grant award is
$500,117. The local match is $64,795. The total project amount is $564,912.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The subject EDD would result in a total project cost of $564,912 from October 2018
through January 2021. BART would receive $500,117 in funds to be placed in a new capital
budget line item, and would expend $64,795 in BART Staff time from the existing Real
Estate and Property Development Department operating budget (1011275), estimated by
fiscal year as follows (based on proposed schedule provided to Caltrans; subject to change
across fiscal years):

Fiscal Year | Estimated | Estimated
Grant Staff
Funds Time
Expended | Match
from
Operating
Budget
FY 2018/2019 | $245,936 $31,864
FY 2019/2020 | $132,388 $17,152
FY 2020/2021 | $121,793 $15,780
TOTAL $500,117 $64,795

Funding for staff time beginning in FY19 will be included in the Department's proposed
annual operating budget, which is subject to Board approval. This action is not anticipated
to have any Fiscal Impact on unprogrammed District reserves in the current Fiscal Year.

ALTERNATIVES:



Authorization to Receive Caltrans Planning Grant Funds for a Sustainable Access Strategy for Transit (cont.)

Do not authorize the BART General Manager, or her/his designee, to enter into a contract
with Caltrans and forego the grant amount.

RECOMMENDATION:
Adoption of the following Motion.

MOTION:

BART Board approves adoption of the attached Resolution, authorizing the BART General
Managet, or her/his designee, to enter into a contract with Caltrans to receive funds for the
Sustainable Access Strategy for BART's Transit-Oriented Development Program, and
authorizing the BART General Manager, or her/his designee, to enter into a pass-through
agreement with TransForm.

i



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

In the Matter of Authorizing the General

Manager to Execute Agreements with the

California Department of Transportation for

the Sustainable Access Strategy for BART's

Transit-Oriented Development Program

Resolution No.

WHEREAS, the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District ("BART" or "District") is eligible to
receive Federal and/or State funding for certain transportation planning related activities, through the
California Department of Transportation; and

WHEREAS, a Restricted Grant Agreement is needed to be executed with the California Department of
Transportation before such funds can be claimed through the Transportation Planning Grant Program; and

WHEREAS, BART wishes to delegate authorization to execute these agreements and any amendments
or ancillary documents related thereto; and

WHEREAS, it would be in the best interests of the District for the General Manager to have standing
authorization to execute, on behalf of the District, Restricted Grant Agreements and any amendments or
ancillary documents related thereto with the California Department of Transportation.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the BART Board of Directors:

1. That the BART General Manager, or designee, is authorized to execute all Restricted Grant
Agreements and any amendments or ancillary documents related thereto with the California
Department of Transportation for the Sustainable Access Strategy for BART’s Transit-Oriented
Development Program.

2. That the BART General Manager, or designee, is authorized to enter into a pass-through
agreement with TransForm for the Sustainable Access Strategy for BART’s Transit-Oriented
Development Program.

APPROVED AND PASSED on




SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

MEMORANDUM
TO: Board of Directors DATE: June 8, 2018
FROM: Interim District Secretary
SUBJECT: 2018 Organization of Committees and Special Appointments Revision

Board Rule 3-3.2 requires the ratification by a majority vote of all members of the Board any
appointment of any Committee member by the Board President. The Rule includes a provision
that such appointments shall be submitted directly to the Board.

In accordance with Board Rule 3-3.2, President Raburn is bringing a revision to the 2018
Organization of Committees and Special Appointments before the Board of Directors for
ratification at the Regular Board Meeting on June 14, 2018. President Raburn proposes that he
assume the appointment as alternate to the South Hayward BART Station Access Authority in
place of Director Saltzman.

Should you have any questions about this change, please contact President Raburn or me at your
convenience.

%%mm

Patricia K. Williams

cc: Board Appointed Officers
Deputy General Manager
Executive Staff

MOTION:

That the Board of Directors ratifies the appointment of Dlrector Robert Raburn as alternate to the
South Hayward BART Station Access Authority.



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
ORGANIZATION OF COMMITTEES AND SPECIAL APPOINTMENTS

STANDING COMMITTEES

ADMINISTRATION**
Debora Allen, Chairperson
Bevan Dufty, Vice Chairperson
Nicholas Josefowitz

ENGINEERING AND OPERATIONS**
Lateefah Simon, Chairperson

John McPartland, Vice Chairperson

Joel Keller

PLANNING, PUBLIC AFFAIRS, ACCESS AND LEGISLATION**
Thomas M. Blalock, Chairperson

Robert Raburn, Vice Chairperson

Rebecca Saltzman

SPECIAL COMMITTEES

LABOR NEGOTIATIONS REVIEW SPECIAL COMMITTEE**
Bevan Dufty, Chair Joel Keller Rebecca Saltzman

PERSONNEL REVIEW SPECIAL COMMITTEE**
Robert Raburn, Chairperson Joel Keller, Vice Chairperson  Lateefah Simon

SANTA CLARA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY PARTNERSHIP SPECIAL COMMITTEE*#*
Thomas M. Blalock Nicholas Josefowitz Joel Keller Robert Raburn

SPECIAL APPOINTMENTS - LIAISON

CONTRA COSTA TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY ** LIAISON
Joel Keller, Primary : Debora Allen, Alternate

PARATRANSIT SERVICE REVIEW ADVISORY COMMITTEES LIAISON
Robert Raburn Lateefah Simon

SAN FRANCISCO TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY ** LIAISON
Nicholas Josefowitz, Primary Bevan Dufty, Alternate

** Brown Act Committee, subject to public meeting requirements.

Revised 6/8/2018



SAN FRANISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
ORGANIZATION OF COMMITTEES AND SPECIAL APPOINTMENTS

SPECIAL APPOINTMENTS - EXTERNAL

ALAMEDA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION *#*
Rebecca Saltzman, Primary Robert Raburn, Alternate

ALTERNATE REPRESENTATIVE TO THE AMERICAN PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION ASSOCIATION
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Rebecca Saltzman

BART AND AC TRANSIT COORDINATING COMMITTEE **

Robert Raburn (Co-Chair) Rebecca Saltzman Lateefah Simon

CAPITOL CORRIDOR JOINT POWERS BOARD***

Debora Allen, Contra Costa County Robert Raburn, Alameda County

Bevan Dufty, San Francisco County Rebecca Saltzman, Alameda County
Nicholas Josefowitz, San Francisco County John McPartland, Alternate Alameda County

Joel Keller, Contra Costa County

DIRIDON STATION AREA JOINT POLICY ADVISORY BOARD (City of San Jose)***
Thomas M. Blalock

OVERSIGHT BOARD TO SUCCESSOR AGENCY OF SAN FRANCISCO REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY ***
Bevan Dufty

PLEASANT HILL BART STATION LEASING AUTHORITY BOARD OF DIRECTORS*#%
Debora Allen Joel Keller

SOUTH HAYWARD BART STATION ACCESS AUTHORITY**
Thomas M. Blalock John McPartland Robert Raburn, Alternate

TRI-VALLEY — SAN JOAQUIN REGIONAL RAIL AUTHORITY *#*
John McPartland

WEST CONTRA COSTA TRANSPORTATION ADVISORY COMMITTEE (WCCTAC)**
Lateefah Simon, Primary Joel Keller, Alternate

-**  Brown Act Committee, subject to public meeting requirements.
**%  Brown Act Board, subject to public meeting requirements.

NOTE: BART Directors discharging liaison functions do not serve as members of either a committee of BART or the other organization, nor
as members of a joint committee. Any action on behalf of BART must be taken by the full Board.

Revised 6/8/2018



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL: 9 -J GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:
g Col8

M. e

DATE: 6/5/2018 BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No

Originator/Prepared by: Dennis Markham| General Counsel Controller/Treasurer| District Secretary BARC

U S Lee | i m

Signature/Date:

Sblos(zole

ANNUAL BUDGET RESOLUTION FOR FISCAL YEAR 2019

PURPOSE:
To authorize adoption of the Annual Budget Resolution for Fiscal Year 2019 (FY'19).

DISCUSSION:

Approval by the Board of Directors is required for the FY19 operating and capital budgets.
The total proposed FY 19 operating and capital budget is $2.28 billion (B). The FY'19
operating budget is balanced, with $922.2 million (M) in uses, and the FY19 capital budget
totals $1.35B.

The proposed FY 19 annual budget is summarized in Attachments 1, 2, 3 and Exhibit A. The
attachments summarize the budget including proposed initiatives and allocations that were
reviewed in presentations to the Board of Directors at regular meetings from March through
June. The capital budget has been updated for the finalized FY 19 budgeted positions.

- Changes from the Preliminary Budget are discussed below.

FY19 Operating Budget

The operating budget proposes FY19 expenditures of $922.2M and funds 3,385.25
positions. The FY19 operating budget includes funding for BART to Antioch, which opened
in May 2018, but does not include funding for the Silicon Valley Berryessa Extension as an
opening date has not been finalized. However, per agreement, the Santa Clara Valley
Transportation Authority (VTA) will reimburse BART for any unbudgeted expenses incurred
by BART to prepare for the opening of the extension. Despite continued challenges with
declining ridership, the FY'19 budget includes general funds for new initiatives ($4.4M
operating and $1.1M capital). These initiatives include investments to address quality of life
on BART, service reliability, fare evasion, police dispatchers, IT safety and security, and



FY19 Budget Resolution (continued)

process improvements. In addition, per Board policy established in 2013, a portion of
parking revenue funds a variety of station and access related projects, including further
efforts to improve quality of life on BART, more effective management of BART parking, art
conservation support, and other stations/access initiatives ($2.0M operating and $3.7M
capital). All initiatives for FY'19 are listed in Attachment 3.

The FY19 operating budget includes the following changes from the Preliminary Budget:

$9.0M increase to advertising revenue (one-time signing bonus)

$0.4M increase to interest income

$6.4M increase to State Transit Assistance (May 2018 Governor budget revision)
$0.3M increase to labor

$0.07M increase to non-labor

$3.6M removal of Other Post-Employment Benefits liability and offset (no bottom line
impact)

» $15.3M allocation to an operating reserve for economic uncertainty

Senate Bill 1 was passed by the California Legislature in April 2017, increasing State Transit
Assistance (STA) to $38.0M for FY19. An initiative to repeal SB1 may be put to California
voters in November 2018. Should the repeal be approved, BART stands to lose
approximately $18.8M in FY19. In preparation for this possibility, the FY19 budget
proposes to allocate the $9.0M of one-time advertising funds and the $6.4M of increased
STA revenue to an Operating Reserve for Economic Uncertainty to be used to help balance
the budget, if needed.

The other changes from the Preliminary Budget include increasing interest revenue by $0.4M
to reflect higher earnings expectations and adding $0.3M for four part-time train operators to
support the February 2019 schedule change and other miscellaneous labor budget
‘adjustments. Non-labor was increased by a net of $0.07M, reflecting costs to support State
Fire Marshal oversight and a slight increase to the AC Transit feeder payment offset by
reductions to non-labor needs as department budgets were finalized. One final change
reflects that BART has now implemented Statement No. 75 of the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB75) where the full Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB)
obligation is required to be reported on the balance sheet and the gain or loss from the
change in unfunded obligation based on actuarial valuation is now recognized on the income
statement. Contribution to the OPEB plan is now recorded as a reduction of the unfunded
obligation. As a result, the specific contribution shown previously as operating

expense ($3.6M) and the offset amount (-$3.6M) are not required to be budgeted.

FY19 Capital Budget

The capital budget proposes FY19 expenditures of $1.35B and funds 1,292.0 positions.
This $63M decrease from the Preliminary Budget is due to ongoing refinement and
sequencing of the multi-year funded capital projects. Compared to the adopted FY18 capital



FY19 Budget Resolution (continued)

budget of $998M, the FY 19 budget represents a 36% increase in capital expenditures.

The largest individual project expenditures are for railcar replacement ($545M), Transbay
Tube retrofit ($93M), downtown San Francisco escalator replacement ($35M), and the
Hayward Maintenance Complex ($35M).

The largest category of projects is System Reinvestment at $995M (74% of overall capital
budget, up from 67% in FY18), which includes mainline rail and power distribution ($305M),
station modernization and renovation ($103M), and existing train control and fare collection
($71M). System Expansion is the only project category experiencing an expenditure
decrease (a 52% reduction from FY'18 to $35M) due mostly to the near completion of the
BART to Antioch project.

In November 2016, the capital program was provided with a substantial source of support
with the passage of Measure RR and its authorization to issue up to $3.5B in general
obligation bonds to fund certain capital improvements. Measure RR has become more
prominent in the mix of federal, regional and local funds, which also includes a sizable
commitment of BART operating allocations. Measure RR makes up $418M (31%) of the
FY19 capital sources, funding a variety of programs including traction power ($151M), track
(§75M), and escalators in downtown San Francisco ($35M).

The ongoing commitment of BART funds ($147M, 11% of capital budget) is an essential
component of the capital program, particularly in meeting the long-term commitments
required to deliver major capital projects such as rail car replacement and the Hayward
Maintenance Complex. Other capital activities dependent on operating allocations are
providing local match for grants, and funding grant-ineligible projects and initiatives, routine
but necessary capitalized maintenance projects, emergent safety and security projects, and
equipment and inventory.

Operating allocations derived from parking revenues are dedicated, per board policy, to a
variety of station and access improvements, including signage, pedestrian improvements,
station heavy cleaning, information displays, bike improvements, limited studies, and the
sustainability program. As mandated by regional programming requirements, federal funds
are directed to train control and traction power, trackway renovation, general mainline
repairs, rail cars, fare collection, and ADA/system accessibility improvements.

Other capital revenues are limited in their flexibility and many sources and grants are
restricted to certain projects and/or activities as a condition of award. The FY 19 capital
budget contains modest but important contributions of staté and local funds, including
bridge toll allocations and county transportation sales tax funds, which are earmarked for
station modernization and grant match. Proceeds from the Earthquake Safety general
obligation bond are dedicated exclusively to the Earthquake Safety program. Additionally,
there are smaller, defined purpose grants that are limited to specific projects.



FY19 Budget Resolution (continued)

FY19 Budget Resolution

Staff recommends approval of the attached Resolution to adopt the FY 19 Annual Budget.
As in previous years, the FY 19 Resolution includes authorizations including the submittal
of annual applications for Transportation Development Act (TDA), State Transit Assistance
(STA) and Bridge Toll funds that are included in the FY'19 capital budget, as appropriate.
The Resolution also allows the General Manager or the General Manager’s designee to
execute the agreement with the City and County of San Francisco to provide annual transfer
payments for feeder services to the San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency. The
Resolution also incorporates provisions referring to the SFO Extension service plan and
certain District system-wide operating policies.

Exhibit A (attached) of the Budget Resolution summarizes operating and capital budget
totals. It includes modifications to the Preliminary Budget as outlined in the previous
paragraphs. Exhibit B (attached) reflects current hourly pay rates or base pay ranges, as
applicable, and management incentive pay, if any, for non-represented employees.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The proposed FY19 Annual Budget is balanced.

ALTERNATIVES:

Not adopt the budget or adopt a budget that differs from what has been presented to the
Board of Directors. Rules of the Board of Directors require that the budget be adopted prior
to June 30th; adoption of the Budget Resolution by June 30th is required to authorize
expenditures in FY'19. '

RECOMMENDATION:

Adoption of the following motion.

MOTION:

Adoption of the attached Resolution in the matter of approving the Annual Budget for the
San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District and authorizing expenditures for the fiscal
year July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019.



Attachment 1

Fiscal Year 2019 District Operating Budget
Sources and Uses Detail

SOURCES
Rail Passenger Revenue
ADA Passenger Revenue
Parking Revenue
Other Operating Revenue

Sub-Total Operating Revenue
Sales Tax Proceeds
Property Tax Proceeds
Local & Other Assistance
State Transit Assistance
Low Carbon Fuel Standard Program

Sub-Total Financial Assistance
TOTAL SOURCES

USES
Labor & Benefits
OPEB Unfunded Liability
ADA Paratransit
Purchased Transportation
Power
Other Non-Labor

Sub-Total Operating Expense

Debt Service

Allocation - Capital Rehabilitation
Allocation - Priority Capital Programs
Allocation - Stations & Access Projects
Allocation - Other

Allocation - Rail Car Project from SFO Net Result

Allocation - Operating Reserves from LCFS
Allocation - Sustainability from LCFS

FY19
PRELIMINARY

$ 484,953,095 $

899,565
36,650,000
28,954,386

651,457,046
264,622,284
46,762,737
5,444,012
31,661,161
6,500,000

354,980,194
906,437,240

560,336,231
3,624,000
16,063,770
14,096,994
43,809,322
133,069,730
771,000,047

46,639,568
29,867,309
42,862,759
3,725,140
4,638,703
4,827,714
3,250,000
3,250,000

Allocation - Operating Reserves for Economic Uncertainty -

Sub-Total Allocations

TOTAL USES
OPEB Unfunded Liability
NET RESULT

Average Weekday Trips

Operating Ratio
Farebox Recovery Ratio

139,061,193

910,061,240
(3,624,000)
$ -

410,500

71.5%
63.0%

Changes

9,380,397
9,380,397

6,361,200

6,361,200
16,741,697

326,190
(3,624,000)

5,484

64,380
(3,227,946)

15,345,543
15,345,543

12,117,697
3,624,000

FY19
ADOPTED
$ 484,953,095
899,565
36,650,000
38,334,783

560,837,443
264,622,284
46,762,737
5,444,012
38,012,361
6,500,000

361,341,394
922,178,837

560,662,421

16,063,770
14,102,478
43,809,322
133,134,110
767,772,101

46,639,568
29,867,309
42,862,759
3,725,140
4,638,703
4,827,714
3,250,000
3,250,000
15,345,543
164,406,736

922,178,837

$ -

410,500

73.0%
63.3%



Attachment 2

FY19 Capital Budget
Headcount and Planned Expenditures
Program Summary by Category

Capital Planned
Program Category Headcount* Expenditures
FY19 FY19

System Renovation

Rolling Stock 80.8 $475,842,358

Mainline 515.0 $304,804,848

Stations 27.0 $103,274,648

Controls & Communications 125.2 $70,559,887

Facilities 28.2 $36,5631,353

Work Equipment 0.4 $4,353,181
Total System Renovation 776.5 995,366,275
Safety & Security - 52.2 77,927,765
Earthquake Safety 70.3 103,819,979
Service & Capacity Enhancement 54.0 135,902,877
System Expansion 2494 34,974,102
Capitol Corridor** 24.0 4,444 524
Reimbursable*** 17.5 2,458,826
Cost Allocation Plan 48.0
TOTALS 1,292.0 1,354,894,349

* Total authorized permanent positions.

** All expenses for the Capitol Corridor service to be reimbursed as allocated to
the Capitol Corridor Joint Powers Board in the Annual State Budget Act.

*** Positions fully reimbursed by Muni, Caltrans, and others for BART staff
expenses incurred in performing services for those organizations.



Attachment 3

FY19 Operating and Capital Budget Initiatives (General Fund)

OPERATING Pos. Labor  Non-Labor Total
Quality of Life: Homelessness - - 1,000,000 1,000,000
Quality of Life: Fare Evasion 2.0 202,018 - 202,018
Transbay Tube Coverage 8.0 1,059,928 - 1,059,928
Best Practices and Process Improvement for Administrative Services - - 700,000 700,000
Information Systems Safety, Security, and Applications 3.0 604,293 - 604,293
Police Dispatchers 2.0 267,196 - 267,196
Uniform Tracking 1.0 181,296 - 181,296
Budget Staffing 1.0 173,000 - 173,000
System Safety Data Analysis 1.0 154,838 - 154,838
Title VI 0.3 42,634 - 42,634

OPERATING TOTAL 18.3 2,685,203 1,700,000 4,385,203

CAPITAL Total
Quality of Life: Homelessness 600,000
Pigeon Abatement 500,000

CAPITAL TOTAL 1,100,000

FY19 Stations & Access Projects (from Parking Revenue)

OPERATING Pos. Labor  Non-Labor Total
Parking Program Manager 1.0 230,000 - 230,000
Parking Enforcement & Management 3.0 357,000 - 357,000
Automated Parking System Feasibility Analysis - - 168,000 168,000
Satellite / Shared-Use Parking Pilot - - 450,000 450,000
Art Program Collection Conservation ‘ - - 200,000 200,000
Bike / Ped Gap Study, Ph. 2 - - 250,000 250,000
Dynamic Bus Intermodal Feasibility Study - - 150,000 150,000
BART Ridership Model - - 150,000 150,000
Station Profile 2020 Preparation - - 40,000 40,000

OPERATING TOTAL 4.0 587,000 1,408,000 1,995,000

CAPITAL Pos. Total
Quality of Life: Fare Evasion (Station Hardening) 9.0 1,220,140
Quiality of Life: Fare Evasion (Prevention in Station Modernization) - 1,018,000
Parking Enforcement & Management - 480,000
Satellite / Shared-Use Parking Pilot - 50,000
Art Program Collection Conservation - 25,000
Maintenance Fund to Reconfigure Access Facilities - 250,000
Station Access Wayfinding and Signage Program - 250,000
Regional Transit Information Displays - 250,000
Station Experience Design Guidelines - BFS Specifications - 200,000

CAPITAL TOTAL 9.0 3,743,140



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

In the matter of approving

The Annual Budget for the

San Francisco Bay Area Rapid

Transit District and authorizing

Expenditures for the Fiscal Year

July 1, 2018, to June 30, 2019 Resolution No.

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District
published notices on May 5, May 8, and May 11, 2018 in newspapers of general circulation in the
County of San Francisco, the County of Contra Costa, and the County of Alameda of its intention
to adopt an Annual Budget for the Fiscal Year July 1, 2018, to June 30, 2019; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District
desires to adopt an Annual Budget for the Fiscal Year July 1, 2018, to June 30, 2019; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District
is required by Public Utilities Code Section 28767 to determine and create, by resolution, such
number and character of positions as are necessary to properly carry out the functions of the
District; and

WHEREAS, the Transportation Development Act (TDA), Public Utilities Code §99200,
et seq., provides for the disbursement of funds from the Local Transportation Fund of the Counties
of Alameda and Contra Costa for use by eligible claimants for the purpose of operating assistance;
and

WHEREAS, the State Transit Assistance (STA) fund makes funds available pursuant to
Public Utilities Code Section 99313.6 for allocation to eligible applicants to support approved
transit projects; and

WHEREAS, as attested to by opinions of the Office of the General Counsel, the San
Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District is an eligible applicant for Net Toll Revenues and MTC
Rail Extension Reserve bridge toll revenues pursuant to Section 30892 of the Streets and Highways
Code; and is an eligible claimant for TDA and STA funds pursuant to Public Utilities Code Section
99260; and

WHEREAS, the agreement between the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District
and San Mateo County Transit District, dated April 27, 2007, states that the San Francisco Bay
Area Rapid Transit District will provide service on the SFO extension in a manner consistent with
BART’s system-wide operating policies; and



WHEREAS, the system-wide operating plan for Fiscal Year 2019 was presented to the
Board of Directors on May 10, 2018, in a presentation entitled Fiscal Year 2019 Preliminary
Budget Operating Sources, Uses, Service Plan and Capital; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the attached Annual budget (marked
Exhibit A and incorporated herein as though set forth at length) is hereby adopted; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that, subject to the resolved clauses, said Annual Budget
includes appropriations of monies expected to be available in the General Fund, Capital Funds
including Construction Funds and existing and anticipated Federal, State and local grants, for
expenditures in the amounts and for the purposes set forth in said budget; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the General Manager is authorized to enter into
services agreements (including professional, technical, maintenance and repair agreements) and
lease or license agreements for District use of real property, facilities, equipment and software
provided that:

(1) The General Manager shall first determine that the work or services concerned, in
the amounts authorized in a service agreement, cannot satisfactorily be performed
by the officers or employees of the District;

(2)  Agreements that are let by public bidding, service, lease, and license agreements, .
and amendments thereto, between $25,000 and $100,000, shall be reported bi-
monthly to the Board of Directors;

(3)  Prior authorization by the Board of Directors is required when:

a. The agreement, and amendments thereto, total in the aggregate $100,000 or
more in the fiscal year; or

b. Amendments total in the aggregate $100,000 or more in any subsequent
fiscal year;

4) The General Counsel is authorized to enter into services agreements in amounts up
to $100,000 with special counsel not previously designated by the Board without
prior notice to the Board where the General Counsel determines that such
immediate action is necessary to protect the legal interests of the District. Any such
agreement shall be reported by the General Counsel to the Board within the
calendar month thereafter.

(5) The General Manager’s authority to take immediate remedial measures, as defined
in Section 20224 of the California Public Contract Code, and as authorized in
Resolution No. 4834 shall remain unchanged; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the General Manager is authorized to exchange
District goods and services for goods and services from others of approximately equal or greater
value; and



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that all disbursements resulting from the exercise of
authority granted the General Manager pursuant to this resolution shall be reported to the Board
of Directors in the District’s quarterly financial report; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT that the General Manager is authorized to waive
minor irregularities in bid documents prior to recommending contract awards to the Board; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Resolution No. 5345, adopted June 22, 2017, is
repealed effective August 31, 2018, except as it applies to unexpended capital appropriations, and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the General Manager or the General Manager’s
designee is authorized to execute and file a Bridge Toll Application, a TDA Application and an
STA Application along with necessary supporting documents, with the Metropolitan
Transportation Commission for allocation of bridge toll revenues, TDA and STA funds in FY19;
and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District’s
system-wide operating policies shall be generally as set forth in the May 10, 2018, presentation
entitled Fiscal Year 2019 Preliminary Budget Operating Sources, Uses, Service Plan and Capital,
subject to such adjustments that staff determines necessary to operate the service in the public’s
interest; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the General Manager or the General Manager’s
designee is authorized to execute an agreement with the City and County of San Francisco (CITY)
to provide a transfer payment in FY19, such transfer payment being paid by the District to CITY
in order to facilitate the coordination of transit service and furnish an incentive to CITY for
providing enhanced transfer services between MUNI and BART stations; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the General Manager is authorized to make
expenditures and incur liabilities against said funds within the limits set forth in said budget and
the provisions of this Resolution, and to act on behalf of the District in connection with contracts
arising thereunder, by following the procedures provided by law, and by Board of Directors’
Resolutions and Board Rules, except that no contractual obligation shall be assumed by the District
in excess of its ability to pay, and provided further that all expenditures shall be in conformance
with statutory and other restrictions placed on the use of said funds; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the General Manager is authorized to exceed Board
Appointed Department/Executive Office budgets by more than ten percent (10%) ten (10) days
after written notice of this intended action has been mailed to the Board of Directors, provided that
the Total Net Operating Expense line item set forth in “Exhibit A” is not exceeded and such action
is consistent with Board Rule 5-1.4 and provided further that the General Manager will prepare
and send to the Board, a summary of Department budgets within approximately 30 days after the
adoption of this budget; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the General Manager is authorized to exceed the
foregoing ten percent limitation for emergency expenditures which are made in accordance with
Resolution No. 4834 and Public Contract Code Section 20224; and



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the General Manager is authorized to act on behalf
of the District, and to make expenditures and incur liabilities against all funds of the District as
provided for in contracts which have been authorized by the Board of Directors of the District and
that the Board’s authorizations of such contracts also include the necessary appropriations for such
contracts and change orders authorized by Rules approved by the Board, subject, however, to
compliance with such specific appropriation resolutions as may be adopted by the Board from time

to time; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the General Manager or the General Manager’s
designee is authorized to issue free or discounted promotional tickets in FY19 for purposes of
building ridership on the system, consistent with ridership development guidelines; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that effective July 1, 2018:

()

)

€)

4)

The total number of permanent full and permanent part-time positions (“full time
equivalent”) as of July 1, 2018, budgeted for the District shall be 4,677.25 (a part-
time position is counted as 0.625 positions). Additional permanent positions are
authorized, as required, not to exceed 50 positions, of which not more than 25
positions may be charged to operating expense provided the budgeted Total Net
Operating Expense is not thereby exceeded;

The character and salary ranges of such positions, including officers appointed by
the Board pursuant to Public Utilities Code Section 28811 shall be as set forth in
the agreements entered into with Service Employees’ International Union, Local
1021, Amalgamated Transit Union, Local 1555, American Federation of State and
County Municipal Employees, Local 3993, the BART Police Officers Association
and the BART Police Managers Association as to the employees represented
thereby, and with other Bargaining Units for employees that may later be
represented thereby, and for all other employees as set forth in the attached “Exhibit
B”, incorporated herein as though set forth at length. The employment benefits for
non-represented employees shall be administered by the General Manager in
accordance with Board Rule 4-1.2.

The General Manager is authorized to make future adjustments to the
Professional/Management Salary Ranges (“Exhibit B”) for non-represented
employees in accordance with applicable provisions of the Compensation Manual,
which reflects the District policy and practice to evaluate such ranges on an annual
basis and to establish the mid-points of the pay ranges for positions so that they
approximate the 75% percentile of the average of salaries paid for similar jobs in the
labor market and to promptly advise the Board of any and all such range
adjustments. The General Manager is directed to initiate the annual review by
October of each year.

The District Secretary shall insure that an amendment to Exhibit B be prepared to
reflect any adjustment to the hourly wage rates or professional/management pay
bands as provided above or any adjustment to the Board appointed officers' salaries
as a result of merit adjustments or scheduled increases provided in such officers'



employment agreements that take effect during the fiscal year. The District
Secretary shall attach any such amendment to Exhibit B as an addendum to this
resolution.

%) The General Manager is authorized to pay non-represented employees on the merit
plan who are eligible for a wage increase of up to 2.5% as of July 1, 2018, that
portion of their merit increase which exceeds the top of the base salary range with
no increase to the employee's "base wage" above the top of the salary range. The
amount over the top of the salary range shall be paid over the following twelve
month period in equal pay period installments and will be discontinued after the
expiration of the twelve month period unless the pay range is adjusted in accordance
with (3), above, to incorporate that portion that is over the top of the salary range.
Employees must have been rated "effective" or higher overall in their most recent
performance evaluation to be eligible for any merit increase.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the General Manager or the General Manager's
designee shall post all grant applications online to the public as they are submitted, except those
that if made public would compromise the security of the system.

#H##



EXHIBIT A

SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

ANNUAL BUDGET - FISCAL YEAR 2019
FUND SOURCES

FUND SOURCES FOR NET OPERATING EXPENSE BUDGET,
DEBT SERVICE AND CAPITAL ALLOCATIONS
Operating Revenue $
Property Tax
1/2 ¢ Sales Tax
Measure B, BB, & J Assistance
Other Financial Assistance
Caltrain - Millbrae Station Joint Use
State Transit Assistance
Low Carbon Fuel Standard Program (LCFS)

Total Operating Sources

FUND SOURCE FOR CAPITAL BUDGET
Capital Funds - Cash Flow FY19

TOTAL ESTIMATED FUND SOURCES $
FUND USES

FUND USES FOR NET OPERATING EXPENSE BUDGET,
DEBT SERVICE AND CAPITAL ALLOCATIONS

Net Labor Expense!" $
Non-Labor Expense
Total Net Operating Expense $

Revenue Bond Debt Service

Allocations to Capital - Rehabilitation

Allocations to Capital - Priority Capital Programs
Allocations to Capital - Stations & Access Projects
Allocations to Capital - Other

Allocation to Rail Car Project from SFO Net Result
Allocation to Operating Reserves from LCFS

Allocation to Sustainability from LCFS

Allocation to Operating Reserves for Economic Uncertainty

Total Operating Uses $
FUND USES FOR CAPITAL BUDGET

Capital Funds - Cash Flow FY19 $

TOTAL ESTIMATED FUND USES $

NET FINANCIAL RESULT (DEFICIT) $

R Total Authorized Permanent Positions as of 07/01/18 = 4,677.25

TOTAL

560,837,443
46,762,737
264,622,284
4,418,238
110,000
915,774
38,012,361
6,500,000
922,178,837

1,354,894,349

2,277,073,186

560,662,421
207,109,680
767,772,101
46,639,568
29,867,309
42,862,759
3,725,140
4,638,703
4,827,714
3,250,000
3,250,000
15,345,543
922,178,837

1,354,894,349

2,277,073,186



EXHIBIT B

CHARACTER, BASE SALARIES, PAY BANDS, HOURLY WAGE RATES,
AND MANAGEMENT INCENTIVE PAY OF MANAGEMENT AND

NON-REPRESENTED CLASSIFICATIONS

CHARACTER OF POSITION/PAYROLL
CLASSIFIGATION TITLE

HOURLY WAGE RANGE

CLERICAL & HOURLY STEP1 STEP 2 STEP 3 STEP4 STEPS STEPS6
ADMINISTRATIVE TECHNICIAN $30.9724 | § 32.3347 | § 33.5973 | $ 34.8927 | $ 36.2218 | $ 36.7320
ADMINISTRATIVE SECRETARY 29.7323 30.2850 31.4686 32.6840 33.9310 35.2653
SENIOR SECRETARY 27.6877 28.0102 29.0389 30.2850 31.5004 32.7738
SENIOR CLERK 29.5561 30.8531 32.0552 33.2893 34.5550 35.0411
INTERMEDIATE CLERK 26.4553 27.5303 28.5430 29.5892 30.8531 31.3391
INTERMEDIATE CLERK P/T 29.0658 30.2483 31.3623 32.56132 33.9034 34.4380
PARALEGAL 36.8680 38.4922 39.9964 41.5413 43.1263 43.7289
P/T SURVEY TAKER (SINGLE RATE) 35.65521

ENGINEER INTERN 18.0000

NOTE: The clerical rates are effective 7/1/2018

PROFESSIONAL/MANAGEMENT PAY BANDS

PAY
BAND MINIMUM MIDPOINT MAXIMUM

15 $188,013 $239,719] $291,424
14 170,533 217,432 264,330
13 147,316 187,830 228,343
12 133,622 170,368 207,114
11 127,256 162,254 197,252
10 121,196 164,526 187,856
9 115,426 147,169 178,912
8 109,929 140,160 170,391
7 99,708 127,129 154,549
6 94,961 121,076 147,191
5 86,132 109,819 133,506
4 82,031 104,591 127,150
3 78,124 99,610 121,095
2 74,403 94,866 115,329
1 67,485 86,045 104,605

NOTE: The professional/ management pay bands were effective 7/1/2017

MANAGEMENT INCENTIVE PAY (ANNUAL) Amount Effective

Assistant General Manager - Operations $4,800 6/28/1999

Assistant General Manager- External Affairs $4,800 11/4/2013

Assistant General Manager- Administration $4,800 1/30/2017

Assistant General Manager- Technology/CIO $4,800 3/1/2013

Assistant General Manager- Planning & Development $4,800 12/29/2017

Chief of Police $4,800 5/22/2017

Deputy.General Manager $4,800 2/13/2017

Managing Director - Capitol Corridor $4,800 11/21/2009

Due to the unique nature of these jobs as executive management employees reporting directly to the General Manager, these
classifications are eligible to receive Management Incentive Pay of $4,800 annually (26 equal pay period installments of

$184.61).

BOARD APPOINTED OFFICERS' ANNUAL SALARIES

Base Salaries 1/1/2018
DISTRICT SECRETARY $203,339.85
CONTROLLER-TREASURER $258,278.39
GENERAL COUNSEL $285,563.95
GENERAL MANAGER $385,389.35
INDEPENDENT POLICE AUDITOR $194,501.19

Note: The Board approved the salary adjustments for the Board Appointed Officers on December 7, 2017.




SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors DATE: June 6, 2018
FROM: General Manager

SUBJECT: CalPERS Funding Strategy Options and Recommendations

At the Board Meeting on May 10, 2018, the Board requested that staff have Bartel analyze two pension
funding strategies:

Option #1: Make annual payments directly to CalPERS to pay down a liability base.
Option #2: Make annual contributions to an Irrevocable Supplemental Pension (§115) Trust.

At the Board Meeting on June 14, 2018, Mary Beth Redding, Vice President of Bartel Associates, Inc will
present the results of her analysis on the options and Michael D. Jones, Assistant General Manager,
Administration will present staff recommendations. Attached is the presentation.

If you have any questions about this, please contact Michael D. Jones, Assistant General Manager,

Administration, at 510-464-6231.
% M’ /o‘w

%race Crunican

cc: Board Appointed Officers
Deputy General Manager
Executive Staff



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL: é Jeve 2ei s/ GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:
{ ) Approve and Forward to the June 14, 2018 Board Meeting

DATE: 5/22/2018 BOARD INITIATED ITEM: Yes

Controller/Treasurer| District Secretary BARC

aE A

Originator/Prepared by: Hamed Tafaghodi

Dept: Maintenaw nginzring: I\ Y A

ignature/Date: b{ /,/ //7

Contract No. 09AF-111A TBT Cross Passage Doors Replacement

PURPOSE: To obtain the Board’s authorization for the General Manager to award Contract
No. 09AF-111A, TBT Cross Passage Doors Replacement, to DMZ Builders of Concord
CA. for the Base Bid Price of $6,388,000 and to authorize the General Manager to exercise
Option A for the Bid Price of $300,000 and Option B for the Bid Price of $200,000.

DISCUSSION: The Work of this Contract consists of providing all labor, equipment,
materials, and services required for removing and replacing all the emergency egress doors in
the Trans-Bay Tube (TBT) lower gallery and the two transition structures with new doors,
frames and hardware. The Contract has two alternative Options for upgrades to the door
monitoring system. The existing doors are nearing the end of their useful life. The new doors
will meet BART and the National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) criteria. Door
replacement is endorsed by BART's Chief Safety Officer and has been recommended by the
San Francisco Fire Department during multiple inspections for Fire/Life Safety Compliance.

This is a Security Sensitive Information Contract. On November 1, 2017, the Invitation to
Bid was emailed to 48 prospective Bidders. The Contract was advertised on November 3,
2017 in local publications. A total of 9 firms received security clearance and a total of 4 firms
purchased copies of the Contract Documents. A pre-Bid meeting was conducted on January
30, 2018 with 4 prospective Bidders attending. This Contract has five Addenda and two
Options. Two Bids were received and publicly opened on May 1, 2018 as follows:



Contract No. 09AF-111A TBT Cross Passage Doors Replacement (cont.)

Bidder Location - | Base Bid Option A [OptionB  [Total Bid
| DMZ Builders | Concord, CA [ $6,388,000.00 [$300,000.00 [$200,000.00 |$6,888,000.00
SilMan San Leandro, | $7,401,840.89 [$727,475.36 [$306,689.97 |$8,436,006.22
CA ‘
Engineer’s $5,538,946.00 {$415, 520.00{$200,000.00 [$6,154,466.00
Estimate '

After review by District staff, DMZ Builders’ (DMZ) Bid was deemed to be the lowest Bid
that was responsive to the solicitation. Examination of DMZ’ license, business experience,
and financial capabilities has resulted in a determination that the Bidder is responsible. Staff
has also determined that the Bidder’s total Bid of $6,888,000.00 is fair and reasonable.

Pursuant to the District's Non-Discrimination Program for Subcontracting, the Availability
Percentages for this Contract are 18.2% for Minority Business Enterprises (“MBEs”) and
9.3% for Women Business Enterprises (“WBEs”). DMZ Builders did not include any MBE
or WBE participation, therefore, it did not meet either the MBE or WBE Availability
Percentages. Accordingly, DMZ Builders was requésted to provide the Office of Civil
Rights with supporting documentation to determine if it had discriminated on the basis of
race, national origin, color, gender or ethnicity. Based on the review of the information
submitted by the DMZ Builders, the Office of Civil Rights found no evidence of
discrimination.

The construction cost of this Contract is funded with Measure RR bond funds. Pursuant to
the District’s Non-Federal Small Business Program, the Office of Civil Rights set a 14%
Local Small Business (LSB) Participation Goal for this Contract. Bidders who meet the
LSB Participation Goal are eligible for a Local Small Business Preference of 5% of the
lowest responsive Bidder’s Bid. The Office of Civil Rights determined that the apparent low
bidder, DMZ Builders, committed to subcontracting 18.3% to LSBs. DMZ Builders met the
LSB Participation Goal and, therefore, is eligible for the Local Small Business Preference
and remains the lowest responsive Bidder.

District staff has determined that this work is categorically exempt from the provisions of the
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Title 14, California Code of
Regulations, Section 15301, Existing Facilities, because it consists of the repair and minor
alterations of existing facilities involving no expansion of use.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Funding of $6,888,000 for Contract No. 09AF-111A will come from project budget
09AF002, TBT Cross Passage Doors Replacement. The Office of the Controller/Treasurer
certifies that funds are currently available to meet this obligation. The following table depicts



Contract No. 09AF-111A TBT Cross Passage Doors Replacement (cont.)

funding assigned to the referenced project, and is included in its totality to track funding
history against spending authority. Funds needed to meet this request will be expended from
the sources listed.

As of May 22, 2018, $10,953,758 is available for this project from the following fund
sources:

Fund Description Amount
802A 2017 Measure RR GOB $10,949,858
Total $10,949,858

BART has expended $78,910 and committed $77,139 to date for other actions. This action
will commit an additional $6,888,000 leaving an uncommitted balance of $3,905,810 in this
project.

There is no fiscal impact on available un-programmed District Reserves.

ALTERNATIVES: The Board may elect to reject all Bids and authorize Staff to re-
advertise the Contract. There is no assurance that new Bids would yield lower prices. Failure
to proceed with the Contract would delay this safety sensitive project.

RECOMMENDATION: Adoption of the following motion

MOTION: The General Manager is authorized to award Contract No. 09AF-111A, TBT
Cross Passage Doors Replacement for the Base Bid Price of $6,388,000.00, pursuant to
notification to be issued by the General Manager and subject to compliance with the
District's Protest Procedures. The General Manager is also authorized to exercise either
Option A for the Bid Price of $300,000.00 or Option B for the Bid Price of $200,000.00 for
upgrades to the door monitoring system.




EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL: 6 Ter€ ZedG | GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:
DATE: 5/29/2018 BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No

Originator/Prepared by: Robert Mitroff G’ene Caunsel Controller/Treasurer| District Secretary BARC
Dept: Extensions R\~ V' \W
%/ 4 0
_\41
B «

. 1k
Signature/Date:
&/4/ 2605 G/5/(g [ ] [ ] OG\ [ ]

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENTS NO. 6M8132, 6M8133, 6M8134,
6M8135, 6M8136, 6M8137, 6M8150, AND 6M8151 CONSTRUCTION
MANAGEMENT SERVICES FOR BART PROJECTS

PURPOSE: Request the Board to Authorize the General Manager to award Agreement No.
6M8132 to ACm, AECOM Technical Services, Inc./Cooper Pegueda Management, Inc., a
Joint Venture; Agreement No. 6M8133 to Ghirardelli Associates, Inc; Agreement No.
6M8134 to HDR Construction Control Corporation, Agreement No. 6M8135 to Jacobs
Project Management Company; Agreement No. 6M8136 to Parsons Transportation Group,
Inc.; Agreement No. 6M8137 to PGH Wong Engineering, Inc.; Agreement No. 6M8150 to
PreScience Corporation; and Agreement No. 6M8151 to The Allen Group, LLC/Vali Cooper
& Associates, Inc., a Joint Venture; to provide Construction Management Services for
BART Projects

DISCUSSION: The six $15,000,000 Construction Management Services agreements that
the District awarded in 2015 are reaching the limits of the commitment authority allowed in
their scope. New agreements are needed to provide the District with the essential
Construction Management Services needed to implement the District’s Capital Improvement
Program. As a result, the District issued Request for Proposals (RFP) No. 6M8132 on
January 31, 2018 to engage up to eight consulting firms or joint ventures to provide
Construction Management services in an amount not to exceed $25,000,000 per agreement,
each with a five-year term.

On January 25, 2018, an Advance Notice to Proposers was sent out to 524 prospective
proposers as well as to 23 plan rooms. The RFP was advertised on January 31, 2018 in local
publications. The Request for Proposal documents were posted to the District’s
Procurement Portal and available to Proposers electronically on January 31, 2018 and also in



. _Construction Management Services

hardcopy form. A total of one hundred forty (140) firms downloaded the Request for
Proposal documents from the Procurement Portal. A pre-proposal meeting was held on
February 22, 2018 with one hundred-fifty nine (159) prospective Proposers in
attendance. On March 27, 2018 proposals were received from the following 11 firms (in
alphabetical order):

1. ACm, AECOM Technical Services, Inc./Cooper Pegueda Management, Inc., a Joint
Venture, Oakland, CA

2. CZPM, San Ramon, CA

3. F.E. Jordan Associates, Inc./ABA Glbbal, Inc., a Joint Venture, Oakland, CA
4. Ghirardelli Associates, Inc., Oakland, CA |

5. HDR Construction Control Corporation, Walnut Creek, CA

6. Jacobs Project Management Co., Oakland, CA

7. Parsons Transportation Group, Inc., Oakland, CA

8. PGH Wong Engineering, Inc., San Francisco, CA

o

PreScience Corporation, Oakland, CA
10. S&C Engineers, Inc., Oakland CA
11. The Allen Group, LLC/Vali Cooper & Associates, a Joint Venture, San Francisco, CA

The proposals were reviewed by a Selection Committee (“Committee™) consisting of BART
staff from Planning, Development & Construction, Maintenance and Engineering, the Office
of Civil Rights, and Contract Administration, Proposals were first reviewed to determine if
the proposals were responsive to the requirements of the RFP. One of the proposals, from
F.E. Jordan Associates, Inc./ABA Global, Inc., a Joint Venture, was determined to be non-
responsive to the requirements of the RFP due to major omissions in the proposal.

Subsequently, the remaining 10 proposals were evaluated and scored on the basis of the
criteria contained in the RFP with respect to the qualifications of the proposing firms and the
qualifications of the project teams. As a result, the following nine firms (in alphabetical
order) were shortlisted and selected for oral interviews which were conducted by the
Committee between April 24, 2018 and April 27, 2018:

1. ACm, AECOM Technical Services, Inc./Cooper Pegueda Management Inc. , a Joint
Venture, Oakland, CA



Construction Management Services

2. Ghirardelli Associates, Inc., Oakland, CA

3. HDR Construction Control Corporation, Walnut Creek, CA

4. Jacobs Project Management Co., Oakland, CA

5. Parsons Transportation Group, Inc., Oakland, CA

6. PGH Wong Engineering, Inc., San Francisco, CA

7. PreScience Corporation, Oakland, CA

8. S&C Engineers, Inc., Oakland CA

9. The Allen Group, LLC/Vali Cooper & Associates, a Joint Venture, San Francisco, CA

Based on the combined scores for the oral interviews and written statement of qualifications
for RFP No. 6M8132, the Committee determined that the eight highest scoring proposers
were the most qualified proposers for thls RFP. These firms are listed below in alphabetical
order:

1. ACm, AECOM Technical Services, Inc./Cooper Pegueda Management, Inc., a Joint
Venture, Oakland, CA

2. Ghirardelli Associates, Inc., Oakland, CA

3. HDR Construction Control Cbrporation, Walnut Creek, CA

4. Jaco‘bs Project Management Co., Oakland, CA

5. Parsons Transportation Group, Inc., Oakland, CA

6. PGH Wong Engineering, Inc., San Francisco, CA

7. PreScience Corporation, Oakland, CA

8. The Allen Group, LLC/V. éli Cooper & Associates, a Joint Venture, San Francisco, CA

The Office of Civil Rights reviewed the scope of work for this Agreement and determined
that there were DBE and SBE subcontracting opportunities; therefore, a DBE subcontracting
goal of 22% and a SBE participation goal of 30% were set for this Agreement. The
participation by DBE subcontractors counted towards the DBE subcontracting goal is also
counted towards the SBE participation goal. Five of the eight Proposers (ACm, AECOM
Technical Services, Inc./Cooper Pegueda Management, Inc., a Joint Venture; Jacobs Project
Management Co.; Parsons Transportation Group, Inc.; PGH Wong Engineering, Inc.; and



Construction Management Services

The Allen Group, LLC/Vali Cooper & Associates, a Joint Venture) committed to meeting
both the 22% DBE subcontracting goal and the 30% SBE participation goal.

Proposer Ghirardelli Associates, Inc. committed to meeting a 22% DBE subcontracting goal
and a 85% SBE participation goal. Proposer HDR Construction Control Corporation
committed to meeting a 24% DBE subcontracting goal and a 32% SBE participation goal.
Lastly, proposer PreScience Inc. committed to meeting a 25% DBE subcontracting goal and
a 75% SBE participation goal. The Office of Civil Rights will monitor the actual DBE and
SBE participation attained based on individual work plans issued and amounts actually paid
to DBE and SBE firms. The Agreements require the Consultants to ensure that DBE and
SBE firms have an equal opportunity to compete for and participate in the performance of
the Agreements.

Accordingly, staff recommends, upon completion of negotiation of fair and reasonable cost
reimbursement rates and fees, eight cost-plus-fixed-fee awards each in an amount not to
exceed $25,000,000 for a five-year performance period as follows:

1. ACm, AECOM Technical Services, Inc./Cooper Pegueda Management, Inc., a Joint
Venture, Oakland, CA

2. Ghirardelli Associates, Inc., Oakland, CA

3. HDR Construction Control Corporation, Walnut Creek, CA

4. Jacobs Project Management Co., Oakland, CA

5. Parsons Transportation Group, Inc., Oakland, CA

6. PGH Wong Engineering, Inc., San Francisco, CA

7. PreScience Corporation, Oakland, CA

8. The Allen Group, LLC/Vali Cooper & Associates, a Joint Venture, San Francisco, CA

Work Plans (WP’s) under each Agreement will define individual assignments in each case
subject to funding availability. Each WP will have its own scope, schedule, and budget.

The Office of General Counsel will approve the Agreements as to form.

FISCAL IMPACT: Each of the Agreements has a not-to-exceed limit of $25,000,000.
District obligations will be subject to a series of WP’s. Each WP will have a defined scope
- of services, and separate schedule and budget. Any WP assigned for funding under a State
or Federal grant will include State or Federal requirements. The Controller/Treasurer issues
fund codes based on grant awards for allocation to capital projects. Capital Budget and



Construction Management Services

Funds Management will certify the eligibility of identified funding sources prior to incurring
project costs against these Agreements and the execution of each WP. The Office of the
Controller/Treasurer will certify that funds are available to meet this obligation prior the
execution of each WP. This action is not anticipated to have any F1sca1 Impact on
unprogrammed District reserves.

ALTERNATIVES: The District could reject all proposals and re-solicit new proposals.
Reissuing these RFP’s would adversely impact the implementation of BART’s Capital
Improvement Program and would not likely result in better quality bids.

'~ RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the Board adopt the following motion:

MOTION: The General Manager is authorized to award, subject to the negotiation of fair

~ and reasonable cost reimbursement rates and fees, the below listed Agreements to provide
Construction Management Services for BART Projects in an amount not to exceed
$25,000,000 each, pursuant to notification to be issued by the General Manager. The awards
are subject to the District’s protest procedures and Federal Transit Administration (FTA)
requirements related to protest procedures.

1. Agreement No. 6M8132 to ACm, AECOM Technical Services, Inc./Cooper Pegueda
Management, Inc., a Joint Venture, Oakland, CA

2. Agreement No. 6M8133 to Ghirardelli Associates, Inc., Oakland, CA

3. Agreement No. 6M8134 to HDR Construction Control Corporation, Walnut Creek, CA
4. Agreement No. 6M8135 to Jacobs Project Management Co., Oakland, CA

5. Agreement No. 6M8136 to Parsons Transportation Group, Inc., Oakland, CA

6. Agreement No. 6M8137 to PGH Wong Engineering, Inc., San Francisco, CA

7. Agreement No. 6M8150 to PreScience Cdrporation, Oakland, CA

8. Agreement No. 6M8151 to The Allen Group, LLC/Vali Cooper & Associates, a Joint
Venture, San Francisco, CA



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

GENERAL AGER APPROV%: é T 2e13 GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:
/ M . / (2,77

DATE: 4/30/2018 BOARD INITIATED ITEM: Yes

Originator/Prepared by: John McCormick

: %s Pznning
ifna

ture/Date: %”4’/;9[9

Controller/Treasurer| District Secretary BAR

0
%m” . (/\N[]

AUTHORITY TO ENTER INTO AGREEMENTS FOR TEMPORARY BUS
BRIDGE SERVICES

o~

PURPOSE:

To obtain Board authorization for the General Manager to enter into agreements with public
and/or private bus operators, including but not limited to the Alameda-Contra Costa Transit
District (AC Transit), to provide temporary bus bridge services in a total amount not to
exceed $200,000 per day for each day that the District cannot provide complete train service
due to planned maintenance projects. ’

DISCUSSION:

Staff seeks authority to enter into an agreement with AC Transit and, if necessary, other
public and/or private bus operators, to provide bus bridge services between affected BART
stations during planned shutdowns for maintenance projects in Calendar Year 2018.

The first such maintenance project will be the M03 Refurbishment Project which will consist
of track work between the Oakland Wye and the West Oakland station. This project will
require track shutdowns for approximately five to six weekends commencing in August
2018. The specific dates, scenarios, and logistics may change. An agreement may support
one or more planned maintenance events during the agreement period.

As part of this authorization request, staff may also incur additional expenses (i.e. traffic
control, permit fees, police services, etc.) to support the implementation of bus bridge
operations. The total amount, not to exceed $200,000 per day, includes both the temporary



AUTHORITY TO ENTER INTO AGREEMENTS FOR TEMPORARY BUS BRIDGE SERVICES

bus bridge services and any additional expenses, if necessary.

The Office of the General Counsel will approve all negotiated agreementé as to form prior to
execution.

This proposed Board authorization to enter into bus bridge services agreements would
expire December 31, 2018.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Funding for these agreements and payment of related expenses will come from the budget of
the sponsoring capital project. Capital Development and Control will certify the eligibility of
identified Capital funding sources. The Controller/Treasurer will certify availability of such
funding prior to incurring project costs against the Agreement. This action is not anticipated
to have any Fiscal Impact on unprogrammed District reserves.

ALTERNATIVES:

Do not authorize the General Manager to enter into agreements to establish temporary bus
bridge services. Without this authorization, there will be limited funding available to operate
bus bridge services during maintenance projects, which will force BART patrons to seek
alternate means of transportation.

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the Board adopt the following motion.

MOTION: The General Manager is authorized to enter into agreements with public and/or
private bus operators and vendors, including but not limited to AC Transit, to provide
temporaty bus transportation services and related support expenses in a total amount not to
exceed $200,000 per day for each day that the District is unable to provide complete train
service due to maintenance projects. These authorizations will expire on December 31, 2018.



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

GENE AGER APPROVAL: GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:
6 'JZA,@'” Zc" Y Approve and Forward to the Board

¢
DATE: 5/1/2018 BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No ,qp
Originator/Prepared by: Ahmad Rassai neral Gounsel Controller/Treasurer| Distriet Secretary BARC QJ%
Dept: Extensions ) @ i : \
/%—b’ . le
Signature/Date: / / / //gg b\

05/29/18 s/ogfs | IR [ ] [ 1
. 7 T

Contract No. 79HM-120 SFTS MB, Chénge Order No. 104 Part 1, Time Extension
for Revised Cathodic Protection

PURPOSE:

To obtain Board authorization for the General Manager to execute Change Order No. 104
Part 1, Time Extension for Revised Cathodic Protection to Contract No. 79HM-120, for
construction of the SFTS Marine Barrier (MB), in an amount not to exceed $400,000 and a
time extension, increasing the Contract duration by 196 calendar days.

- DISCUSSION:

On February 12, 2015, the Board authorized award of Contract No. 79HM-120, SFTS MB
to Manson Construction Co. Inc. Notice to Proceed was issued on May 19,

2015. Subsequent to the award of Contract No. 79HM-120, the District’s electrical
engineering staff reviewed the Contract's cathodic protection design and determined that it
would not adequately protect the steel skin of the SFTS. A revised cathodic protection
design was implemented through Change Order No. 31. This revised work requires a 196
day schedule extension in order for the work to be completed. Change Order No. 104 Part
1 will provide compensation to the Contractor in an amount not to exceed $400,000 and add
196 days to the Contract completion date resulting from the delays arising from the revised
cathodic protection work provided for in Change Order No. 31.

Pursuant to Board Rule 5-2.3, Change Orders involving expenditures greater than
$200,000, or Change Orders involving a substantial alteration or potential substantial
alteration in the obligations of either the District or the Contractor, require Board approval.
The Office of the General Counsel will approve this. Change Order as to form prior to
execution. The Procurement Department will review this Change Order for compliance with
procurement guidelines prior to execution. -



- e
Contract No. 79HM-120 SFTS Mb, Change Order No. 104 Part 1, Time Extension for Revised Cathodic Prot (cont.)

FISCAL IMPACT:

Funding of $400,000 for Contract No. 79HM-120 Change Order No. 104 Part 1 will come
from project budget 79HMO00 Transition Barriers. The Office of the Controller/Treasurer
certifies that funds are currently available to meet this obligation. The following table depicts
funding assigned to the referenced project, and is included in its totality to track funding
history against spending authority. Funds needed to meet this request will be expended from
the sources listed below. As of May 8,2018, $108,821,735 is available for this project from
the following sources:

FEDERAL $89,339,870
BART ‘ $190,421
REGIONAL $4,434,499
$14,856,944

BART has expended $96,381,815 and committed $10,210,997 to date for other actions.
This action will commit an additional $400,000 leaving an uncommitted balance of
$1,828,923 in this project. There is no fiscal impact on available un-programmed District
Reserves.

ALTERNATIVES:

The Board can elect not to authorize the execution of this Change Order. If the Change
Order is not executed, the Contractor may pursue a claim against the District for the cost of
the additional cathodic protection work and delays attributable to the District. Such a claim
and related litigation costs would likely increase the ultimate cost to the District.

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommend that the Board approve the following motion:

MOTION: .

The General Manager is authorized to execute Change Order No. 104 Part 1, Time Extension
- for Revised Cathodic Protection, in an amount not to exceed $400,000 and extend the

Contract completion date by 196 calendar days for Contract No. 79HM-120, SFTS MB

with Manson Construction Company, Inc.



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT ' 5/4/2018

ATTACHMENT No 1 ‘ ' CO No. 104
CONTRACT 79HM-120

CHANGE ORDER SUMMARY

BACKGROUND

Program: Transition Barriers

Name of Contractor Manson Construction Co.
Contract No. / NTP 79HM-120/ May 20, 2015
Contract Description: SFTS MB

Percent Complete as of 3/31/18 87.00%

COST % of Award CO Totals Contract Amount

Original Contract Award Amount $ 49,686,000

Change Orders -
Board Authorized COs 18.09% $ 8,986,808

Other Than Board Authorized COs 8.35% $ 4,150,311
This Change Order No. 104 0.81% $ 400,000

Subtotal of all Change Orders 27.25% $13,537,119

Revised Confract Amount » $ 63,223,119

SCHEDULE

Original Contract Duration 730 days
Time Extension to Date

Time Extension Due to Approved Cos 392  days
Time Extension Due to this CO 104 196 days
Revised Contract Duration 1,318  days

DBE PARTICIPATION

‘Original Contract Value excluding Allowances : \ : $ 49,105,000

Current DBE Particpation excluding this Change Order A 13.76%
Projected DBE Particpation excluding this Change Order 13.65%
This Change Order No. 104 19.65%
Contract 79HM-120 DBE Participation Commitment 1.95%

C:\Users\ARassai\AppData\Local\Microsoﬂ\Wlndows\Temporary Internet Files\Content. Outiook\Q0971L4H\REY EDD_CO_104_Cost_Summary.82018



IBART

EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL: g v‘/ e t 8 GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:

DATE: 5/31/2018 BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No

Originator/Prepared by: Jumana Nabti ‘General Counsel Controller/Treasurer| District Secretary BARC

63%%%2%; M&\ﬂlﬂ%f L w@(«i“ﬁ

Scoop Carpool Matching Service Contract Amendment

PURPOSE:
To seek Board approval to authorize the General Manager to negotiate and enter into a

contract amendment with Scoop Technologies for Carpool Services for a not to exceed
amount of $230,000.

DISCUSSION:

In coordination with the Metropolitan Transportation Commission’s (MTC) 511 Carpool
Program, BART and Scoop Technologies ("Scoop") began development of a Scoop to
BART incentive program for carpoolers in early 2016. The program provides rideshare
matching services through Scoop to assist in the formulation of carpools. BART provides a
guaranteed parking space for those passengers who use Scoop to come to a BART station.

This partnership subsequently won a Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Mobility on
Demand Sandbox grant in October 2016. The grant funding agreement between BART and
the FTA had a start date of January 20, 2017 and was scheduled to end on June 30, 2018,
but was later extended to December 31, 2018. In January 2017, a pilot program was
launched at the Dublin/Pleasanton station through a no-cost contract between BART and
Scoop. A second contract between BART and Scoop in conjunction with the FTA grant
was signed in August 2017 to expand the program throughout the BART system, that
contract expires on June 30, 2018. The second contract details how the grant funding is to
be spent and each party’s responsibilities. Grant funds were allocated to Scoop for outreach
and enhancements in the Scoop app to tailor it for the BART passenger. Scoop did not
require fees to provide their carpool matching service.



Scoop Carpool Matching Service Contract Amendment (cont.)

BART and Scoop desire to continue this program after the expiration of the contract.
Scoop has since changed its business model and has proposed a service fee of $20,000 to
$25,000 per month. For this amount, Scoop would continue to match BART riders into
carpools through its mobile app, provide support services such as transferring carpool
information to BART Police for verification purposes, and complete outstanding
deliverables.

BART staff recommends a short-term contract with Scoop while it prepares a long-term
comprehensive carpool program solution. Since Scoop is requesting a monthly payment
and other companies are entering the carpool matching and occupancy verification market,
continuing the existing Scoop to BART carpool program as a short-term solution is
preferable.

Ideally, the currently envisioned long-term solution would comprehensively address
carpooling to BART, close occupancy verification and enforcement loopholes, and meet the
needs of all types of carpoolers including the following:

o Those who carpool regularly with a known carpool partner (e.g., those using BART’s
legacy paper permit program);

o Those who carpool irregularly (e.g., for special events);

o Those who carpool through a matching service (e.g., Scoop).

The long-term solution would replace or update the legacy paper permit program, which is
still operational, but rife with fraudulent use. It is anticipated that the long-term solution
would require approximately 9 months to implement; therefore, the continuation and
expansion of the Scoop to BART program is required until the new program can be
implemented with a smooth transition.

A smooth transition from the current Scoop to BART program to a long-term carpool
program would maintain the gains in carpooling, funding, and staff time invested in the
program. The transition plan would also allow continued growth in the carpooling program
during the interim period, and provision of data on the program for the FTA.

The current Scoop to BART program benefits BART in the following ways:

o Improves the efficiency of BART parking resources: The Scoop to BART program
averages 1.9 patrons per vehicle parked at BART, as compared to approximately 1.1
patrons per vehicle that normally park at BART.

» Encourages patrons to arrive later than the first-come/first-serve parking lot fill time,
helping to smooth out peak of the peak train loading.

» Provides additional affordable access options to stations, particularly more auto-
dependent stations.

Usage of the Scoop to BART program has been growing at an average rate of approximately



Scoop Carpool Matching Service Contract Amendment {cont.)

12% month over month since February 2017. The following table and charts show
additional data on the Scoop to BART program:

May 2018 January
2017 to May
2018
# One-way trips to or from BART using Scoop 5,868 51,534
# Vehicles parking at BART in AM using Scoop 2,338 25,586
Person Trips to/from BART using Scoop
7000
6000
5000
4000
3000
2000
1000
é.!an Feb Mar Apr-May lun Jul Aug Sep Oct Mov Dec jan Feb Mar Apr May§
2017 % 2018 ;
BAM @mPM
Vehicles Parking at BART in AM using Scoop
2500
2000
1500
1000
500
0 o] { ,5
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Deci!an Feb Mar Apr Mav;
| 2017 % 2018 1




Scoop Carpool Matching Service Contract Amendment (cont.)

FISCAL IMPACT:

Funding in the amount of $230,000 for Scoop is included in the total project budget for
FMS # 91CD002 Carpool to Transit Access Project.The table below lists funding assigned
to the referenced project and is included to track funding history against spending authority.

Funds needed to meet this request will be expended from the following sources:

Fund No. {Source |Fund Description Amount
3608 Federal |Mobility on Demand Sandbox Program 358,000
652A Regional |MTC - In-Kind Match 30,000
7006 Local SCOQP - In-Kind Match 63,000
31 BART Operating Funds 50,000
8529 BART FY15 Operating Alloc to Capital 20,000
Total 521,000

As June 4, 2018, $521,000 is the total budget for this project. BART has expended $145,950
and committed $105 542 to date. This action will commit $230,000, leaving an avaﬂable fund
balance of $39,508 in these fund sources for this project.

The Office of Controller/Treasurer certifies that funds are currently available to meet this
obligation. This action is not anticipated to have any Fiscal Impact on unprogrammed
District reserves.

The FTA has approved use of grant funds for monthly payments to Scoop.

ALTERNATIVES:

One alternative is to not continue this carpool program with Scoop. If BART decides to
discontinue this program on June 30, 2018, the only option for patrons to carpool would be
to use the legacy carpool paper permit program, which is rife with fraudulent use and can
only be used those who carpool regularly with a known carpool partner.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends the following motion.

MOTION:

Authorize the General Manager to negotiate and enter into a contract amendment with Scoop
Technologies for a not to exceed amount of $230,000 to provide interim carpool matching
services until a long-term carpool program can be implemented.



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL: g vu A 2o g GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:
P. No
DATE: 6/1/2018 BOARD INITIATED ITEM: Yes

Controller/Treasurer| District Secretary BARC

'Wﬁ N Wﬂ;\ﬁi

[]

Originator/Prepared by: Abigail Thorne-
Lyman
Dept: Systems Development

(2t YAk

Resolution in Support of Advocating for BART’s Transit-Oriented Development and
Station Access Policies at Santa Clara County BART Stations

PURPOSE: To obtain Board approval of a Resolution in Support of Advocating for
BART’s Transit-Oriented Development and Station Access Policies at Santa Clara County
BART Stations. v '

DISCUSSION: In 2016, the BART Board adopted new Station Access and Transit-
Oriented Development (TOD) policies. These Board-adopted policies provide BART staff
with guidance on how to prioritize station access investments across a range of different
station types. The policies were designed to address statewide and regional goals of
reducing greenhouse gas emissions through coordinated transportation and land use
investments, build ipon a notable shift in how BART patrons access stations towards active
access modes, and help alleviate the region’s housing crisis through dense, mixed-income
development.

April 26, 2018, the BART Board approved the Santa Clara Valley Transportation Authority’s
(VTA’s) BART Silicon Valley Phase IT Extension Project (SVSX), following a series of
hearings from BART and VTA staff on details regarding the proposed alignment,
environmental documents, and land use and station access planning efforts that are currently
underway. During these hearings, the Board requested that staff return with a resolution
directing staff to advocate for VTA and the Cities of San Jose and Santa Clara to apply
BART’s Station Access and TOD policies to SVSX as these agencies advance their
planning efforts.

FISCAL IMPACT: None. BART staff are already working with VTA and the Cities at the



Resolution in Support of Advocating for BART’s Transit-Oriented Development and Station Access Polic (cont.)

Santa Clara County stations, and BART staff costs will be covered by VTA.

ALTERNATIVES: Do not adopt the Board resolution. Allow planning at the Santa Clara
County stations, and supportive access and TOD plans to continue with no formal direction

from BART.

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the Board adopt the attached resolution.
This resolution would then be shared with VTA and the Cities of San Jose and Santa Clara.

MOTION: Adopt the resolution, which:

1) Directs staff to support and work with VTA and Cities of San Jose and Santa Clara, and
to apply the BART Board adopted TOD and Station Access policies in the planning, design
and implementation of the SVSX stations and station areas.

2) Encourages VTA and the Cities of San Jose and Santa Clara to take advantage of
BART’s TOD and Station Access lessons learned from stations within the BART Core
System over the last 45 years.



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

In the Matter of Directing the
General Manager to Advocate for
BART’s Transit-Oriented Development
and Station Access Policies at
Santa Clara County BART Stations

: Resolution No.

WHEREAS, the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District (BART) brings to this
partnership an established 121-mile, 48-station regional rail system that efficiently and
effectively serves residents and employers in four Bay Area counties, including the region’s
second (San Francisco), third (Oakland), fourth (Fremont), sixth (Hayward) and eighth
(Concord) largest cities; and

WHEREAS, Santa Clara County is the center of Silicon Valley and a driving force for the _
California economy, and location of the region’s first (San Jose) and ninth (Santa Clara) largest
cities; and

WHEREAS, the state and region have expressed strong interest in the success of the Silicon
Valley extension to advance greenhouse gas emissions reduction and economic vitality goals;
and o

WHEREAS, MTC’s Plan Bay Area 2040 identified the BART to Silicon Valley, Phase II
(SVSX) project as one of the Bay Area’s highest ranked transit expansion projects; and

WHEREAS, Plan Bay Area 2040 projects that over 45 percent of regional household growth,
and nearly 45 percent of regional employment growth between 2010-2040 will be located in San
Jose, San Francisco and Oakland; and

WHEREAS, BART supports a sustainable and prosperous Bay Area by connecting communities
with seamless mobility; and ' :

WHEREAS, the Comprehensive Agreement executed by Santa Clara County Valley
Transportation Authority (VTA) and BART in 2001 sets forth in Section IX the following
General Agreements as they relate to Alignment, Stations, Land Use and Development:

1. Transit-oriented land use around rail stations is essential to maximizing ridership and
revenue, strengthening the financial health of both BART and VTA, and realizing the
full value of the public’s investment in the SVRT Project.

2. Integrating transportation and land use will be an on-going, mutual effort involving
coordination with local and regional jurisdictions.



3. Each agency has a vital interest in ensuring that the issues of alignment and stations,
land use, system access and development are addressed through the cooperative
efforts of the two agencies and affected local jurisdictions.

4. This transportation and land use planning effort will embrace those philosophies
designed to enhance ridership through use of effective station area planning and
development, as referenced in the policies of both agencies and local jurisdictions.

5. To that end, when appropriate, transportation and land use policies related to the
- SVRT Project will involve both agencies, and both agencies will collaboratively work
together to enhance development opportunities.

WHEREAS, the BART Board approved VTA’s BART Silicon Valley Phase II Extension Project
(SVSX) on April 26, 2018; and

WHEREAS, both system design and land use planning for four SVSX stations are underway;
and

WHEREAS, the BART Board adopted Transit Oriented Development (TOD) and Station Access
Policies on June 9, 2016;

- NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the BART Board of Directors,

1) Directs staff to support and work with VTA and Cities of San Jose and Santa Clara, and to
apply the BART Board adopted TOD and Station Access policies in the planning, design and
implementation of the SVSX stations and station areas.

2) Encourages VTA and the Cities of San Jose and Santa Clara to take advantage of BART’s
TOD and Station Access lessons learned from stations within the BART Core System over the
last 45 years. ‘



Transit-Oriented Development Policy
Adopted June 9, 2016

VISION

The San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District (BART) is a steward of a large scale public investment.
This includes real estate assets essential to BART’s transit operations, and real estate assets that can be
used to catalyze transit-oriented development in furtherance of BART’s purpose and goals. BART
leverages these opportunities by working in partnership with the communities it serves in order to
implement the regional land use vision and achieve local and regional economic development goals.
Strengthening the connections between people, places, and setvices enhances BART’s value as a regional
resource.

GOALS

A,

Complete Communities. Partner to ensure BART contributes to neighborhood/district vitality, creating
places offering a mix of uses and incomes. :

B. Sustainable Communities Strategy. Lead in the delivery of the region’s land use and transportation vision
to achieve quality of life, economic, and greenhouse gas reduction goals.

C. Ridership. Increase BART ridership, particularly in locations and times when the system has capacity to
£row. , : '

D. Value Creation and Value Capture. Enhance the stability of BART’s financial base by capturing the
value of transit, and teinvesting in the program to maximize TOD goals.

E. Transportation Choice. Leverage land use and urban design to encourage non-auto transportation choices
both on and off BART property, through enhanced walkability and bikeability, and seamless transit
connectivity.

F. Affordability. Serve households of all .income levels by linking housing affordability with access to
opportunity. '

STRATEGIES

A. Manage Resources Strategically to Support Transit-Oriented Development
Develop a 4-Year Work Plan to assess how staff and financial activities toward TOD will be most fruitful.

L.

- Identify BART staffing priorities and assignments to promote TOD on and around District property, including

contributions to efforts such as planning and development, community engagement, funding and financing
strategies. ‘

- Favor long-term ground leases of no more than 66 years, rather than sale of property, as the standard disposition

strategy for joint development projects, except in cases where alternative approaches are required to achieve
specific development objectives or where other strategies would generate greater financial return to the District.

Solicit proposals for transit-oriented development in localities that have an adopted plan allowing for transit-
supportive land uses as defined in the TOD Guidelines. Utilize a competitive selection process, but ensure the
solicitation process considers property assembly with adjacent land owners for optimal TOD.

Revisit the Transit-Oriented Development Policy every 10 years.



B. Support Transit-Oriented Districts

1. Proactively support local jurisdictions in creating station area plans and land use policies that: a) encourage
transit-supportive, mixed-use development on and around station properties, b) enhance the value of BART
land, and c) enhance the performance of the BART system as a whole.

2. Form partnerships with public agencies, developers and landowners, community development organizations,
finance entities, and consider strategic land acquisition to help build TOD both on and off BART property.

3. For BART system expansion, ensure that transit-oriented development and value capture opportunities are
explicitly accounted for in major investments such as the location of new station sites, design and construction
of station facilities, and acquisition of new properties.

" C. Increase Sustainable Transportation Choices using Best Practices in Land Use and Urban Design
1. Utilize BART’s TOD Guidelines to ensure future development and investments seamlessly connect BART
stations with surrounding communities.

2. Ensure that combined TOD/parking/access improvements on and around each BART station encourage net new
BART ridership, utilizing corridor-level, shared, and off-site approaches to parking replacement as appropriate.
Following the aspirational Station Access Policy place types, use the following guidelines to replace current
BART parking as follows when developing BART property with TOD: strive for no or limited parking
replacement at “Urban with Parking” Stations; and use the access model to maximize revenue to BART from

. development and ridership when determining a parking replacement strategy at all station types.

3. Utilize strategies including mixed-use development, transportation demand management, and pedestrian-
friendly urban design to encourage reverse-commute, off-peak, and non-work trips on BART and other modes
of non-auto transportation, thereby reducing greenhouse gas emissions.

D. Enhance Benefits of TOD through Investment in the Program

1. Evaluate the financial performance of proposed projects based on sound financial parameters and the ability to
generate transit ridership, fare revenue, lease payments, parking revenues, grant resources, other financial
participation, and/or cost savings. Consider the opportunity cost to the District of delaying or accelerating
development opportunities.

2. Use avariety of financing and governance mechanisms, including joint powers authorities, assessment districts,
improvement districts, and lease credits to achieve station area TOD objectives.

3. As appropriate, and in consideration of District-wide financial needs, reinvest revenues from the sale and lease
of BART land into the TOD Program, informed by the priorities identified in the 4-Year Work Plan.

E. Invest Equitably
Increase scale of development at and near BART stations through catalytic investments in TOD, to help address

the regional shortfall in meeting housing and other sustainable growth needs.

—

2. Implement BART’s adopted Affordable Housing Policy, and aim for a District-wide target of 30 percent of all
units to be affordable, with a priority to very low (<50% AMI), low (51-80% AMI) and/or transit-dependent
populations.

3. Ensure the 4-Year Work Plan addresses how BART will achieve its affordable housing goals.

Transit-Oriented Development Policy



BART STATION ACCESS POLICY
Adopted June 9, 2016

VISION

For more than 40 years, the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District (BART) has been a
steward of major public investment to connect people and places. The BART Station Access Policy
is designed to support the broader livability goals of the Bay Area, reinforce sustainable
communities, and enable riders to get to and from stations safely, comfortably, affordably, and
cost-effectively.

GOALS

A. Safer, Healthier, Greener. Advance the region’s safety, public health, and greenhouse
gas (GHG) and pollution-reduction goals.

1. Ensure safe access for all users of the BART system, including users with disabilities.
2. Promote and invest in active transportation access modes to improve public health.

3. Prioritize the most sustainable access modes, with a focus on the lowest greenhouse gas
and pollutant emissions per trip.

4. Reduce the access mode share of the automobile by enhancing multi-modal access to and
 from BART stations in partnership with communities and access providers.

5. Develop station-level designs that are consistent with the Station Design Access
Hierarchy (Figure 1). :

B. More Riders. Invest in station access to connect more riders cost-effectively, especially
where and when BART has available capacity.

1. As ridership grows, invest in and manage access resources so as not to exacerbate peak
period — peak direction crowding, including by ensuring users can find parking spaces at
all times of day.

2. Develop access solutions that promote reverse-peak and off-peak ridership to optimize
use of the BART system.
C. More Productive and Efficient. Manage access investments, programs, and current
assets to achieve goals at the least cost.

1. Consider life-cycle costs, including capital and operating budget implications, using best
asset management practices. ) :

2. Factor land value in decision-making, prioritizing access that generates the most riders
with the least space. : .

3. Consider the Station Access Investment Framework (Figure 2) in identifying contextual
access investments at each station, and seek to move stations from their existing to their
aspirational types.

D. Better Experience. Be a better neighbor, and strive for an excellent customer experience,
including on the first and last mile of the trip to and from BART stations.

1. Expand station access choices for all riders.



BART STATION ACCESS POLICY

2. Promote Transit-Oriented Development (TOD) on and off of BART property as a
powerful access tool, putting more riders within walking distance of stations, connecting
communities.

3. Collaborate with local jurisdictions to improve station access and create more
sustainable communities, including by promoting access improvements off BART

property. 4
4. Ensure high quality design for access improvements, with careful consideration of the
local context and the quality of the environment accessing BART.
E. Equitable Services. Invest in access choices for all riders, particularly those with the
fewest choices. :
1. Ensure that disadvantaged communities share in the benefits of BART accessibility.

2. Strive to be a partner to reduce the cost of living (i.e., transportation and housing) in the
Bay Area for low-income communities by increasing access and housing options (i.e.
TOD), providing greater access to opportunity.

3. Use Universal Design principles to improve safety and ensure access is available for
everyone at all times.
F. Innovation and Partnerships. Be an innovation leader, and establish durable
partnerships with municipalities, access providers, and technology companies.
1. Involve BART riders in station access decision-making.

2. Develop partnerships with municipalities, transit operators, developers, technology
providers, corporate shuttle providers, Transportation Network Companies, bike share
operators, advocacy groups and other entities to best meet access goals.

3. Continue to research and pilot emerging technologiés and new forms of access services
to keep up with the rapidly-changing transportation ecosystem.

4. Remain technology- and operator-agnostic; make long-term investments in the access
technologies and services that best meet the needs of BART riders.

5. Prioritize projects that leverage other fund sources and local matches both to further
build partnerships and to capture more value from BART investments.

STRATEGIES

Plan, Innovate and Partner
1. Plan for systemwide access mode shift to reduce drive alone rates.
2. Partner with interested stakeholders to improve access to the BART system.
3. Plan all BART facilities to be accessible to all users, including users with disabilities.

Invest and Implement

1. Invest in the pedestrian and bicycle assets with a focus on BART property, and partner to
advance projects off BART property, including partnering on local initiatives, such as
Vision Zero, Safe Routes to School, and Safe Routes to Transit.



BART STATION ACCESS POLICY

2. Invest in transit connections, including investments that improve passenger experience
in transit transfers (shelters, real-time information); seek to reduce barriers to transit
connections; and partner with local transit service providers on last mile improvements.

3. Prioritize station access investments that support ridership growth where and when the
system has capacity.

4. Improve management of existing parking resources, and invest in or partner on strategic
parking resources; including shared parking, on-street parking, programs to maximize
existing parking assets, and locating new parking resources only where other approaches
are not sufficient, consistent with the station typology investment matrix.

Manage and Assess
1. Manage resources we have.
Regularly collect and analyze station access data, and consider emerging data sources.

2
3. Develop a 4-year work plan to identify projects BART staff will advance in the near-term.
4

Revisit the Station Access Policy every ten years.

FIGURE 1: STATION ACCESS DESIGN HIERARCHY

*All Stations must be paratransit accessible
Note: All stations must always remain readily accessible to and usable by persons with disabilities

3



(Axliqow
asn paseys) Auedwao) yiomiaN
uojieyodsueld] Joj S| DNJ :9I0N

‘uolsuedxa Supjied jo uopaniisuod
Ul 1S3AUL I0U [[IM 1HYG
:padeinoau3 JoN

‘papasu se siapiaroid ssadde Jaylo
yum saupied pue ‘syasse Sunsixa
a8eurwWw pue ulRIUIBW |IM 1 HVE
{palepowI0dIy

‘sjeod Adijod

dauejeq sjuaunsaaul Alepuodss
!sjeod Adyjod yiim 1ua1SISUOD
‘Ausdosd 1yyg jo o pue uo awi}
4e1s pue spunj 1SaAUl {JIM 1HVE
1JUaWIsSaAu| Alepuodas

-Anjigeuieisns pue Ayajes

uo snooj ‘sjeo3 Adjjod aAaiyoe

158q s109foud Ayioud !sjeod ssadoe
YHM 1UB3sisuod ‘Auadoud 1yyg

40 4O pue UO 3WI} JBIS puUB spuny

10 sjuawWisaAul azpioud [jIM 1¥vE
;uswlsaAu] Asewtid

14

"A31jod 1UBWIdO[aA3Q PBIUBLIO-1SUDL] S, 1 HYE AG PaufuiIa)ap aq 03 1U3LWIAOJaAsp pajuaLI0-3suD.] Jof Juawaop|dal Bupiipd,
"Buppipd yym suonpIs |10 10 JUBWISIAU] AIDPUOISS D S| JU3W3BDUDW BujIDd,,

1NIAN3Id3IA
olnvy

| LNVIT3Y o1ny
| TYAONYILNI

TVJOWYHILNI
d4ONVY1vd

ONDIHvd
HLIM NV84dn

GIDVENOONT LON

G31vAONINODDY

SINIINLSIANI
AYYANODIS

SLNINLSIANI
ABYINIHC

3dAL NOILLV1S

NYOMIWV YL INFWLSIANI SSIDOV NOILLVILS T 34N

AJI10d SSIO0V NOILVYIS LuVe



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

MEMORANDUM
TO: Board of Directors _ DATE: June 8, 2018
FROM: General Manager
RE: North Concord/Martinez BART Station Transit-Oriented Development Update

At the June 14, 2018 BART Board meeting, staff will provide an informational update on advancement
of Transit-Oriented Development (TOD) at the North Concord/Martinez BART station.

At the August 10, 2017 BART Board meeting, the Board authorized staff to enter into a Memorandum
of Understanding with the City of Concord to include the 20-acre BART-owned property at the North
Concord/Martinez Station in the Concord Reuse Project Specific Plan. At the meeting, staff expressed
the intent to issue a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) with the purpose of selecting a development team
that could participate with BART in the planning efforts, and eventually be responsible for the financing
and construction of development on BART-owned property. Staff recommended selecting a developer
prior to the full completion of the Specific Plan so the BART property can be more logically
incorporated into the infrastructure and master planning efforts under the guidance of the City of
Concord for the adjacent Reuse Project.

Since the August 10, 2017 BART Board meeting, BART staff has been working with the City of
Concord and the consultant team leading the Specific Plan process to create alternative development
concepts for the BART station property consistent with BART’s TOD and Station Access Policies. The
City of Concord intends to release a Draft Specific Plan and a Draft Environmental Impact Report (EIR)
in Winter 2018/19, with Plan adoption tentatively scheduled for Summer 2019. BART staff intends to
release the RFQ in Summer 2018, with the goal of requesting Board authorization to enter into an
Exclusive Negotiating Agreement with the selected team in Winter 2018/19.

For more information, please contact Carl Holmes, Assistant General Manager of Planning,
Development & Construction, at (510) 464-7592 or CHolmes(@bart.gov.

VGrace Crunican

cc: Board Appointed Officers
Deputy General Manager
Executive Staff



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

MEMORANDUM

TO: BART Board of Directors : Date: June 7,2018
FROM: General Manager
SUBJECT: Art Master Plan Update

The Art Program began a master plan process in spring 2017, and will be presenting an overview
of the planning process, the proposed plan, and the program funding strategy to the BART Board
for review and comment.

The BART Board adopted an Art Policy in August 2015. A series of recommendations were
made to guide the development of an Art in Transit program for BART, in keeping with the best
practices of art and transportation programs, including the development of an Art Master Plan to
determine the means and method for integrating an art program with BART that achieved the Art
Policy vision and goals, as well as broader BART goals related to station experience and
placemaking, enhancing rider experience, connecting to communities adjacent to stations, and
professional management of the existing art collection.

Following the review of the master pia.n-, comments from the Board will be incorporated to the
final plan. Additionally, staff will return to the Board in the summer for action on a
recommendation to amend the Art Policy with an Art Program funding proposal.

If you have questions please contact Jennifer Easton, Art Program Manager at 510-874-7328.

Pitn 7
V Grace Crunican

cc:  Board Appointed Officers
Deputy General Manager
Executive Staff

\



CAPITOL
CORRIDOR

JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY:

CAPITOL CORRIDOR
JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY

300 LAKESIDE DRIVE
14™ FLOOR EAST
QAKLAND, CA 94612
(V) 510.464.6995

(F) 510.464.6901
www.capitolcorridororg

MEMO

TO: BART Board of Directors
Grace Crunican, BART General Manager

CC: Bob Powers, BART Deputy General Manage
FROM: David B. Kutrosky, Managing Dirdctor
DATE: June 8, 2018

SUBJECT: CCIJPA Board of Directors Meeting, June 20, 2018

I am submitting this memo to provide an overview of the agenda for the June 20, 2018
CCJPA Board of Directors Meeting in licu of the typical presentation that is covered in
the General Manager’s report.

The agenda for the upcoming June 20, 2018 CCJPA Board Meeting (see attached cover
page) will include the following action items:

¢ Authorization to Apply for Federal Grant Programs: FY 17 CRISI + FY 18 BUILD
e Transfer of Management of WiFi Services' to‘\_’(‘JQJPA_/Caltrans/CA IPR JPAs

o FY 18-19 Marketing and Communications Plan’ ‘

In addition, the CCJPA Board will be provided with:

e Overview of Draft FY 18-19 CCJPA Budget

Overview of Passenger Communications: Service Incidents

Update: Programmed Capital Projects (including the 2018 TIRCP Project Awards)
Update: FY 18 service performance [Ridership +5%; Revenues +5%]

Should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me at
davidk@capitolcorridor.org or 510-464-6993. Thanks.

Attachment: Draft Agenda Page — June 20, 2018 CCJPA Board Meeting



CAPITOL CORRIDOR JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Wednesday June 20, 2018 A simultaneous conference call will take place at:

9 a.m. Placer County Transportation Planning Agency
Martinez City Hall 299 Nevada Street
City Council Chambers Auburn, CA

' = 525 Heurietta Street
CAPITOL |osispyeyies
CORR'DOR (see attached map)

JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY'

\DRAFT AGENDA
1 Call to Order

IL. Roll Call and Pledge of Allegiance
III.  Report of the Chair
IV.  Consent Calendar Actioi

1. Minutes of February 14, 2018 Meeting

2. Budget Update: Travel Time Savings Project

3. Budget Update: State Rail Assistance (SRA) Funded Projects
4, Acceptance of 2018 TIRCP Awards

V. Action and Discussion Items
1. CRISI and BUILD Grant Program Submissions Actioi
2. Transfer of Management of WiFi Services to CCJPA/Caltrans/CA IPR JPAs : Actioi
3. Legislative Matters/Governor’s May Revise State FY 18-19 Budget Actioi
4. FY 18-19 Marketing and Communications Plan and Advertising Services Budget Actioi
5. Overview of Draft FY 18-19 CCJPA Budget [Operations, Administration, Matketing) Inf
6. Overview of Passenger Communications: Service Incidents; On-Board Etiquette; Transit Connections Inf.
7. Update: Programmed Capital Projects and New Rail Vehicle Deliveries Inf
8. Managing Director’s Report , Inf
9. Work Completed Inf.

a. Annual Business Plan Update (FY 2018-19 — FY 2019-20)

b. Station Sign Frames

c. May 7, 2018 Timetable Update (indirect changes due to new San Joaquins timetable)

d. Marketing Activities (February — June 2018)
10. Work in Progress Inf
Sacramento-Roseville 3" Track Project — Phase 1
State Rail Assistance (SRA) Funded Projects
Positive Train Control Update
Station Platform Security Upgrades
Bicycle Access Plan Implementation
On-Board Information System Project
CCJPA Renewable Diesel Pilot Program
Proposed Extension of Capitol Corridor Trains to Salinas

i. Upcoming Marketing Activities

VI.  Board Member Reports
VI.  Public Comments
VIII. Adjournment. Next Meeting Date: 10:00 a.m., September 19, 2018, at BART Boardroom, Kaiser Center,

20" Street Mall, 344-20" Street, 3* Floor, Oakland, CA 94612

Notes: Members of the public may address the Board regarding any item on this agenda. Please complete a "Reqquest to Address the Board" form
(available at the entrance of the Boardroom and at a teleconference location, if applicable) and hand it to the Secretary or designated staff member before
the item is considered by the Boand, If you wish to discuss a matter that is not on the agenda during a regular meeting, you may do so mder Public
Comment. Speakers are lintited to three (3) minutes for any item or matter. The CCIPA Board reserves the right to act on any agenda item,

@ oo apf o

Consent calendar items are considered routine and will be enacted, approved or adopted by one motion unless a request for discussion or explanation is
received from a CCIPA Board Dircctor or from a member of the ardience. The CCIPA Board provides services/accommodations upon request to persons
with disabilities who wish to address Board matters. A request must be made within one and five days in advance of a Board meeting, depending on the
service requested. Call (510) 464-6085 for information,



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

INTER-OFFICE COMMUNICATION

TO: Board of Directors Date: June 8,2018
FROM: Controller-Treasurer

SUBJECT: - QUARTERLY REPORT OF THE CONTROLLER-TREASURER

Attached is the Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer for the quarter ending March 31,
»2018 which will be presented to the Board on June 14, 2018.

Please feel free to call me at 510-464-6070 with any questions you may have.

' R#semarie V. Poblete



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

MEMORANDUM

T0: ' Board of Directors DATE: May 3, 2018
FROM: General Counsel

SUBJECT: Proposed Resolution Directing Specific Advertising Funds

At the request of Director Dufty, attached is a Resolution he will ask you to consider at
the May 10" Board meeting. The proposed Resolution directs the profits derived from a recent
advertising campaign to the Office of Civil Rights.

PROPOSED MOTION:

Adoption of the attached Resolution.

Matt Burrows

cc:  Board Appointed Officers
Executive Staff

Attachment

114723.1



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE ,
SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

In the Matter of Directing Profits

Derived From Paid Advertising by

Progressives for Immigration Reform to '

BART's Office of Civil Rights / Resolution No.

WHEREAS, The San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District (the "District") is
committed to providing safe and efﬁcient transit to all members of thé public and has
passed a Safe Transit Policy! codifying that position; and

WHEREAS, The District's advertising guidelines permit point of view
advertising without regard to the viewpoint expressed, consistent with First Amendment
freedom of speech rulings; aﬁd

WHEREAS, the group Progressives for Immigration Reform recently purchased
advertising within the BART system that resulted in numerous complaints from the
public; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors wishes to direct the advertising revenues of
the District from this paid advertising campaign to the budget of the District's Office of
Civil Rights.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, thaf the Board of Directors directs that
the General Manager dedicate the advertising revenues generated from the recent
advertising by Progressives for Immigration Reform to BART's Office of the Civil

Rights, to enhance Limited English Proficiency (LEP) services with input from BART's

! BART Resolution 5346 (6/22/17)

114172.1



Environmental Justice Committee and that such funds should be considered additive,
over and above existing LEP funding and services; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that it is requested that the Board of Directors be
advised as to the additional LEP services that are provided as a éonsequence of this

funding.

Adopted:

# # #

114172.1




Title VI Fare Equity Analysis for Discontinuing the
BART Discounted Orange Ticket Program for Students
at Participating Middle and High Schools

Prepared by:
San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District
Office of Civil Rights

June 14, 2018










Table of Contents

L. Title VI Fare Equity Analysis

Executive Summary

Section 1: Introduction

Section 2: Minority Disparate Impact & Low Income Disproportionate Burden Analysis
Section 3: Public Participation

Section 4: Equity Findings for Discontinuing Orange Ticket

IL Public Participation Report










EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

To ensure compliance with federal and state civil rights regulations, including but not
limited to Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and FTA Circular 4702.1B [dated October 1,
2012 (Circular)], BART must perform an analysis of any fare or fare media change to
determine if the change has a disparate impact on minority riders or a disproportionate
burden on low-income riders. In accordance with the Circular, BART makes this
determination by comparing the analysis results against a threshold, as defined in its
Disparate Impact and Disproportionate Burden Policy.

The fare change discussed in this report is the discontinuation of the BART Orange magnetic
stripe ticket, which is a fare type. The Orange ticket is sold at participating middle and high
schools at a 50% discount; students pay $16 and receive $32 in BART value. The Orange
ticket program has been in effect since the late 1990s in order to provide students a discount
on school-related trips they make during the week and currently has 147 participating
schools.

FTA-approved methodology has been used to access the effects of a fare type change; draws
on data from BART ridership surveys and BART automated fare collection equipment; and
includes public outreach undertaken in accordance with BART’s Public Participation Plan to
receive public input on discontinuing the BART Plus ticket from low-income, minority, and
limited-English-proficient (LEP) riders.

This report finds that the fare change could disproportionately impact minority and low-
income riders, as Orange ticket users are disproportionately more minority and low-income
compared to BART’s overall ridership, exceeding BART’s Disparate Impact/Disproportionate
Burden Policy threshold of 10%, as shown in the table below.

) ) Non- Sample Low Non-Low- Sample
Minority Minority LGt Sizep Income |Income LG Sizep
All Riders 63.3% 36.7%| 100.0% 5211 26.4% 73.6% 100.0% 4,880
Student Riders Using the
50% Discount Orange 77.6% 22.4%| 100.0%) 58 38.0% 62.0% 100.0% 50
Ticket
Difference from All Riders 14.3% 11.6%

This report concludes that existing fare product alternatives avoid, minimize, or mitigate
adverse effects of Orange ticket program termination. The existing discounted fare medium
alternatives to the Orange ticket include the Clipper youth discount card and the youth red
magnetic stripe ticket, as shown in the table below. These fare products offer better or
similar fares and, particularly in the case of the youth discount Clipper card, enhanced
benefits compared to the Orange mag-stripe ticket.





Youth Fare Medium Surcharge Use

Discount How to Obtain Additional Benefits

Alternative per Trip | Limitations
Youth Clipper Card 50% No None--good |At 3 Clipper Customer |Youth Clipper card is
any time or |Service Centers; at free of charge. If card
day and for |more than 20 lost or stolen, new card
any purpose |locations through can be obtained and card

Clipper partner transit|balance of funds
agencies; viamail, e- |restored. Value can be
mail, or fax (proof of |loaded at any BART
eligibility required)  [ticket vending machine
using cash, credit or
debit card; autoload also
available.
Youth Red Mag Stripe 50% Yes (25 None--good |Via mail or at BART --
Ticket cents) any time or |Customer Services
day and for |Center, Lake Merritt
any purpose |Station
Orange Ticket 50% Yes (25 Only for  [Sold only at --
cents) school-related|participating schools
purposes,
travel Monday
through
Friday

As part of the Title VI assessment, BART has undertaken public outreach to receive public
input on discontinuing the Orange ticket from low-income, minority, and LEP populations, in
accordance with BART’s Public Participation Plan (completed in May 2010 and revised in
July 2011), and the Circular.

In order to publicize the Orange ticket survey and online survey link to parents of Orange
ticket riders, extensive outreach was conducted with all participating schools. The survey
remained open for six weeks from February 20, 2018 through April 6, 2018. The survey was
offered in English, Spanish, and Chinese. Additional language support services were offered
in Korean, Tagalog, and Vietnamese and all surveys were completed online. An incentive in
the form of a $100 BART Clipper card drawing was offered as a prize for those households
that returned the survey. A copy of the survey is included in the attached Public
Participation Report.

The outreach effort resulted in 103 total survey responses. Of the 103 responses, 59 were
from parents of students who used the Orange ticket. The remaining 44 responses were
excluded from consideration either because respondents’ children did not use the Orange
ticket or the respondent was unsure if their children used the Orange ticket.

Fifty-eight survey respondents chose to report ethnicity, and 77.6% of these respondents
identified as minority 50 survey respondents elected to report income, and of these 38.0%

identified as low income.

The survey included a question for the public to comment on how the elimination of the
Orange ticket program would impact the respondent’s household:

Question 7: How would the elimination of the Orange Ticket School Discount Program
impact your household, if at all?

All of the survey responses for Question 7 are included in Appendix PP-C.






Approximately half of respondents (29 of 59) were either supportive of eliminating the
Orange ticket program or had no comment about the change. Below is a sample response:

"Assuming we can receive the same youth discount with a youth discount Clipper card,
there is no impact at all. Or, it means greater convenience, as we can just purchase the
tickets easily, rather than going through the BART Orange program. I am glad to see
the switch.”

The remaining half of respondents (30 of 59) expressed concerns about the change. Some of
these comments specifically addressed the transition from Orange tickets to Clipper cards,
including the following:

“Makes it harder because you have to pre-pay Clipper and keep it separate for school
and personal use.”

However, many of these comments that expressed concerns seemed rooted in confusion
about how the change would impact their households. Despite the fact that the survey form
itself reiterated that a youth discount was available through the Clipper card, many
respondents believed this change would result in significant financial hardship. Others did
not realize that Clipper cards could be used for BART rides. Some comments also raised
concerns about whether BART would continue to accept Orange tickets that have already
been purchased. Should the Orange ticket program be discontinued, Orange tickets will
continue to be accepted at the fare gate.

An analysis of the responses by protected populations shows that 46.7% of the 45 minority
respondents either supported or did not comment on the elimination of the Orange ticket,
while 53.3% did not support the proposal. Of the 19 low-income respondents, 47.4% either
supported or had no comment, and 52.6% were not in support. Not commenting on a
proposal can indicate neutrality or potentially some level of acceptance of it. As noted above,
analysis of the comments shows that many people were confused regarding implementation
of the youth discount Clipper card, costs, and the fact that those who have pre-existing
Orange tickets could still use the tickets in the system.

Input was provided by members of BART’s Title VI/Environmental Justice (E]) Advisory
Committee and Limited English Proficiency (LEP) Advisory Committee. BART formed the
two committees to ensure that the District is taking reasonable steps to incorporate Title VI
and Environmental Justice principles and the needs of LEP populations in BART’s
transportation decisions. Committee members are appointed to represent the needs and
viewpoints of minority, low-income, and/or LEP populations and are active participants in
local community-based organizations that serve one or more of these groups.

BART staff met with the Title VI/E] and LEP Advisory Committees in a special joint meeting
on April 2, 2018, with the Title VI/E] Advisory Committee on May 7, 2018, and the LEP
Advisory Committee on May 22, 2015. Members were supportive of eliminating the Orange
ticket fare media and program. One member stated that her organization hosted a
BART/MTC mag-stripe ticket surcharge mitigation outreach event which was very successful
in helping people sign up for Clipper cards, including the youth discount Clipper card.

An equity finding is made after considering both the fare change analysis results and public
comment received. This report finds that the fare change could disproportionately impact





minority and low-income riders, as Orange ticket users are disproportionately more
minority and low-income compared to BART’s overall ridership, exceeding the DI/DB Policy
threshold of 10%. However, the disproportionate impacts are not adverse because the
existing youth discount Clipper card and the red magnetic stripe youth ticket fare products
offer better or similar fares and, particularly in the case of the youth discount Clipper card,
enhanced benefits compared to the Orange mag-stripe ticket. Therefore, the report
concludes that the termination of the Orange ticket program will not result in a disparate
impact or disproportionate burden on minority riders or low-income riders, respectively.





Section 1: Introduction

To ensure compliance with federal and state civil rights regulations, including but not
limited to Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and FTA Circular 4702.1B [dated October 1,
2012 (Circular)], BART must perform an analysis of any fare or fare media change to
determine if the change has a disparate impact on minority riders or a disproportionate
burden on low-income riders when compared to overall users. In accordance with the
Circular, BART makes this determination by comparing the analysis results against a
threshold, as defined in its Disparate Impact and Disproportionate Burden Policy (DI/DB
Policy), adopted on July 11, 2013 by the BART Board.

The fare change discussed in this report is the discontinuation of the BART magnetic stripe
Orange ticket, which is a discounted ticket for students attending middle or secondary
schools that participate in the Orange ticket program. Almost 150 schools currently
participate in the program, and a list of these schools is provided in Appendix PP-D. Per
BART policy, the Orange ticket may be used only for trips to and from school or school-
sponsored events and on Monday through Friday only. Discounted Orange tickets have been
sold to students by program-participant schools since the late 1990s.

The BART Orange ticket gives a discount of 50% to the full fare. The table below shows the
pricing structure of BART Orange tickets, which are sold only by participating schools.
Schools collect payment in advance from students and place ticket orders directly with
BART. The student pays a discounted amount of $16 and gets Orange tickets with a BART
value of $32.

Value of Orange Ticket Price Student pays for Orange | Discount Student Receives
Ticket
$32 $16 50%
Table 1

Effective January 1, 2018, BART implemented two fare changes that are relevant to this
report. First, trips made with magnetic stripe tickets began to have a per-trip surcharge
added; the surcharge does not apply to trips made with the Clipper regional smart card. For
Orange magnetic stripe tickets, the per-trip surcharge is $0.25, a 50% discount to the $0.50
per-trip surcharge on regular fare blue magnetic stripe tickets. Second, the age youth
became eligible for a 50% discount was increased from through age 12 to through age 18.

When the Orange ticket program began in the late 1990s, a technical limitation was present
in BART’s automated fare collection equipment that meant an Orange ticket could not have
value added to it at a BART add value machine so the rider could exit the system. To address
this technical limitation, the Orange ticket had to have a “last ride feature” so that a rider
with a nickel or more left on the ticket could use that ticket to take one last ride within the
BART system. This technical limitation is not present in the youth Clipper card or the youth
Red mag-stripe ticket, and so these fare media do not have a last ride feature.

The level of discount the last ride feature provides depends on both the amount of value
remaining on the ticket and the fare for the last trip taken, and so the discount varies by
rider. For example, BART’s average fare is currently $4.00, so at a 50% discount, the average
fare would be $2.00. If a student has a nickel left on their ticket, the value of the last ride





feature would be $1.95; if the student has $1.15 left on the ticket, the value of the last ride
feature would be $0.85, or a $1.10 less. Thus, the last ride feature benefits riders
differentially. With Clipper, riders neither have unused value on their tickets nor receive
widely varying discounts.

The youth Clipper card has additional advantages over the Orange ticket. The youth Clipper
card can be used to get the 50% discount any time, any day, and for any purpose, which is
not the case for the Orange ticket. The discount the student gets with the youth discount
Clipper card on weekends and for non-school related trips should more than make up for
any differential value of the Orange ticket last ride feature. In addition, youths who use
Clipper do not pay the $0.25 per-trip magnetic stripe ticket surcharge, which could equal a
monthly savings of $10 if the student uses BART to commute to and from school. Also, as
noted above, youth Clipper cards are automatically registered when they are issued so that if
the youth Clipper card is ever lost or stolen, a new card can be obtained and the balance of
funds at the time on the card restored. Value can be loaded onto the Clipper card at any
BART ticket vending machine using cash, credit or debit card, and there is also an option for
auto-loading funds onto the card. Thus, the youth discount Clipper card provides the 50%
discount, has no per-trip mag-stripe surcharge, and offers students significantly more
functionality as a fare medium than the Orange ticket.

This report uses FTA-approved methodology to assess the effects of a fare type change;

draws on data from BART ridership surveys, BART ticket sales, MTC card-issuance, and

BART automated fare collection equipment; and includes public outreach undertaken in
accordance with BART’s Public Participation Plan.





Section 2: Minority Disparate Impact and Low-
Income Disproportionate Burden Analysis

2.1 Assessing Fare Change Effects

This section describes the data and methodology used to assess the effects of a fare change
on minority and low-income riders, in accordance with the fare equity analysis procedures
in the Circular.

Data analysis shall include the following steps as outlined in Chap. IV-19 of the Circular:
i.  Determine the number and percent of users of each fare media being changed;
ii.  Review fares before the change and after the change;
iii. =~ Compare the differences between minority users and non-minority users; and
iv.  Compare the differences for each particular fare media between low-income users
and non-low-income users.

As stated in the Circular App. K-11, comparing protected riders and non-protected riders can
“yield even clearer depictions of differences.” For fare type changes, BART will assess
whether protected riders are disproportionately more likely to use the affected fare type or
media, and if such effects are adverse. In accord with BART’s Disparate
Impact/Disproportionate Burden Policy (DI/DB Policy), impacts will be considered
disproportionate when the difference between the affected fare types’ protected ridership
share and the overall system’s protected ridership share is greater than 10%.

When the survey sample size of the ridership for the affected fare type is too small to permit
a finding of statistical significance, BART will collect additional data if viable. If the resulting
survey sample size is also too small to permit a finding of statistical significance, BART may
conclude that a finding of disparate impact and/or disproportionate burden cannot be
determined based on the available data.

Should BART find that minority riders experience disparate impacts from the proposed
change, BART should take steps to avoid, minimize, or mitigate disparate impacts. If the
additional steps do not mitigate the potential disparate impacts on minority riders, pursuant
to the Circular, BART may proceed with the proposed fare change if BART can show that:

e A substantial legitimate justification for the proposed fare change exists; and,
e There are no alternatives serving the same legitimate objectives that would have a less
disparate impact on minority populations.

If a finding is made that the proposed fare change would place a disproportionate burden on
low-income riders compared to non-low income riders, BART will take steps to avoid,
minimize, or mitigate impacts where practicable. BART shall also describe alternatives
available to low-income populations affected by the fare change. Mitigation is neither
necessary nor required where no disparate impact and/or disproportionate burden is found.





2.2 Methodology and Data Used

Circular Chap. IV-19 states that an agency shall analyze any available information from
ridership surveys when evaluating the adverse effects of fare changes. The fare change
under study is a change to a specific fare media type, and the methodology and data used are
described below.

2.2.1 Methodology

BART uses FTA-approved methodology to assess the effects of a fare type change. The
methodology for fare type changes assesses whether protected riders are disproportionately
more likely to use the affected fare type or media. Recent rider survey data are used to make
this determination. In accordance with the DI/DB Policy, impacts are considered
disproportionate when the difference between the protected ridership using the affected
fare type and the protected ridership of the overall system is greater than 10%.

2.2.2 Data Sources

A. BART Customer Satisfaction Survey

The BART Customer Satisfaction Survey provides data on BART’s overall ridership.
Conducted every other September, this survey allows BART to track trends in rider
satisfaction, demographics, and BART usage across the system. The most recent survey
conducted in 2016 has a sample size of 5,342, including weekday peak, off-peak, and
weekend riders. Survey data provides demographic information on BART riders’ fare type
and media usage.

For the 2016 Customer Satisfaction Survey and the Orange ticket survey distributed as
described above, minority includes riders who are Asian, Hispanic (any race), Black/African
American, American Indian/Alaskan Native, and Other (including multi-racial). Non-
minority is defined as white. Responses to the 2016 Customer Satisfaction Survey indicate
that 63.3% of BART riders are minority.

For the purposes of this analysis, low-income is defined as 200% of the federal poverty level.
This level is approximated by considering both the household size and household income of

respondents to the 2016 Customer Satisfaction Survey and respondents to the Orange ticket
survey. The household size and household income combinations that comprise “low-income”
are as follows:

LOW INCOME

Household Household
Size Income
1+ Under $25K
2+ Under $35K
3+ Under $S40K
4+ Under $50K
5+ Under $60K

Table 2-1





As an example, a household of two or more people with an income of $33,000 would be
considered low-income.

The eight income ranges used in the 2016 Customer Satisfaction Survey are the following:
e Under $25,000

e $25,000-$34,999
e $35,000-$39,999
e $40,000-$49,999
e $50,000-$59,999
e $60,000-$74,999
e $75,000-$99,999
e $100,000+

According to 2016 Customer Satisfaction Survey responses, 26.4% of BART riders are
considered low income.

B. 2018 Survey for Parents of Youth at Schools Participating in BART’s Student
Discount Orange Ticket Program

This survey provides data for middle and high school students who currently use the 50%
discounted Orange ticket (“Rider Group 1”). BART with the assistance of Imprenta
Communications Group surveyed parents and guardians of middle and high school students
at the 147 schools participating in the Orange ticket program. The survey response period
was open from February 20, 2018 through April 6, 2018, and schools were offered the choice
of either distributing the survey online or handing out paper surveys for parents to
complete. An incentive of a $100 Clipper card was offered as a prize in a drawing for those
households that returned the survey.

While the option to drop off paper surveys to the school was provided, all the schools chose
to publicize the online survey link. Imprenta also kept in close contact with Orange ticket
school administrators to answer questions and urge active participation in getting surveys
returned. The survey was offered in English, Spanish, and Chinese. Additional language
support services were offered in Korean, Tagalog, and Vietnamese, and all surveys were
completed online.

BART received 103 responses to this survey, 59 of which were from parents of students who
used the Orange ticket. The remaining 44 responses were excluded from consideration
either because their children did not use the Orange ticket or the respondent was unsure if
their children used the Orange ticket.

Of the 59 responses from parents of students who did use the Orange ticket, 58 chose to
report ethnicity and 50 elected to report income. Due to the relatively small sample sizes,
margins of error for data from this survey will be relatively high (+/- 11.6 percentage
points). The relatively small sample size was expected, however, as the total universe of
Orange ticket users is also relatively small (approximately 350 students per weekday,
assuming round-trips). The relatively low response rate, even after the significant outreach
undertaken as described in the attached Public Participation Report, could also indicate that
potential survey takers opted not to take the survey because elimination of the Orange ticket
was not of particular concern to them. A comparison of the current response rate of 59 to
the response rate of almost 300 to a fall 2014 Orange ticket survey, as described in the next





section, could indicate students have already begun the shift from the Orange ticket to the
Clipper youth card, which gives a 50% discount and provides additional benefits.

These survey results, shown in the table below, indicate that students using Orange tickets
are more minority and low-income than BART’s overall ridership.

Rider Group 1: 50% Student Discount Orange Ticket Rider Demographics from 2018 Orange Ticket
Elimination Survey Results

Non- S 1 L Non-Low-
Minority on Total ample ow on-Low

Minority Size Income |Income L

Sample
Size

All Riders 63.3% 36.7%| 100.0% 5211 26.4% 73.6%) 100.0%

4,880

Student Riders Using the

Ticket

50% Discount Orange 77.6% 22.4%| 100.0% 58 38.0% 62.0% 100.0%

50

Difference from All Riders 14.3% 11.6%

Table 2-2

C. 2014 Survey for Parents of Youth at Schools Participating in BART's Student
Discount Orange Ticket Program

As the sample size of the 2018 survey of Orange ticket users was relatively small, this report
also provides data on Orange ticket student riders (“Rider Group 2”) gathered during fall
2014 for the “Title VI Fare Equity Analysis of Possible Changes to the Fare Discount Offered
to Youth Riders” (2017 Youth Fare Equity Analysis), which the BART Board approved in June
2017. To analyze the fare change options, BART with the assistance of Imprenta
Communications Group gathered survey data during fall 2014 about youth riders from age 5
through 18 years, including students who used Orange tickets. The parent or guardian of the
youth rider provided the data to ensure the accuracy of the income data. The Orange ticket
student data gathered for the 2017 Youth Fare Equity Analysis is within the parameters of
what is considered appropriate and current survey data (within five years) for use in a Title
VI fare equity analysis, per the Circular.

The fall 2014 survey had almost 300 responses regarding Orange ticket student ethnicity
and household income. These results show Orange ticket student riders to be very similar to
BART'’s overall ridership, with an identical percentage of minority riders and a variation of
less than 3% for low-income between the Orange ticket users and BART’s overall ridership.
The data in Table 2-3 is provided for informational and comparison purposes only and is not
used in this report to make a finding of disproportionate impact.

Rider Group 2: 50% Student Discount Orange Ticket Rider Demographics from 2017 Youth Fare
Equity Analysis

Minority Non- Total Sample Low Non-Low-

Minority Size Income Income LeE

Sample
Size

All Riders 63.3% 36.7% 100.0% 5,211 26.4% 73.6% 100.0%

4,880

Student Riders Using the
50% Discount Orange Ticket

63.3% 36.7% 100.0% 294 29.0% 71.0% 100.0%

276

Difference from All Riders 0.0% 2.6%

Table 2-3

2.3 Analysis Results

Pursuant to the Circular, BART is to perform an analysis of any fare change to determine if
the change disproportionately impacts minority and/or low-income riders. In accordance

10






with the Circular, BART is to make this determination by comparing the analysis results
against the appropriate threshold defined in BART’s DI/DB Policy.

This section applies BART’s DI/DB Policy threshold to the survey data described in the
previous section.

2.3.1 Minority Disparate Impact and Low-Income Disproportionate Burden Analyses and
Findings

Survey data gathered in 2018 shows that students using the Orange ticket are more minority
and low-income than BART’s overall ridership. Students using Orange tickets are 14.2%
more minority than BART’s overall ridership and 11.6% more low-income. Each of these
differences exceeds the DI/DB Policy threshold of 10%.

2.4 Alternatives Available for People Affected by the Fare Change

BART Orange ticket users have fare media alternatives available to them that would avoid,
minimize, or mitigate disproportionate impacts of discontinuing the ticket.

2.4.1 Alternatives Available to Avoid, Minimize or Mitigate Disproportionate Impact

A. Youth Discount Clipper Card

The first alternative is the youth Clipper card, which is free of charge, and gives youth riders
age 5 through 18 a 50% youth discount on BART. Customers can get their free youth Clipper
cards immediately at three Clipper Customer Service Centers (two in San Francisco and one
in Oakland) and from Clipper partner transit agencies at more than 20 locations throughout
the Bay Area. Youth Clipper card applications can also be submitted via mail, e-mail, or fax.
The completed application must be accompanied by proof of eligibility such as a copy of a
birth certificate, passport, or other official document verifying age.

Youth Clipper cards are automatically registered when they are issued. If the youth Clipper
card is ever lost or stolen, a new card can be obtained and the balance of funds at the time on
the card restored by contacting Clipper Customer Service. Value can be loaded onto the
Clipper card at any BART ticket vending machine using cash, credit or debit card, and there
is also an option for auto-loading funds onto the card once the card’s balance reaches a
certain level.

Extensive outreach was conducted on the youth discount Clipper card by BART and MTC
staff from December 2017 through March 2018, with many youth applications handed out at
29 outreach events. Information on this outreach can be found in the attached Public
Participation Report.

B. Red Magnetic Stripe Discount Ticket for Youth age 5 through 18
The second alternative is the red mag-stripe ticket that can be purchased by mail or at the
BART Customer Services Center at Lake Merritt Station. The red mag-stripe ticket also

provides a 50% discount for youth ages 5 through 18 and, like the Orange ticket, has a 25-
cent per trip magnetic stripe ticket surcharge.

11





2.4.2 Comparison of Alternatives Available to Avoid, Minimize or Mitigate Disproportionate
Impact

This section provides data that shows student riders are choosing to use the Clipper discount
youth card instead of the Orange ticket, which can indicate they find the Clipper discount youth
card to be a better fare medium and a better choice for them compared to the Orange ticket.

A. Orange Ticket Sales

The graph below shows the decline over time in Orange ticket purchases by schools after the

implementation in January 2018 of the mag-stripe per-trip surcharge and extension of a
50% discount to youth ages 13 through 18.

Orange Tickets Sold to Schools

5000
4500
4000
3500 — ]
3000 -
2500 —
2000
1500
1000

500

# of Tickets Sold

o
Jan-17

Feb-17

Apr-17

May-17

Jun-17
Jul-17
Jan-18
Feb-18
Mar-18

Dec-17 ]

Mar-17
Aug-17
Sep-17
Oct-17
Nov-17

Apr-18
May-18

Figure 2-1

Following Board approval of the 50% youth discount in June 2017, BART staff notified
schools that the Orange ticket program could be going away effective July 1, 2018. The spike
in sales from July 2017 through November 2018 could be attributed to the school
administrators of the Orange tickets not being aware of how the 50% student discount
would be applied as of January 2018, when the change would be implemented. Accordingly,
they may have stocked up on Orange tickets in the remaining months of the program.

Since implementation of the fare change in January 2018, there has been a significant decline
in Orange ticket purchases by schools, as shown in the table below. For example, comparing
March 2017 to March 2018, tickets sales have declined by almost 75% to 1,292 from 4,850.
This could be attributed to extensive outreach by BART and MTC staff on the availability of
free youth discount Clipper cards that give the 50% youth discount and allow students to
avoid paying the discounted 25-cent per trip Orange ticket surcharge, and educating the
public and administrators on the extension of the 50% youth discount for riders aged 13-18.

Further information on this education and outreach can be found in the attached Public
Participation Report.

12





Change Yr-

2017 2018 to-Yr
January 2120 2265 6.8%
February 3030 1255 -58.6%
March 4850 1292 -73.4%
April 2213 976  -55.9%
May 3471 1300 -62.5%

Table 2-4

B. Clipper Card Issuance

The following table provided by MTC shows that there has been an increase in youth
discount Clipper card applications and issuance by various agencies and through MTC from
FY14 through to FY18.

Table 2-5: Youth Discount Clipper Card Issuance by Agenc
FY 14-15 Quarter 3 = FY 15-16 Quarter 3  FY 16-17 Quarter 3  FY 17-18 Quarter 3
2015 2015 2015 2016 2016 2016 2017 2017 2017 2018 2018 2018
Jan- Feb- Mar- Jan- Feb- Mar- Jan- Feb- Mar- Jan- Feb- Mar-
15 15 15 16 16 16 17 17 17 18 18 18

Card Issuance by
Operator:
Mail/Email/Fax

Mail In Applications:
Youth 380 | 320 | 386 | 498 | 485 | 485| 454 | 433 | 5111178 773

Card Issuance by
Operator:
Embarcadero Station

Bay Crossings
Embarcadero Station:
Youth 155 121 144 129 137 124 169 131 153 367 291 396

Card Issuance by
Operator: AC Transit
Card Issuance by
Operator: BART
| BART:YOUth* | | | [ [ | | | | [ 171] 117] 118]
Card Issuance by
Operator: SF Muni

Total by month

Email/mail/fax and
major distributors 818 | 1133 | 1181 | 1204 | 1145 | 1042 | 1199 | 1082 | 1250 | 2319 | 2093 | 1907

Total by quarter

Email/mail/fax and

major distributors 3132 3391 3531 6319
*Through May 2017, youth applications received at BART were processed as mail/email/fax applications.

13





Table 2.5 shows there has been a very dramatic recent increase in issuance of youth discount
Clipper cards. Card applications have grown by 79% from January-March 2017 when
compared to January-March 2018. Possible reasons for this could include the impact of
handing out many youth applications at all the mag-stripe ticket mitigation events and the
extensive outreach undertaken to educate the public on the youth discount Clipper card,
which are described in detail in the attached Public Participation Report.

C. Youth Discount Clipper Card vs. Orange Ticket Usage Data

The following graph shows that youth Clipper card usage has grown by 324% from January-
March 2018 compared to the same three-month period in 2017, while student Orange ticket
trips have decreased by 39.7%.

Student & Clipper Youth Trips by Quarter
400,000
350,000
300,000
250,000
200,000

Trips

150,000

100,000
o I i B I i
0

2017 Q1 2017 Q2 2017 Q3 2017 Q4 2018 Q1

m Student Orange Ticket  m Clipper Youth

Figure 2-2

14





D. Comparison of Fare Media Providing Youth Discount

The table below shows the differences between using the youth fare medium alternatives for
Clipper and mag stripe fare media as of January 2018.

Youth Fare IV!edlum Discount Surchal:ge . .Use. How to Obtain Additional Benefits
Alternative per Trip | Limitations
Youth Clipper Card 50% No None--good |At 3 Clipper Customer |Youth Clipper card is
any time or [Service Centers; at free of charge. If card
day and for |more than 20 lost or stolen, new card
any purpose |locations through can be obtained and card
Clipper partner transit|balance of funds
agencies; viamail, e- |restored. Value can be
mail, or fax (proof of |loaded at any BART
eligibility required) [ticket vending machine
using cash, credit or
debit card; autoload also
available.
Youth Red Mag Stripe 50% Yes (25 None--good |Via mail or at BART --
Ticket cents) any time or |Customer Services
day and for |Center, Lake Merritt
any purpose |Station
Orange Ticket 50% Yes (25 Only for  |Sold only at --
cents) school-related|participating schools
purposes,
travel Monday
through
Friday
Table 2-6

The Circular’s requirement regarding alternatives provides for latitude, from the stricter
requirement to “avoid” through to the less strict direction to “minimize” the effects of the
fare change. This report finds that although there may be impacts to minority and low-
income users as the Policy’s 10% threshold is exceeded based on a relatively small survey
sample size, existing fare products such as the youth discount Clipper card and the youth red
mag stripe ticket offer better or similar fares and fare media functionality than the Orange
ticket. As mentioned previously, BART and MTC staff educated the public on the availability
of free youth discount Clipper cards and how using the Clipper card avoids the per-trip
surcharge on mag-stripe tickets (the surcharge is 25 cents for Orange tickets) and that a
50% discount was now available to youth ages 13 through 18. Further information on this
education and outreach can be found in the attached Public Participation Report. The next
section summarizes these public participation efforts

15





Section 3: Public Participation

Consistent with BART’s Public Participation Plan completed in May 2010 and revised in July
2011, BART conducted outreach to inform the public and solicit feedback on ending the
BART Orange ticket program. Extensive outreach was conducted through schools
administering the Orange ticket program to specifically reach low income, minority and
Limited English Proficient (LEP) parents of children using the Orange ticket.

3.1 Process for Soliciting Public Input

BART reached out to Orange ticket program administrators at all 147 schools that currently
participate in the program. In order to publicize the survey and survey link, extensive
outreach was conducted with the schools. The survey remained open for six weeks from
February 20, 2018 through April 6, 2018. Prior to February 20, 2018, preliminary phone
calls were made to administrators so they would be aware of the upcoming outreach. Each
administrator received three emails and multiple follow-up phone calls requesting them to
share the online and paper surveys with parents of students who use the Orange tickets.
While the option to drop off paper surveys to the school was provided, all of the schools
chose to publicize the online survey link. Email responses from school administrators and
the full list of contacted schools is included in the attached Public Participation Report.

The survey was offered in English, Spanish, and Chinese. Additional language support
services were offered in Korean, Tagalog, and Vietnamese and all surveys were completed
online. A $100 BART Clipper card prize drawing was offered as an incentive for those
households that returned the survey. A copy of the survey is included in the attached Public
Participation Report.

Presentations were also made to BART’s Title VI/Environmental Justice Advisory Committee
and Limited English Proficiency (LEP) Advisory Committees in April and May 2018.

3.2 Survey Respondent Demographics

The outreach effort resulted in 103 total survey responses. Of the 103 responses, 59 were
from parents of students who used the Orange ticket. The remaining 44 responses were
excluded from consideration either because the respondents’ children did not use the
Orange ticket or the respondent was unsure if their children used the Orange ticket.

Fifty-eight survey respondents chose to report ethnicity, and 77.6% of these respondents
identified as minority; 50 survey respondents elected to report income, and of these 38.0%
identified as low income. The attached public participation report has more detailed
information on demographics and provides a database of all survey respondents and
comments received.

3.3 Public Comments

The survey included a question for the public to comment on how the elimination of the
Orange ticket program would impact the respondent’s household:

16





Question 7: How would the elimination of the Orange Ticket School Discount Program
impact your household, if at all?

All of the survey responses for Question 7 are included in Appendix PP-C.

Approximately half of respondents (29 of 59) were either supportive of eliminating the
Orange ticket program or had no comment about the change. Below is a sample response:

"Assuming we can receive the same youth discount with a youth discount Clipper card,
there is no impact at all. Or, it means greater convenience, as we can just purchase the
tickets easily, rather than going through the BART Orange program. I am glad to see
the switch.”

The remaining half of respondents (30 of 59) expressed concerns about the change. Some of
these comments specifically addressed the transition from Orange tickets to Clipper cards,
including the following:

“Makes it harder because you have to pre-pay Clipper and keep it separate for school
and personal use.”

However, many of these comments that expressed concerns seemed rooted in confusion
about how the change would impact their households. Despite the fact that the survey form
itself reiterated that a youth discount was available through the Clipper card, many
respondents believed this change would result in significant financial hardship. Others did
not realize that Clipper cards could be used for BART rides.

Some comments also raised concerns about whether BART would continue to accept Orange
tickets that have already been purchased. Should the Orange ticket program be
discontinued, Orange tickets will continue to be accepted at the fare gate.

An analysis of the responses by protected populations shows that 46.7% of the 45 minority
respondents either supported or did not comment on the elimination of the Orange ticket,
while 53.3% did not support the proposal. Of the 19 low-income respondents, 47.4% either
supported or had no comment, and 52.6% were not in support. Not commenting on a
proposal can indicate neutrality or potentially some level of acceptance of it. As noted above,
analysis of the comments shows that many people were confused regarding implementation
of the youth discount Clipper card, costs, and the fact that those who have pre-existing
Orange tickets could still use the tickets in the system.

Input was provided by members of BART’s Title VI/Environmental Justice Advisory
Committee and Limited English Proficiency (LEP) Advisory Committee. BART formed the
two committees to ensure that the District is taking reasonable steps to incorporate Title VI
and Environmental Justice principles and the needs of LEP populations in BART’s
transportation decisions. Committee members are appointed to represent the needs and
viewpoints of minority, low-income, and/or LEP populations and are active participants in
local community-based organizations that serve one or more of these groups.

BART staff met with the Title VI/Environmental Justice and LEP Advisory Committee in a
Special Joint meeting on April 2, 2018, the Title VI/E] meeting on May 7, 2018, and the LEP
Advisory Committee on May 22, 2015. Members were supportive of eliminating the Orange
ticket fare media and program. One member stated that her organization hosted a

17





BART/MTC mag-stripe ticket surcharge mitigation outreach event which was very successful
in helping people sign up for Clipper cards. She noted that BART/MTC staff provided very
helpful information on the benefits of and how to get the youth discount Clipper card at this
event and expressed approval of the mitigation measure of moving youth towards Clipper
cards.

18





Section 4: Equity Findings for Discontinuing
Orange Ticket

This section provides equity findings for the fare change of discontinuing the Orange ticket
program. An equity finding is made after considering both the fare change analysis results
described in Section 2, as well as public comment received, as described in Section 3 and in
greater detail in the attached Public Participation Report.

2.5 Minority Disparate Impact and Low-Income Disproportionate Burden
Finding

This report finds that there may be impacts to minority and low-income Orange ticket users
as survey results show they are more minority and low-income than BART’s overall
ridership, exceeding the DI/DB Policy’s 10% threshold, but that existing fare products—the
youth discount Clipper card most notably as well as the youth red mag-stripe ticket--offer
better or similar fares and fare media functionality compared to the Orange ticket. Even
with Orange ticket availability, data shows that Orange ticket trips decreased by almost 40%
in the first three months of 2018 compared to that time period in 2017, and youth discount
Clipper card issuance and usage have gone up dramatically. The decline in Orange ticket
trips and the increase in Clipper card use indicates youth riders find the Clipper youth
discount card to be a very good option for their trip making purposes.

As mentioned previously, BART and MTC staff educated the public on the availability of free
youth discount Clipper cards and that using the youth Clipper card would avoid the Orange
mag-stripe ticket per-trip surcharge of 25 cents (a 50% discount to the full fare mag-stripe
surcharge), and on the extension of the youth discount for ages 13-18. A BART YouTube
video and efforts from BART Police Department further helped publicize the youth discount
Clipper cards. Further information on this education and outreach can be found in the
attached Public Participation Report.

Although significant outreach and education were undertaken, some public comments show
that people were confused regarding implementation of the youth discount Clipper card,
costs, and the fact that those who still had pre-existing Orange tickets could still use the
tickets in the system. While it appears that more education and awareness of Clipper youth
card and discount would have been helpful, it should be noted that concurrent with this
Orange ticket Title VI outreach process and surveying, the multiple outreach processes
described above were occurring to encourage youth discount Clipper card registration and
the public is potentially much more aware now of the better options available to them than
during the Orange ticket elimination outreach. These various types of outreach are
described in the attached Public Participation Report in more detail.

BART staff met on this topic with the Title VI/Environmental Justice and LEP Advisory
Committees in a special joint meeting on April 2, 2018, with the Title VI/E] Advisory
Committee on May 7, 2018, and the LEP Advisory Committee on May 22, 2018. Advisory
committee members were supportive of eliminating the Orange ticket fare media and
program.

19





2.6 Equity Finding Conclusion

This report finds that the fare change of eliminating the Orange ticket may impact minority
and low-income users of the Orange tickets, as they are more minority and low-income than
BART’s overall ridership, exceeding the DI/DB Policy’s 10% threshold. However, the
disproportionate impacts are not adverse because existing fare products offer better or
similar fares and fare media as the Orange ticket. Therefore, the report concludes that the
elimination of the Orange ticket and the termination of the Orange ticket program will not
resultin a disparate impact or disproportionate burden on minority riders or low-income
riders, respectively.

20















Title VI Fare Equity Analysis for Discontinuing the
BART Discounted Orange Ticket Program for Students at
Participating Middle and High Schools

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION REPORT

June 14, 2018










Public Participation Report
Table of Contents

IL.

Report and Analysis

Section 1: Public Participation Process
Section 2: Public Comments

Section 3: Education and Outreach
Section 4: Advisory Committees

Appendices

Appendix PP - A: Orange Ticket Program Surveys
Appendix PP - B: Administrator Email Comments
Appendix PP - C: Responses to Question 7 (Household Impact Comments)
Appendix PP - D: Orange Ticket Program Schools










Section 1: Public Participation Process

1.1 Purpose

BART, with the assistance of Imprenta Communications, conducted public outreach to solicit
feedback on a proposal to eliminate Orange magnetic stripe (mag-stripe) tickets, which are sold at a
50% discount to students at participating middle and high schools. This proposed change supports
migration of student riders to the youth discount Clipper card, which also offers them BART’s 50%
discount, and gives them a discount on the region’s other transit operators. A key component of the
Title VI outreach is to seek input on these types of fare changes from minority, low-income, and
limited English proficient (LEP) populations.

BART reached out to all 147 schools in the Bay Area that participate in the Orange ticket program
and distributed surveys to parents of students who use the discounted tickets. The survey was
made available online at http://www.bart.gov/orangeticket and in a hard-copy paper format as an
option for each school. The survey remained open for six weeks from February 20, 2018 through
April 6,2018.

This section describes the Title VI public participation process and the public comments by
respondents to BART’s Orange ticket program survey.

1.2 Outreach

BART reached out to Orange ticket program administrators at all 147 schools that currently
participate in the program to get parents to complete the survey. In order to publicize the survey
and survey link, extensive outreach was conducted with the schools. The survey remained open for
six weeks from February 20, 2018 through April 6, 2018. Prior to February 20, 2018, preliminary
phone calls were made to administrators so they would be aware of the upcoming outreach. Each
administrator received three emails and multiple follow-up phone calls requesting them to share
the online and paper surveys with parents of students who use the Orange tickets. While the option
to drop off paper surveys to the school was provided, all schools chose to publicize the online
survey link. Email responses from school administrators are listed in Appendix PP-B, and the full
list of contacted schools is included in Appendix PP-D.

The survey was offered in English, Spanish, and Chinese. Additional language support services were
offered in Korean, Tagalog, and Vietnamese and all surveys were completed online. An incentive of
a $100 BART Clipper card was offered as a prize for a drawing for those households that returned
the survey. A copy of the survey is included in Appendix PP-A.



http://www.bart.gov/orangeticket



Section 2: Public Comments

The outreach effort resulted in 103 total survey responses. Of the 103 responses, 59 were from
parents of students who used the Orange ticket. The remaining 44 responses were excluded from
consideration either because their children did not use the Orange ticket or the respondent was
unsure if their children used the Orange ticket.

While the analysis does not factor in comments from program administrators, BART did receive
some comments during the outreach process from school administrators indicating that they had
no students currently participating in the Orange ticket program or that their students had already
converted to Clipper cards to receive the youth discount. Their comments have been indexed in
Appendix PP-B.

The comments from the administrators may also help explain the level of response rate by parents
to the surveys. Since many students have already converted to youth Clipper cards, parents may
not have felt it was necessary to complete a survey regarding the Orange tickets. This is also
supported by comparing the 59 parent responses to this survey to the almost 300 parent responses
to a survey of the parents of Orange ticket users done in fall 2014, before BART began to offer a
50% discount to youth through age 18, which is available with the youth Clipper card.

Of the 59 parent responses, 57 were in English and two were in Spanish. All comments throughout
this report have been transcribed as written by the public.

A demographic summary of the relevant survey respondents is shown below in Table 1.





Table 1: Survey Demographic Summar
All Respondents

Percent* Sample Size*
Used Orange Ticket
Yes 57.3% 59
No 37.9% 39
Unsure 4.9% 5
Total* 100% 103
Ethnicity of Orange Ticket Users
White 22.0%
Black/African American 18.6%
Asian or Pacific Islander 18.6%
American Indian or Alaska Native 3.4%
Hispanic/Latino 20.3%
Other or Multiple Race 15.3%
Declined to State 1.7%
Total Answers 100% 59
Minority 77.6%
Non-Minority 22.4%
Total 100% 58
Annual Household Income
Under $25,000 8.5%
$25,000 - $34,999 3.4%
$35,000 - $39,999 8.5%
$40,000 - $49,999 15.3%
$50,000 - $59,999 8.5%
$60,000 - $74,999 10.2%
$75,000 - $99,999 5.1%
$100,000 and over 25.4%
Declined to State 15.3%
Total 100% 59
Income of Orange Ticket User
Household**
Low-income 38.0%
Non-low-income 62.0%
Total 100% 50
English Proficiency
Well 6.8%
Very well 22.0%
Not well 5.1%
Not at all 3.4%
Declined to State 62.7%
Total 100% 59

*Note: due to rounding, percentages may not add up to 100%, sample size dependent upon completed answers.
**Low-income and non-low-income percentages factor in both household size and annual household income.





2.1 BART Orange Ticket Usage

Students attending participating middle and high schools can purchase magnetic stripe Orange
tickets at a 50% discount, paying $16 for $32 in value. The purpose of this survey was to collect
feedback on the impact of eliminating the Orange ticket program

2.1.1 Question 1: School Name

BART contacted all 147 schools that participate in the Orange ticket program, and parents at 21 of
the schools responded to the survey.

Table 2-1: Respondents’ Schools
Sample Size = 59 (parents of students participating in the Orange ticket program)

7\ School Name Respondents Percentage
1 | James Logan High School 17 28.8%
2 | Moreau Catholic High School 5 8.5%
3 | Saint Mary's 5 8.5%
4 | San Francisco Waldorf High School 5 8.5%
5 | El Cerrito High School 4 6.8%
6 | East Bay School for Boys 3 5.1%
7 | The College Preparatory School 3 5.1%
8 | Lick-Wilmerding 2 3.4%
9 | Oakland Military Institute 2 3.4%
10| Bayhill High School 2 3.4%
11{ Urban High School 1 1.7%
12| Good Shepherd School 1 1.7%
13| Crystal Springs Uplands 1 1.7%
14{ Bezier Academy 1 1.7%
15| Mentoring Academy 1 1.7%
16( Alameda Community Learning Center 1 1.7%
17| Averroes High School 1 1.7%
18 gzlﬁggis of the Sacred Heart Convent High 1 1.7%
19| De La Salle High School 1 1.7%
20| City Arts & Technology High School 1 1.7%
21| California Crosspoint Academy 1 1.7%
Total 59 100.0%






2.1.2 Question 2:

Has a child in your household used a discounted orange ticket (purchased at school) to ride BART
within the last six months?

There were 103 responses to Question 2, with the results shown in Table 2-2 below.

Table 2-2: Discounted Orange Ticket usage

Sample Size = 103

Yes 57.3%
No 37.9%
Unsure 4.9%
Total 100%

Surveys for respondents that indicated “No” or “Unsure” were automatically removed from
consideration. The total sample size for all remaining questions was 59.

2.1.3 Question 3:
How many children in your household use orange tickets to ride BART?
There were 59 responses to Question 3, with the results shown in Table 2-3 below.

Table 2-3: Number of children in household who use the Orange Ticket
Sample Size = 59

Options Percent

Just 1 child 62.7%
2 children 27.1%
3 or more children 10.2%
Total 100%

2.2 Demographics of BART Orange Ticket Users

2.2.1 Question 4:
How old is the child who uses orange tickets to ride BART?
There were 59 responses to Question 4 as shown in Table 2-4 below.

Table 2-4: Age of BART Orange Ticket Users

Sample Size = 59

12 or younger 1.7%
13 - 18 years old 96.6%
19 or older 1.7%
Total 100%






2.2.2 Question 5:
How often does this child currently ride BART?
There were 59 responses to Question 5, with the results shown in Table 2-5 below.

Table 2-5: Frequency

Sample Size = 59

6 - 7 days a week 13.6%
5 days a week 49.2%
3 - 4 days a week 22.0%
1 - 2 days a week 11.9%
1 - 3 days a month 3.4%
Total 100%

2.2.3 Question 6:
What is this child’s race or ethnic identification?

There were 59 responses to Question 6, with nine respondents indicating “Other” or multiple races
and one respondent that declined to state.

Table 2-6: Ethnic Identification

Sample Size = 59

White 22.0%
Black/African American 18.6%
Asian or Pacific Islander 18.6%
American Indian or Alaska 3.4%
Native

Hispanic/Latino 20.3%
Other or Multiple Races 15.3%
Declined to State 1.7%
Total 100%






2.2.4 Question 7:
What is your total annual household income before taxes?
There were 50 responses to Question 7, with the results shown in Table 2-7 below.

Table 2-7: Household Income

Sample Size = 50

Under $25,000 10.0%
$25,000 - $34,999 4.0%

$35,000 - $39, 999 10.0%
$40,000 - $49, 999 18.0%
$50,000 - $59, 999 10.0%
$60,000 - $74, 999 12.0%
$75,000 - $99, 999 6.0%

$100,000+ 30.0%

2.3 General Comments

The survey included a question for the public to comment on how the elimination of the Orange
ticket program would impact the respondent’s household:

Question 7: How would the elimination of the Orange Ticket School Discount Program impact
your household, if at all?

All of the survey responses for Question 7 are included in Appendix PP-B.
2.3.1 Support or No Response Regarding the Elimination of the Orange Tickets:

Approximately half of respondents (29 of 59) were either supportive of eliminating the Orange
ticket program or had no comment about the change. Sample responses are included below:

“Not at all, she has a clipper card and now that it gives us a discount we don't purchase the
orange tickets. We also had a problem with the orange ticket - it got demagnetized or
something - so we lost some money. My child was told we had to go to a special station to get
it fixed and it was too much of a bother.”

"Assuming we can receive the same youth discount with a youth discount Clipper card, there is

no impact at all. Or, it means greater convenience, as we can just purchase the tickets easily,
rather than going through the BART Orange program. I am glad to see the switch.”

“As long we can access the discounted rates via a Youth Clipper, then should be not be an issue”
“With new youth discount Clipper card rules not a big deal.”

“not at all / clipper card is much better”





2.3.2 Concerns about Eliminating the Orange Tickets:

The remaining half of respondents (30 of 59) expressed concerns about the change. Some of these
comments specifically addressed the transition from Orange tickets to Clipper cards:

“We purchased a Clipper Card for my son, but he is having a hard time using it. The detector
keeps rejecting it, even though I put $45 dollars on it. So the Orange Tickets are much easier to

”

use.

“Makes it harder because you have to pre-pay Clipper and keep it separate for school and
personal use.”

“It would cause us an incredible hardship to not be able to use the orange tickets-- they
provide us with the flexibility we need as a family to ensure transportation, especially to school
for the children. The clipper option is not as useful to us. Please do not eliminate the orange
tickets. Thanks.”

However, many of these comments that expressed concerns seemed rooted in confusion about how
the change would impact their households. Despite the fact that the survey form itself reiterated
that a youth discount was available through the Clipper card, many respondents believed this
change would result in significant financial hardship. Others did not realize that Clipper cards could
be used for BART rides.

“We currently use the Orange ticket program for both of our sons, ages 11 & 13. Without the
program, our transportation costs would double and we'd have to cut back elsewhere. Our kids
already receive subsidized tuition and they Bart home after school so we don't have to pay
childcare costs.”

“I would not eliminate it at all, it is very helpful in paying the expenses to send my child to
school every day”

“Nos afectaria mucho economicamente, porque pagar el precio regular los cinco dias que mi
hijo lo usa para transportarse a Saint Maty's in Berkley, seria muy caro, ojala que no
eliminen este programa. EI BART con su ayuda esta ayudando a estos estudiantes que son
nuestro futuro.” [Translation: “It would affect us a lot financially because paying the regular
price for the five days that my son uses it to commute to Saint Maty's in Berkley, would be very
expensive, hopefully this program is not eliminated. BART with your help is helping these
students who are our future.”]

Some comments also raised concerns about whether BART would continue to accept Orange tickets
that have already been purchased:

“We will have a several Orange Ticket Discount Cards that would be rendered useless.
Effectively, we would have prepaid for this cards and received nothing for them.”

“The portion of remaining inventory assigned to our student would be lost unless BART would
buy them back.”





Should the Orange ticket program be discontinued, Orange tickets will continue to be accepted at
the fare gate. BART’s magnetic stripe tickets have a per-trip surcharge applied, and the surcharge
for Orange tickets will continue to be $0.25 per trip, which is a 50% discount to the full-fare Blue
ticket surcharge of $0.50. There is no surcharge for Clipper users, including youth.

2.3.3 Minority and Low-Income Responses

Of the 45 minority respondents, 22.2% expressed support for the BART Orange ticket elimination,
24.4% chose not to comment regarding the question, which can indicate neutrality or
potentially some level of acceptance, and 53.3% did not support the proposal.

Among the 19 low-income respondents, 15.8% indicated support, 31.6% chose not to comment
regarding the question, which as noted above can indicate neutrality or potentially some
level of acceptance, and 52.6% were not in support.

The breakdown of comments by minority and low-income respondents is included in Table 2-7.

Table 2-8: Comments on Elimination of Orange Ticket Program
by Minority and Low-Income Respondents

Comments Minority Non-minority Low-Income Non-Lows
Income
Sample Size 45 14 19 40
Support 22.2% 50.0% 15.8% 32.5%
Do not Support 53.3% 35.7% 52.6% 47.5%
No Response 24.4% 14.3% 31.6% 20.0%
Total 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

2.3.4 Assessment

An analysis of the responses received shows that 46.7% of the 45 minority respondents either
supported or had no comment on elimination of the Orange ticket, while 53.3% did not support the
proposal. Of the 19 low-income respondents, 47.4% either supported or had no comment, and
52.6% were not in support. However, analysis of the comments shows that many people were
confused regarding implementation of the youth discount Clipper card, costs, and the fact that those
who have pre-existing Orange tickets could still use the tickets in the system.

These results could point to the need for more education to increase parents’ awareness of the facts
and benefits of the discount Clipper youth card if the Orange ticket were to be eliminated.

However, it should be noted that concurrent with this Orange ticket Title VI outreach process and
surveying, there were multiple outreach processes occurring to encourage youth discount Clipper
card registration and the public is potentially much more aware now of the better options available
to them than during the Orange ticket elimination outreach. These various types of outreach are
described in section 3 below.





Section 3: Education and Outreach

3.1 Mag-stripe Ticket Surcharge Mitigation Action Plan Outreach

The BART Board approved a Title VI Fare Equity Analysis in June 2017 that determined whether
several proposed changes could disproportionately impact minority or low-income riders. Staff
found that a mag-stripe ticket surcharge could result in a disproportionate impact on low-income
riders.

BART then focused its efforts on getting free Clipper cards to low-income riders so they could avoid
the surcharge through the following outreach efforts:

e Twenty-nine promotional outreach events (December-March) in cooperation with
Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) at 20 BART stations and 9 community-
based organizations that serve low-income populations.

e MTC has partnered with Community Based Organizations (CBOs) referred by BART’s Office
of Civil Rights that service low-income communities and the CBOs have become part of
MTC'’s Clipper card distribution program so they can continue to provide the populations
they service with free Clipper cards on an ongoing basis.

Throughout this outreach process, BART/MTC staff were educating the public about the free youth
discount Clipper cards and how to sign up. Youth discount Clipper card applications were handed
out at all 29 in-station and CBO events.

The following table provided by MTC (which is also in the analysis) shows that there has been an

increase in youth discount Clipper card applications and issuance by various agencies and through
MTC from FY14 through to FY18.

10





Table 3-1: Youth discount Clipper Card Issuance by Agency

FY 14-15 Quarter 3 = FY 15-16 Quarter 3  FY 16-17 Quarter 3 = FY 17-18 Quarter 3
2015 2015 2015 2016 2016 2016 2017 2017 \ 2017 2018 2018 2018
Jan- Feb- Mar- Jan- Feb- Mar- Jan- Feb- | Mar- Jan- Feb- Mar-
15 15 15 16 16 16 17 17 17 18 18 18

Card Issuance by

Operator:

Mail/Email/Fax

Mail In Applications:
Youth 380 | 320| 386 | 498 | 485 | 485 454 | 433 | 5111178 | 949 | 773

Card Issuance by
Operator:
Embarcadero Station

Bay Crossings
Embarcadero Station:
Youth 155 | 121 144 | 129 | 137 124 | 169 | 131 153 | 367 | 291 396

Card Issuance by
Operator: AC Transit
Card Issuance by
Operator: BART
 BART:Youth* | | | ([ | [ | | | [|171] 117] 118
Card Issuance by
Operator: SF Muni

Total by month

Email/mail/fax and
major distributors 818 | 1133 | 1181 | 1204 | 1145 | 1042 | 1199 1082 1250 | 2319 | 2093 | 1907

Total by quarter

Email/mail/fax and

major distributors 3132 3391 3531 6319
*Through May 2017, youth applications received at BART were processed as mail/email /fax applications.

Table 3-1 shows a steady increase in card issuance of Clipper cards when comparing quarter-to-
quarter figures over the past four years. However, applications for youth have increased
dramatically--by 79%--when January-March 2017 is compared to January-March 2018. The reason
for this may potentially be due to youth Clipper card applications being handed out at all the mag-
stripe paper ticket mitigation events as well as extensive outreach educating the public on the
youth discount Clipper card, which will be described in sections 3-2 and 3-3. In addition, effective
January 1, 2018, BART extended the age at which youth receive a 50% discount to 18 years.

11





3.2 Youth discount Clipper card “How-To” YouTube Video

In an effort to encourage youth discount Clipper card registration, BART produced a video that was
distributed to the public and advertised as described below:

e August9, 2017: http://www.bart.gov/news/articles/2017 /news20170808 Teens take
note: BART has new discount for your Clipper card starting Jan. 1

e December 18, 2017: http://www.bart.gov/news/articles/2017 /news20171218 Teens can
now get a big discount on BART with a Youth discount Clipper card (this one has the video
embedded)

o This story and video was emailed to 56,991 BART subscribers with a 23% open
rate: 16,446

e March 6, 18: http://www.bart.gov/news/articles/2018/news20180306 Teen spring break
checklist: Get Youth discount Clipper card, save money exploring the Bay!

e The video https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=BYCt9zFROUE was posted on:

o You-Tube (1,800 views),
o Facebook (13,000 views and a reach of 27,000, shared 56 times), and
o Twitter (25,907 views, 118 retweets)

The advertisement and video may be one of the contributing factors to the increase in youth
discount Clipper cards that have been issued throughout the Bay Area.

3.3 BART Police Department Youth Outreach

BART Police Department (BART PD) has traditionally reached out and worked with youth advocacy
groups. The following is a summary of how BART PD assisted in educating the public about the
youth discount Clipper card and discount.

e Information on mag-stripe paper ticket surcharge/expanded youth discount/Clipper card
availability in BART stations was distributed via approximately 100 emails to community
contacts including all BART PD, other police departments, neighborhood community
groups, schools, non-profits that focus on children/families, churches, and residential
housing near BART stations.

e December 2017: BART PD distributed Clipper applications/information on Clipper and
spoke to BART customers during two Holiday Safety Awareness events.

e January 4-5, 2018: BART PD shared the Clipper changes on our BART PD Facebook Page

which included dates for the District’s scheduled Clipper outreach events. BART PD
attended some of the Clipper outreach events. See following for posting:

12



http://www.bart.gov/news/articles/2017/news20170808

http://www.bart.gov/news/articles/2017/news20171218

http://www.bart.gov/news/articles/2018/news20180306

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=BYCt9zFR0UE



BART Police Department b
January 4 - @

Leamn how to save money on BART with Bay Area Clipper. By using the
Clipper and Easy Rider hang tag, patrons can quickly pay for parking and
BART tickets

There are dozens of outreach events coming to BART stations where free
Clipper cards will be available and riders can also leam about the new 50
percent discount available for teens.

The next events will be held on:

January 4 - West Oakland BART Station - 4-7pm
January 8 - Dublin/Pleasanton BART Station 4-7pm
January 9 - Bay Fair BART Station 4-7pm

Each week BART will post a new schedule. BART is also working with local
community based organizations to hand out free Clipper cards

Everyone is encouraged to register a Clipper card because it can protect the
balance and has an auto-load option to avoid ticket vending lines. Use
Clipper anonymously without registering it and load with cash at BART ticket
machines, as needed

More details about how to save with Clipper may be found at
http://bddy. me/2ghblgf. Questions can be promptly answered by visiting
hitps:/twitter.com/stbart.

CLIPPER CARD

The casiest and fastest way to pay
for daily parking fee at BART
No waiting in line.
No need to remember your parking stall number.
No need 1o enter a cash payment each fime you park

Just tap at parking validation machine and gof

Moving forward, many opportunities still exist to promote public awareness of the new Clipper
card youth discount to families that may benefit from this program.





Section 4: BART Title VI/Environmental Justice and
Limited English Proficiency Advisory Committees

Staff presented on the Orange ticket fare and program elimination at a special joint BART Title
VI/Environmental Justice (EJ) and Limited English Proficiency (LEP) Advisory Committee meeting
held on Monday, April 2, 2018 (10:30am-1pm) in the Joseph P. Bort Metro Center, located at 101
8th Street in Oakland. Additional follow-up presentations were made to the Title VI/E] Advisory
Committee meeting on Monday, May 7, 2018 (2pm-4pm) and to the LEP Advisory Committee
meeting on Tuesday, May 22, 2018 (10:30am-1pm) in the BART Board Room, located at 2040
Webster Street in Oakland. The meetings were open to the public and the agenda was noticed at
least 72 hours in advance of the meeting.

The LEP Advisory Committee consists of members of community-based organizations that serve
LEP populations within the BART service area. The committee assists in the development of the
District’s language assistance measures and provides input on how the District can provide
programs and services to customers, regardless of language ability. The Title VI/E] Advisory
Committee, which also consists of members of community-based organizations, ensures that the
District is taking reasonable steps to incorporate Title VI and E] Policy principles in its
transportation decisions.

At the meetings, staff presented an overview of the Orange ticket program, background information
and the reason for its elimination, and the benefits of the youth discount Clipper card as an
alternative to the Orange ticket.

Members were supportive of the Orange ticket fare media and program elimination. One member
stated that her organization hosted a BART/MTC mag-stripe ticket surcharge mitigation outreach
event which was very successful in helping people sign up for Clipper cards. She noted that
BART/MTC staff provided very helpful information on the benefits of and how to get the youth
discount Clipper card at this event and expressed approval of the mitigation measure of moving
youths towards Clipper cards.

14





Appendix PP-A: Orange Ticket Program Surveys











Orange Ticket Survey

Please complete this survey to provide your input on BART's Orange Ticket School Discount Program.

Dear Parent/Guardian,

As you may be aware, BART recently expanded its youth discount. Now children ages 5-18 can receive a 50% discount on
all of their BART rides. (The easiest way to get this discount is by using a Youth Clipper card. Note that children under age 5
still ride BART for free.)

Since this discount is now available to all youth, BART is considering the elimination of its Orange Ticket School

Discount Program. Please complete this brief survey to help BART understand your household’s use of orange tickets.
To thank you for your time, you can enter to win a $100 Clipper card at the end of this survey.

n School name:

o Has a child in your household used a discounted orange ticket (purchased at school) to ride BART within the last six
months?

1O Yes
[ No (skip to Q12)
;[ Don’t know (skip to Q12)

a How many children in your household use orange tickets to ride BART?
1 Just 1 child uses orange tickets
212 children use orange tickets
;[ 3 or more children use orange tickets

Please tell us about the child who uses orange tickets to ride BART.
(If more than one child in your household uses orange tickets, please tell us about the oldest one.)

n How old is the child who uses orange tickets to ride BART?
1119 or older
2013 - 18 years old
;[J 12 or younger

a How often does this child currently ride BART? (Check one)
1[0 6 -7 days a week
215 days a week
;[0 3 - 4 days a week
«[J1 -2 days a week
s[J 1 -3 days a month
«[J Less than once a month ——> How many times a year?

e What is this child’s race or ethnic identification?
(Check one or more. Your response will help us to evaluate how well this program is reaching all of the communities that BART serves.)

1[0 American Indian or Alaska Native
2] Asian or Pacific Islander

;[ Black/African American

«[d Hispanic, Latino or Spanish

SD White
«[] Other:

(Categories are based on the U.S. Census)

Orange Ticket School Discount Program

How would the elimination of the Orange Ticket School Discount Program impact your household, if at all?

2
Q:: Printed on recycled paper, 30% post-consumer. 02/2018 OVER Q





About You and Your Household

B Including yourself, how many people live in your
household?

11 12 03 414 s[5 [ 6+

o Do you use a smart phone (can access the Internet,
download apps, etc.)?

11 Yes
zD No

@ Do you speak a language other than English at home?
[ Yes, | speak:

2 JNo

@ If you answered” Yes” to question 10a, how well do
you speak English?
[ Very well
21 Well
;00 Not well
«J Not at all

m What is your total annual household income
before taxes?

[JUnder $25,000

2[1$25,000 - $34,999
;[J $35,000 - $39,999
+[1$40,000 - $49,999
5[] $50,000 - $59,999
«[1$60,000 - $74,999
70 $75,000 - $99,999
s[1$100,000 or more

Optional

m If you would like to enter the drawing to win a $100
Clipper card, please enter your contact information
here:

Name:

Phone:

Email:

Please read the statements below and check all
that apply.

[ Contact me with important BART updates
(no more than once per year), or in case of a major
system-wide emergency (email only).

[ Sign me up for BARTable this Week. It's a free weekly
email filled with events, discounts and chances to
win free tickets to great BARTable events!

(email only)

Thank you for completing this survey.
Please return in the postage-paid envelope,
or mail to:

Imprenta Communications Group
c/o Jay Cheng

301 Grove Street

San Francisco, CA 94102

If you need language assistance services, please call
(510) 464-6752.

Kung kailangan mo ang tulong ng mga serbisyo ng
wika, paki tawagan ang (510) 464-6752.

Né&u quy vi can dich vu trg gitip vé ngdn ngi, xin vui
Iong goi s6 (510) 464-6752.

0| Hstdl B2, 510-464-6752 2
FOISHMAI2.





Encuesta sobre el Boleto Anaranjado

Por favor complete esta encuesta para brindar su opinién sobre el Programa de Descuento Escolar
de BART, el Boleto Anaranjado.

Estimado padre/madre/tutor legal:

Tal vez ya conozca que BART amplié recientemente su descuento para jévenes. Ahora, los nifios de 5 a 18 afios de edad
pueden recibir un descuento del 50% en todos sus viajes en BART. (La manera mas sencilla de obtener este descuento es usar
una tarjeta Clipper Card para jovenes. Tenga en cuenta que los nifios menores de 5 afios siguen teniendo la posibilidad de
viajar en BART en forma gratuita).

Como este descuento ahora esta disponible para todos los jovenes, BART esta considerando eliminar su Programa de
Descuento Escolar del Boleto Anaranjado. Por favor complete esta breve encuesta para ayudar a BART a comprender
cdmo se usan los boletos anaranjados en su hogar. Para agradecerle por su tiempo, al finalizar esta encuesta puede participar
en un sorteo para ganar una tarjeta Clipper Card de $100.

n Nombre de la escuela:

a ¢Algun nifio que viva con usted usd un boleto anaranjado de descuento (comprado en la escuela) para viajar en BART en
los Ultimos seis meses?

1S
21 No (continte con la P12)
;1 No sé (continte con la P12)

a ¢ Cuantos nifos de su hogar usan boletos anaranjados para viajar en BART?
1[JSolo 1 nifio usa el boleto anaranjado
[ 2 nifios usan el boleto anaranjado
;[ 3 0 mas nifos usan el boleto anaranjado

Por favor proporcionenos informacion sobre el nino que usa el boleto anaranjado para viajar en BART.
(Si mas de un niho de su hogar usa el boleto anaranjado, por favor inférmenos sobre el mayor de ellos).

u ¢ Cuantos afos tiene el nifio que usa el boleto anaranjado para viajar en BART?
1[J 19 afos de edad o mas
:[J 13 a 18 afios de edad
;[J 12 afos de edad o menos

a ¢Con qué frecuencia viaja este nifio en BART actualmente? (Marque una respuesta)
1J6a7dias alasemana
[ 5 dias a la semana
;[0J3 a4 dfas a la semana
+[J 1 a2 dias alasemana
s[11 a 3 dias al mes
sL1Menos de una vez al mes ——> ;Cudntas veces al afio?

a ¢Cudl es la raza o la identificacion étnica de este nifio?
(Marque una o mas opciones. Su respuesta nos ayudara a evaluar cuan bien esta llegando este programa a todas las comunidades a las que
BART presta servicio).

1[J Indigena norteamericano o nativo de Alaska
2 Asiatico o de las Islas del Pacifico

;[ Negro/afroamericano

«[J Hispano, latino o espanol

s Blanco

s Otro:

(Categorias en base al Censo de los Estados Unidos).

Programa de Descuento Escolar del Boleto Anaranjado

¢ Cémo afectaria a su hogar (si lo afectara) la eliminacion del Programa de Descuento Escolar del Boleto Anaranjado?

LA
Q:: Impreso en papel reciclado, 30% de desechos post-consumidor. 02/2018 CONTINUA EN EL REVERSO Q





Acerca de usted y las personas que viven en su
hogar

u Incluyéndose a si mismo, ¢cuantas personas viven en
su hogar?

1 12 s[03 14 s[5 s[160més

¢Utiliza un teléfono inteligente (puede acceder a
Internet, descargar aplicaciones, etc.)?

O Si
[ 1No

@ ¢Habla usted un idioma que no sea el inglés en el
hogar?

(1 Si, hablo:
[ 1No

@ Si respondié “Si” a la Pregunta 10a, ;qué tan bien
habla inglés?
1 Muy bien
.1 Bien
;J No muy bien
«[J Nada

m ¢ Cudles son los ingresos totales anuales de su hogar
antes de impuestos?

1[0 Menos de $25,000
.[1$25,000 a $34,999
3[1$35,000 a $39,999
+[1%$40,000 a $49,999
s[1$50,000 a $59,999
«[1$60,000 a $74,999
;[1$75,000 a $99,999
s[1$100,000 0 mas

Opcional

a Si desea participar en el sorteo para ganar una tarjeta

Clipper Card de $100, por favor escriba su informacién
de contacto en este lugar:

Nombre:

Teléfono:

Correo electronico:

Por favor lea las afirmaciones que se incluyen a
continuacion y marque todas las que correspondan.

[J Comuniquese conmigo con respecto a importante
informacién actualizada sobre BART (no mas de una
vez al afo), o en caso de que ocurra una emergencia
grave de todo el sistema (sélo por correo electrénico).

[ Inscribanme en BARTable this Week. Es un mensaje
de correo electrénico semanal gratuito repleto de
eventos, descuentos y oportunidades para ganar
boletos gratis a increibles eventos de BARTable.
(s6lo por correo electronico)

Gracias por contestar esta encuesta.
Por favor enviela en el sobre con porte postal pagado
gue se adjunta, o enviela por correo a:

Imprenta Communications Group
c/o Jay Cheng

301 Grove Street

San Francisco, CA 94102

Si necesita servicios de asistencia de idiomas, llame al
(510) 464-6752.





BBEMEHRE

BITAZIEAE  IRMEICH BART BEEERITIStEINE RAEE o

SHHRER/EEA
[CRTBERIAE > BART RiTIBEA T RAMEITINEAEE  I/7E > 5-18 mrBIRAMFE NGRS BART 98] =58 50% #140 - (B=
BIEEITN > RASEERYAERZEA Youth Clipper & « 552 E 1 5 s N REIRI L EHE5E BART )

AREETINREEANRPIARREA > FLL BART [EEEE EEUHEER LSRN E (Orange Ticket School Discount
Program) o FIER S/ EiER% » BB) BART THRERFTHNEEEFERER - ARSTHERS AT  CEISNEER
BRVMIDES) - B ERS—IRIEE $100 B9 Clipper F o

1 R

a FEBENEAR > ERPEEAFRERBEITIR (BESR) R BART I ?
O 2
O & (BEIIE 12 8)
;O ARE (BRBREISS 12 #8)

EBRABERR FRIERE BRI BART ?
OE 1B FUERRERR
LN BFUERBER
O3 BAELFURRABEE

Ak TR ERE B RIS BART MFREH -
(RERPEEE—S FREFEEE » FUFRRAFRAHELIE )

4 e T
\C119 RSt
2[113-18%5%
112 BT

O coruemsnrner? o

{O—EH6-7TX
O—EH5X

sO—2/3-4X
JO—E2#1-2X

sSO—@ER1-3X
O—EARE—R —» —FHLX?

O ccrvvmransam?

(AJRAE—IZIE o EHEIERKEBIFIEZTE 2T 8 & BART IRFESHFTE1LEE o)

O ENENER AT HTE ER

O SBEIATEES

O R AJFEBSEREA

O A/ T E NS AT S

OBEA

OV EA
(ZEFIUEB A OZ & A i)

HeRaRTNstE

MREUHBBRERITINFE » CHREGRIITELE (EFRAFE)?

Y,
® 553 30% FEBEEARER © 02/2018 & ==
e / HmEE ©





R SIS HIRE

n BREEER > BRPHEFTZDOAN?
1 02 03 04 s05 60 6+

O cosemesnEn s e TRERESS
ThEE) 2
o=
0%

il

D) CHERETREELUMIES ?
O B

SIS

D wR 100 BEE TR CHBBERSEELR ?
AmEicls:
0 %F
mE R
O B2FE

) cwmmxEeEgARS ) ?

1[0 $25,000 LT

21 $25,000 - $34,999
s[1$35,000 - $39,999
+[1$40,000 - $49,999
s[1$50,000 - $59,999
s[1$60,000 - $74,999

.0 $75,000 - $99,999
s[1$100,000 514k

BREZ

B) wReEsMmEEEE > FRIS—RE®E $100 B Clipper
+ o BEIES TR SR

g

BERMAL

e TR > WABFIAEAER -

O%BART BEEZHE(BERBIBE—R) > EEE2 R
Mt NEARBRZFWRE » BRBHHS (BT

(1 FKE2:TRI BARTable this Week EF IR - s 2EE
E—XHNREBH 0 HPN4EER BART NEIEEE)
A0 > WHEKE RS BARTable BEEFHNEE A
55 | (%X EE)

BT NETARERE
ERABENEEEEHFE
EI= K2l

Imprenta Communications Group
c/o Jay Cheng

301 Grove Street

San Francisco, CA 94102

WNEE S MBNARTS » BAEE (510) 464-6752 ©





Appendix PP-B: Administrator Email Comments

School Name Email Response

SFUSD Paper BART tickets are a critical support for homeless and other foster
youth. Programs that serve these students need a way to hand them an
immediate solution to their transportation dilemas. Youth in crisis often
have no access to their possessions - including clipper cards and the IDs
necessary to get them. This can can be an unnecessary barrier to these
kids attending school as they move between shelters, family members,
and the streets. it is unbelievable he lengths young people will go to stay
in school - often the only stable place they have during a period of crisis -
if they can get there. I have known kids to commute 2 hours each way
day just to get to their school. We have to have passes we can give them
in these circumstances.

This will never show up on a parent survey, but it is a critical function
for BART to provide.

[ understand that as a consultant this may be outside of your project
scope. Please acknowledge that this has been received and
communicated to BART. If you would like to put me in touch with
someone directly, please do so.

Bezier I'll be happy to help with the survey.

Academy We are a funny situation, as I signed up for BART Orange for my student
in our homeschool - since my son has been taking BART to CC classes
for high school in some instances.

[ have been needing to get him signed up for the youth Clipper Card, and
due to family emergencies have just not gotten around to it. We are out
of BART Orange tickets, so I need to take action soon. [ am sure it’s not
as complicated as [ have made it out to be in my mind!

Omia [ have requested that this be sent out in the next parent bulletin.
Academy
As an administrator, I am concerned about how we are going to serve
the small population (about 10) of homeless students we have without
the paper BART tickets. All schools are required by The McKinney-
Vento Act to arrange transportation to and from school for homeless
students. We satisfy that requirement for most of them by giving
them the paper BART tickets as needed.

Heritage High | I forwarded to our student to fill out.

School

Thank you
San Francisco | [ was curious what the survey looked like and so I clicked a few buttons
University and now it submitted for me. Please delete that from your stats since

High School I'm not a parent using the survey. [ didn't realize there wasn’t a “submit”






button and thought I could just back out but alas...not the case.

[ only have a couple of families who used it so I'll send the survey on to
them. No guarantee they’ll respond though...

John Thank you Rob we are but we have not had funds this year.

O'Connell

High School

Diablo Valley | Dear Rob,

School
[ will pass along the survey to our parents who have used orange tickets
in the past.
Warm regards,
Anne-Martine

Richmond Received, thank you

College Prep

Schools

Mary'’s Thanks Rob - I will send it out today.

College High

School

Mission High | Dear Rob,

School San

Francisco We only have one student participating the program right now. We'll
communicate with his family about the survey.
Best,

Orion Orion Academy is a very small school - 45 students. We probably had an

Academy average of three families using the program at any one time. We have
not
used the program since it was discontinued last Fall/Winter.

Synergy Sorry you didn’t hear from me after the first time, Rob. Crazy busy

School around here.
[ do not actually have any parents buying orange tickets this year. I still
buy them for field trips though. Hopefully BART will end up with a way
that I can still do that.

Newark Hi Mr. Chua,

Unified [ am the Coordinator of Pupil Services, and the Homeless Liaison for

Newark USD. Some other responsibilities also bring me into d
discussions about bus transportation of Newark students.

Can you please look up in your records which of our school are






participating in your Orange Bus Pass Program? Or is this a program
available to everyone? (If so which ages/ grade level are the target
audience?) Ididn't see thatin your email, and I'm not aware of our
sites’ participation. I just need this to know how to direct your request
to parents of students participating in the program.

Many thanks!
Bill

Newark
Unified

Hi Rob,

[ forwarded your request to the High School, asking them to dispatch
the link for the survey to the proper clientele. I was told that they would
address it

shortly. Hopefully you'll receive something in a few days.

Thank you for your patience!

Martine






Appendix PP-C: Responses to Question 7
(Comments on Household Impact)

Response Survey

1)) Date Language | Response on Impact

1 2/20/2018 | English dfhjk
2 2/20/2018 | English no internet access
The portion of remaining inventory assigned to our student would
3 2/20/2018 | English be lost unless BART would buy them back.
4 2/20/2018 | English

Assuming we can receive the same youth discount with a youth
Clipper Card, there is no impact at all. Or,

it means greater convenience, as we can just purchase the tickets
easily, rather than going through the BART Orange program. I am
5 2/20/2018 | English glad to see the switch.

6 2/21/2018 | English

My kids uses Bart 5 days a week as a part of their transportation to
thier school to have a higher education, this will impact my family,
please consider to handle this situation in the possible matter that
7 2/21/2018 | English will not have negative effect.

She commutes from Oakland to Pittsburgh to go to school and we
are already covering private school tuition the financial weight
would be hard. We also won't have someone who can go pick up the

8 2/22/2018 | English clipper ticket.
9 2/27/2018 | English
The children who use the orange tickets are over 18, and therefore
10 2/28/2018 | English would not be eligible for the youth clipper card prices.
11 2/28/2018 | English My children will only be able to take the bus due to the cost.
12 3/11/2018 | English

We will have a several Orange Ticket Discount Cards that would be
rendered useless. Effectively, we would have prepaid for this cards
13 3/12/2018 | English and received nothing for them.

Huge Impact on our students:

We are a commuter school that serves some under the poverty level
students. We provide them with the discounted orange cards to get
to school and back (along with bus passes) at the school's cost. This
would significantly impact 5% of our population..

['m not sure how we would be able to implement the discounted

14 3/12/2018 | English clipper cards to these students and monitor their use.






15 3/12/2018 | English It would be difficult financially wise we are low income family

16 3/12/2018 | English
We currently use the Orange ticket program for both of our sons,
ages 11 & 13. Without the program, our transportation costs would
double and we'd have to cut back elsewhere. Our kids already
receive subsidized tuition and they Bart home after school so we

17 3/12/2018 | English don't have to pay childcare costs.

18 3/13/2018 | English not at all / clipper card is much better
We purchased a Clipper Card for my son, but he is having a hard
time using it. The detector keeps rejecting it, even though I put $45

19 3/13/2018 | English dollars on it. So the Orange Tickets are much easier to use.

[t wouldn't as we got it before receiving our clipper card, but we'd

20 3/13/2018 | English like the opportunity to spend it down until zeroed out.

21 3/14/2018 | English
Financial hardship as during sports season, my child uses it in order
to return home after games. She would probably not be able to

22 3/14/2018 | English participate in sports any longer because of the hardship.

23 3/15/2018 | English
Current cost is 64$/month for have price tickets. Full fair would be
64$ month more for 10 months. 640$ year is $1000 before tax.

24 3/15/2018 | English That's a lot to get a child to school.

We depend on Bart discoint ticket program

to get our son home safely.

Without it the cost to pick him up would be

prohibitive as we both work long hours and have no other way to

25 3/16/2018 | English pick him up.

26 3/16/2018 | English My child still has orange tickets but he now has a clipper card
So long as the Clipper card offers the same discount, then not at all.
However, if Clipper card does not offer 50% youth discount, then It

27 3/16/2018 | English would be a hardship for our family.

28 3/17/2018 | English The increase cost of traveling on Bart will impact our family
Would be disappointing, but if the same 50% discount is available
for children under 18 and includes a Clipper Card, we would prefer
this to all of the paper tickets, and the onerous process currently in

29 3/19/2018 | English place to order the Orange Tickets.

30 3/19/2018 | English N/A
As long we can access the discounted rates via a Youth Clipper, then

31 3/19/2018 | English should be not be an issue

32 3/19/2018 | English
We purchase five orange cards each time so child will not have to

33 3/19/2018 | English carry a pre paid clipper card.






34 3/19/2018 | English

35 3/19/2018 | English

36 3/19/2018 | English

37 3/19/2018 | English

38 3/19/2018 | English

39 3/19/2018 | Spanish

40 3/20/2018 | English
It would cause us an incredible hardship to not be able to use the
orange tickets-- they provide us with the flexibility we need as a
family to ensure transportation, especially to school for the
children. The clipper option is not as useful to us. Please do not

41 3/20/2018 | English eliminate the orange tickets. Thanks.

42 3/20/2018 | English
Horribly. I'm a single mom and the discount greatly helps my

43 3/20/2018 | English budget.

44 3/21/2018 | English

45 3/21/2018 | English

46 3/21/2018 | English With new youth clipper card rules not a big deal.

More cost for Clipper card which we already have switched to due
to the very high surcharge of 50 cents per usage for paper tickets.

47 3/21/2018 | English That is mercenary.

48 3/21/2018 | English I thought it was already eliminated. She has to purchase the clipper
Nos afectaria mucho economicamente, porque pagar el precio
regular los cinco dias que mi hijo lo usa para transportarse a Saint
Maty's in Berkley, seria muy caro, ojala que no eliminen este
programa. ElBART con su ayuda esta ayudando a estos

49 3/21/2018 | Spanish estudiantes que son nuestro futuro.

50 3/21/2018 | English

51 3/21/2018 | English

52 3/22/2018 | English
[ would not eliminate it at all, it is very helpful in paying the

53 3/22/2018 | English expenses to send my child to school every day

54 3/23/2018 | English it woudl be easier

55 3/26/2018 | English

56 3/26/2018 | English
We can barely afford for my kids, nieces and nephews to get to

57 3/26/2018 | English school without the youth orange discount cards.

58 3/26/2018 | English

59 3/26/2018 | English

60 3/26/2018 | English

61 3/26/2018 | English






62 3/26/2018 | English Financial burden
63 3/26/2018 | English
64 3/26/2018 | English
65 3/26/2018 | Spanish
66 3/26/2018 | English
67 3/26/2018 | English
68 3/26/2018 | English
69 3/26/2018 | English
70 3/26/2018 | English
71 3/26/2018 | English
72 3/26/2018 | English
73 3/26/2018 | English
74 3/26/2018 | English The easiest way to get more discount.
75 3/26/2018 | English it will additional expenditures a month to our finances
76 3/26/2018 | English
77 3/26/2018 | English
78 3/26/2018 | English
We are a low income family we would not be able to afford bart at
79 3/26/2018 | English all
80 3/26/2018 | English
81 3/26/2018 | English We are a low income family and all savings help
82 3/27/2018 | English
83 3/27/2018 | English
It would cost us more for the BART ride, unless we get the 50%
84 3/27/2018 | English discount that was mentioned in a email from the school.
85 3/27/2018 | English
86 3/27/2018 | English I would impact my son more because he pays for his own ticket
87 3/27/2018 | English As long as the clipper card can be used, not at all
88 3/27/2018 | English
89 3/27/2018 | English not at all he is already using clipper.
90 3/27/2018 | English
91 3/27/2018 | English
92 3/27/2018 | English
93 3/27/2018 | English
My child commutes from east oakland to south SF so the costs
would go up astronomically. including bart on the clipper card
94 3/27/2018 | English would be a help but 50% would still be more money for us
It would require changing her current Clipper card, used only for SF
Muni. I do not know if the means getting an all new account, or if [
95 3/27/2018 | English can add Bart to her current card.
96 3/27/2018 | English I don't believe it will negatively impact my children at all.






Makes it harder because you have to pre-pay Clipper and keep it

97 3/27/2018 | English separate for school and personal use

98 3/28/2018 | English

99 3/28/2018 | Spanish

100 3/28/2018 | English
Not at all, she has a clipper card and now that it gives us a discount
we don't purchase the orange tickets. We also had a problem with
the orange ticket - it got demagnetized or something - so we lost
some money. My child was told we had to go to a special station to

101 3/28/2018 | English get it fixed and it was too much of a bother.

102 3/29/2018 | English

103 3/31/2018 | English






Appendix PP-D: Orange Ticket Program Schools

School Name County
1 Alhambra High School Contra Costa
2 Acalanes High School Contra Costa
3 Alameda Science and Technology Institute Alameda
4 Albany High School Alameda
5 Albany Middle School Alameda
6 Alliance Academy H.S. Alameda
7 Alternatives in Action High School Alameda
8 Archbishop Riordan High School San Francisco
9 Aspire CA College Prep Alameda
10 | Aspire Golden State College Prep. Academy Alameda
11 | Athenian School (The) Contra Costa
12 | Averroes High School Alameda
13 | Balboa High School San Francisco
14 | Bay Area Technology School Alameda
15 | Bay School of San Francisco San Francisco
16 | Bayhill High School Alameda
17 | Bentley School, The Alameda
18 | Berean Christian High School Contra Costa
19 | Berkeley High School Alameda
20 | Berkeley Technology Academy Alameda
21 | Bezier Academy Home School
22 | Bishop 0'Dowd High School Alameda
23 | Bridgemont High School/Junior High San Mateo
24 | California Crosspoint Middle/High School Alameda
25 | California High School Contra Costa
26 | Capuchino High School San Mateo
27 | Carondelet High School Contra Costa
28 | Castlemont High School Alameda
29 | Castro Valley High School Alameda
30 | Castro Valley Unified School District Alameda
31 | City Arts & Tech High School San Francisco
32 | Claremont Middle School Alameda
33 | Clayton Valley Charter High School Contra Costa
34 | Coliseum College Prep Academy Alameda
35 | College & Career Pathways Department Contra Costa
36 | College Park High School Contra Costa
37 | College Preparatory School Alameda
38 | Community Learning Center Schools Alameda
39 | Contra Costa Christian Schools Contra Costa
40 | Contra Costa Jewish Day School Contra Costa
41 | Convent of the Sacred Heart San Francisco






42 | Cornerstone Academy San Francisco
43 | Crossroads High School Contra Costa
44 | Crystal Springs Uplands School San Mateo

45 | De La Salle High School of Concord Contra Costa
46 | Design Tech High School San Mateo

47 | Diablo Valley School Contra Costa
48 | Downtown High School San Francisco
49 | Drew School San Francisco
50 | Dublin High School Contra Costa
51 | East Bay School for Boys Alameda

52 | El Camino High School San Mateo

53 | El Cerrito High School Alameda

54 | Emery Secondary School Alameda

55 | Envision Academy Of Arts & Technology Alameda

56 | Excelsior Preparatory Academy Contra Costa
57 | Fame Public Charter School Alameda

58 | Fremont Unified School District Alameda

59 | French-American International School San Francisco
60 | Galileo Academy of Science & Tech. San Francisco
61 | Gateway Middle School San Francisco
62 | Gateway Public Schools San Francisco
63 | Gateway to College Alameda

64 | Good Shepherd School Contra Costa
65 | Halstrom Academy Contra Costa
66 | Head-Royce School Alameda

67 | Heritage High School Contra Costa
68 | Hilltop School San Francisco
69 | Holden High School Contra Costa
70 | Holy Names High School Alameda

71 | Immaculate Conception Academy San Francisco
72 | Independence High School San Francisco
73 | James Denman High School San Francisco
74 | James Logan High School Alameda

75 | Jewish Community High School of the Bay San Francisco
76 | John O'Connell High School San Francisco
77 | June Jordan High School San Francisco
78 | Kipp Bayview Academy San Francisco
79 | Kipp Bridge Academy Alameda

80 | Kipp King Colleigiate High School Alameda

81 | KIPP San Francisco College Preparatory San Francisco
82 | Leadership High School San Francisco
83 | Leadership Public Schools of Richmond Alameda

84 | Lick-Wilmerding High School San Francisco
85 | Life Academy High School of Health and BioScience Alameda

86 | Life Learning Academy/Life Learning Academy High School San Francisco
87 | Lighthouse Comm Charter School Alameda

88 | Lionel Wilson Preparatory Academy Alameda






89 | Live Oak School San Francisco
90 | Livermore Valley Joint Unified School District Alameda

91 | Maybeck High School Alameda

92 | Mentoring Academy Alameda

93 | Mercy High School San Mateo

94 | Millennium High School Alameda

95 | Miramonte High School Contra Costa
96 | Mission High School San Francisco
97 | Moreau Catholic High School Alameda

98 | Mt Diablo Unified School Dist./Homeless (HOPE) Contra Costa
99 | Mt. Diablo High School Contra Costa
100 | Nea Community Learning Center Alameda

101 | New Haven Unified School District Alameda

102 | Newark Unified School District Alameda

103 | Oakland Charter High School (Amethod Public Schools) Alameda

104 | Oakland Emiliano Zapata Street Academy Alameda

105 | Oakland High School Alameda

106 | Oakland International High School Alameda

107 | Oakland Military Institute College Preparatory Academy Alameda

108 | Oakland School for the Arts Alameda

109 | Oakland Technical High School Alameda

110 | Oakland Unity High School Alameda

111 | Orinda Academy as N Bay Orinda School Contra Costa
112 | Orion Academy Contra Costa
113 | Pittsburg High School Contra Costa
114 | Pittsburg Unified School District, Educational Services Contra Costa
115 | Proof School San Francisco
116 | Richmond College Prep Contra Costa
117 | Ruth Asawa San Francisco School of the Arts (SFSOTA) San Francisco
118 | Sacred Heart Cathedral Prep. San Francisco
119 | Salesian College Preparatory Contra Costa
120 | San Mateo Union High School District San Mateo
121 | San Francisco Christian School San Francisco
122 | San Francisco Flex Academy San Francisco
123 | San Francisco International High School San Francisco
124 | San Francisco Public School Neglected and Delinquent Student | San Francisco
125 | San Francisco Unified School District (SFUSD) San Francisco
126 | San Francisco University High School San Francisco
127 | San Francisco Waldorf High School San Francisco
128 | San Leandro High School Alameda

129 | San Leandro Unified School District (SLUSD) Alameda

130 | South San Francisco High School San Mateo
131 | St. Ignatius High School (St. Ignatius College Preparatory) San Francisco
132 | St. John School San Francisco
133 | St. Mary's College H.S. Alameda

134 | Stellar Preparatory High School Alameda

135 | Sterne School San Francisco






136 | Synergy School San Francisco
137 | Tennyson High School Alameda

138 | The Branson School Marin

139 | The Crowden School/Crowden Music Center Alameda

140 | Tilden Preparatory School Alameda

141 | Tri Valley Regional Occupation Program Alameda

142 | Urban School of San Francisco San Francisco
143 | Valley High School Contra Costa
144 | Venture School Contra Costa
145 | Woodside High School San Mateo
146 | Woodside International School San Francisco
147 | Youth Chance High School San Francisco
















		FINAL Orange Ticket PPR OCR Combo.pdf

		 December 18, 2017: http://www.bart.gov/news/articles/2017/news20171218 Teens can now get a big discount on BART with a Youth discount Clipper card (this one has the video embedded)

		o This story and video was emailed to 56,991 BART subscribers with a 23% open rate: 16,446

		 March 6, 18: http://www.bart.gov/news/articles/2018/news20180306 Teen spring break checklist: Get Youth discount Clipper card, save money exploring the Bay!

		 The video https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=BYCt9zFR0UE was posted on:

		o  You-Tube (1,800 views),

		o Facebook (13,000 views and a reach of 27,000, shared 56 times), and

		o Twitter (25,907 views, 118 retweets)



		Blank Page

		Blank Page

		Blank Page

		Blank Page

		Blank Page

		Blank Page

		Blank Page

		Blank Page

		Blank Page

		Blank Page

		Blank Page




CalPERS Funding
Strategy Options &
Recommendations

June 14, 2018

Michael D. Jones, Assistant General Manager, Administration
Mary Beth Redding, Vice President, Bartel Associates, LCC





Background and Purpose

o CalPERS required contributions expected to increase steeply
over next decade:

e Due to phase-in of changes.
e Expected lower short-term investment return.

* Board requested analysis of impact of additional payments:

o Option #1: Directly to CalPERS
o Applied to specific amortization bases

 Option #2: Deposited to Separate Supplemental Pension Trust

 Staff provided recommendations.





Option #1: Directly to CalPERS
Assumptions and Methodolo

o Additional contributions to CalPERS at the end of fiscal years:

e $10 million for 10 years beginning 6/30/19

» Apply additional contributions to specific amortization bases

o0 Shortest or longest periods

 First contribution begins in FY 2019/20

 Miscellaneous & Safety Shortest Bases:
« Multiple, relatively small bases
» Qutstanding periods currently 7 to 18 years

 Miscellaneous & Safety Longest Bases:
e 2015 loss (30 years amortization remaining)





Option #1: Directly to CalPERS

Assumptions and Methodolo

* Discount rate to calculate present value of savings at 3%.

o Contribution projections based on Bartel Associates
modeling including factors such as:

e Expected investment return at 6.5% for 10 years.

Stochastically modeled investment returns.

CalPERS new amortization policy and risk mitigation strategy.

Increase in percentage of PEPRA employees.

lllustrations based on 50t percentile contributions.





b Option #1: Directly to CalPERS

Contributions

Impact of Additional CalPERS Contributions - $10 Million
Per Year for 10 Years Applied to Selected Amortization Bases
Combined Miscellaneous and Safety ($ Millions)

"Current" and "Short" Bases
are the same after this point

Projected Contributions $ Millions

5 0 T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T 1

R AL IR A o VI R O T S el L I A S B SR A TR TR R I CRETARIL Y
N A L M LN S L R Lt L P N A N i S

A

Contribution Year

emme (Current = seShort Bases e ¢ e Long Bases






b Option #1: Directly to CalPERS

Funded Status

CalPERS Funded Percentage - Additional Payments Towards
Selected Amortization Bases at $10 Million Per Year
Combined Miscellaneous and Safety

120%

110%
2
= 100%
=
&
£ 90%
=
&
-;é 80%
-»

70% |<w e
N N
60% T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T
R A L L L R T L Lt Tt
Valuation Date
es=Current == s»Short Bases ¢ ® e Long Bases






Option #1: Directly to CalPERS

Estimated Savings

($Millions)

$10 Million Longest $114.7 $43.1

$10 Million Shortest $ 20.1 $ 9.1






Option #2: Deposit into Pension Trust
Assumptions and Methodolo

« Additional contributions to supplemental pension trust at the
end of fiscal years:

e $10 million for 10 years beginning 6/30/19,
* Funds accumulate in trust until used to pay CalPERS contributions,

* Funds can continue to accumulate, improving combined funded
status; or

» Funds can be withdrawn to reduce expected peak contributions.
o Alternate contribution patterns possible depending on budget needs.

e Expected trust earnings at 5.5% (trust assumed to always
earn the expected rate).

* Discount rate to calculate present value of savings at 3%.





I Option #2: Deposit into Pension Trust

Funded Status — No Withdrawals

Funded Status - CalPERS and Supplemental Trust Combined
($10 Million Per Year to Trust; No Withdrawals)

120%

110%o

100%o

90%

80%0

Projected Funded Status

70%0

60% T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T 1

o @ N W > o @ N "\ > o > Q " » o
N W v v v WV W > e > > > s > > W
b\"’g @"’Q @"’Q G\"’Q e«*“ ‘a\n’Q fo\"’ﬁ é"“ G?’Q @"’Q 6{5% G@Q b\'b% b\%% @"’Q b\”’Q

Valuation Date

sm==Current == =Tjrust Earning 5.5%






Cana Option #2: Deposit into Pension Trust
m Contributions and Withdrawals

During Peak Period

Contribution Projection - CalPERS and Supplemental Trust
Combined ($10 Million Per Year to Trust)

$170
~
Trust assets fully paid
$150 E-‘ out to CalPERS
=
$140 —

S
oY

$130

/\/ =
$110 /
$100

Projected Contributions $ Millions

$90
/ Funds withdrawn from
$80 trust as needed \‘
i e
$70 —

510 million per year paid into Trust
S S —————
$60 T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T 1

S S AN A\

Contribution Year

s Current = = Trust Eaming 5.5%






Option #2: Deposit into Pension Trust
Funded Status- Contributions and
Withdrawals During Peak Period

Projected Funded Status

120%
110%o
100%o
90%o
80%o
70%0

60%0

&

Funded Status - CalPERS and Supplemental Trust Combined
($10 Million Per Year to Trust)

Funded staftus is the

same after this point
when trust funds are
fully paid out

o
L

N Funds withdrawn from

)

~

trust as needed

$10 million per year paid into Trust

\*»b

> N " » o > N N > © > Q " Y o
s v - v v WV e > > > % e > 2> \>
b\.-bﬁ b{,’ﬁ b\?’Q 6{5% b‘{b% 6\.-5Q G&Q b{bQ b{bg ‘a\.-bb ‘o\ﬂbb b\?’% ‘o\n’% G&Q b\qjﬁ

Valuation Date

sm==Current == =Trust Earning 5.5%

11






I Option #2: Deposit into Pension
Estimated Fund Balance

No Withdrawals ($Millions)
6/30/29 $160
$10 Million 5.5% 6/30/39 $272
6/30/49 $465

Trust balance is approximately 5% of BART’'s CalPERS assets in 2040

12





I Option #2: Deposit into Pension

Estimated Savings

Withdrawals beginning in FY 2029/30 as illustrated in slide 10:

($Millions)

$10 Million 5.5%

13





Option #2: Deposit into Pension
Trust Administrative Expenses

« Estimates were provided by Alan Biller, the
District’s current RHBT administrator:

o Annual Administrative Cost: $20,000
 Annual % of Fund Assets: 0.25%

e Estimates for creating the pension trust plan
document:

e One-time Cost: Up to $50,000

14





I Required Contributions
During Peak Period

 Pension and OPEB obligations are at their highest
during FY 2028-2034

Annual Payments ($Millions)

Required FY FY FY FY FY FY FY
G 2028 | 2029 | 2030 | 2031 | 2032 | 2033 | 2034

PenS|0n $135 $140 $144 $150 $149 $151 $144

OPEB $66 $67 $69 $71 $73 $75 $77
S5 e e R

15






| Required Contributions
Funding Concerns

Known:

e Combined required pension and OPEB retiree medical payments for
FY 2019 is $113M.

* By FY 2028 this will increase by 78%: $201M
* By FY 2034 this will increase by 96%: $221M

Additional Risks:

» |f CalPERS investments do not meet the discount rate or there are
other significant changes, the required contribution rates will be even

higher.

* Repeal of SB1 on the ballot for November 2018 - approximately $20M
annual revenue reduction if repealed.

16





Staff Recommendations

 Pension Funding Recommendation:
e Option #2: Establish Irrevocable Supplemental Pension
(8115) Trust.
 Proposed Funding Options:

Commitment to funding $10M between FY18 and FY19,
contingent upon:

 FY 2018 year end results
 SB1 repeal

a Annual Funding ($10M) to be programmed into
Operating Budget in future fiscal years.

17





		Slide Number 1

		Background and Purpose

		Option #1: Directly to CalPERS�Assumptions and Methodology

		Option #1: Directly to CalPERS�Assumptions and Methodology (cont.)

		�Option #1: Directly to CalPERS �Contributions�

		Option #1: Directly to CalPERS �Funded Status

		Option #1: Directly to CalPERS Estimated Savings

		Option #2: Deposit into Pension Trust�Assumptions and Methodology

		�Option #2: Deposit into Pension Trust�Funded Status – No Withdrawals�

		Option #2: Deposit into Pension Trust�Contributions and Withdrawals �During Peak Period

		Option #2: Deposit into Pension Trust�Funded Status- Contributions and Withdrawals During Peak Period

		Option #2: Deposit into Pension�Estimated Fund Balance

		Option #2: Deposit into Pension�Estimated Savings

		Option #2: Deposit into Pension�Trust Administrative Expenses

		Required Contributions �During Peak Period

		Required Contributions �Funding Concerns

		Staff Recommendations




Authority to Enter into Agreements Ic

for Temporary Bus Bridge Services

June 14, 2018

Operations Planning

— - -

P e






Decision

 Purpose: To obtain Board authorization for the General
Manager to enter into agreements with bus service providers

» Cost: Service provided and associated costs would not
exceed $200,000 per day

« 2018 Work Plan:
Refurbishment of M0O3 Interlocking (August-September)





MO3 Refurbishment: Location

MO3 |s between West Oakland and the Wye

West Oakland =~

. B3 19th Sti0akland - K20

B West Qakland -M_—fl'O 3 Oaklar 4

. b 12th St'Oakland City Center - K10

Inte'rlocking -

I Lake Merritt - A10





MO3 Refurbishment: Scope

Scope:

* Refurbish the next in a series of critical interlockings

» Performed under contract to maximize pre-fabrication and
minimize shutdown period

 RR-funded contract approved by Board on October 12, 2017

Schedule (tentative):

 August 4-5

* August 25-26

o September 1-3 (Labor Day Weekend)
o September 22-23





MO3 Refurbishment: Bus Bridge

 Bus Bridge will operate between West Oakland
and 19! Street Stations

o Currently working with AC Transit to plan the
logistics

« EXxpected to be a high
volume bus bridge,
possibly 3,000
passengers per direction
In the peak hour






Decision

Recommendation: Staff recommends that the Board adopts
the following motion

Motion: The General Manager is authorized to enter into
agreements with public and/or private bus operators and
vendors, including but not limited to AC Transit, to provide
temporary bus transportation services and related support
expenses in a total amount not to exceed $200,000 per day
that the District is unable to provide complete train service
due to maintenance projects. These authorizations will expire
on December 31, 2018.





		Authority to Enter into Agreements for Temporary Bus Bridge Services

		Decision

		M03 Refurbishment:  Location

		M03 Refurbishment: Scope

		M03 Refurbishment: Bus Bridge

		Decision




BART

North Concord/Martinez BART
Transit-Oriented Development (TOD) Update

‘, J‘:._i‘-u ’ !_lLl}.t_iLIllmlle

June 14, 2018
BART Board of Directors






I“”” North Concord/Martinez BART Transit Oriented Development

1. Overview

Area Plan
Specific Plan

Principles for TOD on BART site
Proposed BART Development Program

4. Discussion / Questions

BART Planning, Development & Construction





North Concord / Martinez BART

Station Profile

50,000
40,000
30,000
20,000
10,000

OA =

Sept 2017 BART Station Average Weekday Entries (all 46 stations)

NC =

CV =

OR =

WS =

Passenger Home Origins
2015 Station Profile Survey

Concord/Martinez/Pacheco

East Contra Costa County

Solano/Other

North Concord/Martinez = 2,860 Entries

(2" Lowest in BART System)

SH m

LF

WD =

SB =

SS m

NB ==

CM ==

RM ==

HY m=

UC =m

Concord = 6,277

Pittsburg/Bay Point = 6,749

EP wm
RR mm
AS mm
CL
BF ==
CN mmm
SL w=m
WP =
MB
WC mmm
FM
LM
SO ==m
GP

/

PH —

OW

Pleasant Hill = 7,94

XY ©
H

Mode Split (2015)

. _ Bus, train, or
Bicycle: 4% T~/ othertransit: 1%

Walk: 6% ——

Drop off / taxi . A Drive Alone:
other: 19% ' 66.4%

Carpool: 3.3%

Source: 2015 Station Profile Survey (Home Origin)

North Concord/Martinez

Area 20 acres
Vehicle parking 1,977
Bus routes 2

Access Types:
Current: Auto-Dependent

- Future: Balanced Intermodal
= 2

| Bus positions 15
T

2
N O
—

24

O4d=>
OHuw





m Concord Reuse Project +

BART TOD Timeline

2012 | 2013 | 2014 = 2015 . 2016 | 2017 | 2018 2019 | 2020 | 2021
Area * Concord Reuse Prolect
Plan Area Plan Approved _ : , : . : .
Process || * Master Developer * Lennar/Flve Pomts * Complete .
Included | RFQ ISSUGd SeIeCted : SpeCIfIG PIan + CEQA
BART Specific Plan + i
i Master Developer : i :
input . ' Including Infrastructure
Islezegg;’:iro?es.s Planning, CEQA - Construction —
: . _ nc.u y _ a.mc'panc_m Community Meetings - Phase |
i D00 0000 ; i f = ;
City of Concord
BART :
ro |
E Project Refinement / \EEEYNmSToTagn
:S;olicitetion Developer Agreement - Construction
[ i :

PEELLEEE Developer
Solicitation / : .
Selection

BART Planning, Development & Construction

2022+





Concord Community Reuse Project (CRP)

o Area Plan

Diablo Creek
Golf Course

Tournament facility
and adjacent park

%, Legend

5

Transit Oriented Districts Commercial

PRE @EEOS
Ml North Concord TOD Core 0 Commercial Flex
Il North Concord TOD .
Neighborhood Conservation, Open Space and
Recreation Lands
Neighborhoods
Awmp@m &7
: @ Conservation Open Space
Central Neighborhood B Greenways, Citywide Parks,
B Village Center and Toumament Facilities
Village Meighborhood Mot shiown: Potential bike and
pedestrian facilities in the
Civic and Institutional Regional Park.
ﬂf- é Primary Circulation Network
B Campus ﬁ —
B First Responder Training = Through Streets
Center

= (Caollector Streets

2 )y Tl bt
Source: CRP Area Plan — Concorc {'n‘-\.- H\h r"
Concordreuseproject.org P Galindo ¢ % Wi “a--*"'llh-"'.fr P&H £
BART Planning, Development & Construction i





Concord Community Reuse Project (CRP)

2] North Concord TOD Core

Figur& 3-5: North Concord TOD Core Table 3-5: North Concord TOD Core Profile
’ - Number of Districts 1
pates ; \ g Approximate Acres 55
Approximate Homes 700 (not required)
Approximate Commercial Floor 3,000,000
Space (square feat)
Dwelling Units / Gross Housing optional up to a maximum of
District Acre (min-max) 20 du/gross district acre
] . Dwelling Units / Net 60 - 150
Martine 3 Residential Acre (min-max)
|| Sun Terrace : Net Floor Area Ratio (FAR) / Com-  2.0-40
it mercial and Mixed-Use Parcel
(min-max)
Required Mix Officas
Retail and servicas
Plaza and Pocket Park

Additional Appropriate Uses

Convenience Standard
Maximum Block Perimeter
m Off-5treet Parking Location
bk Cava.

Source: CRP Area Plan
Concordreuseproject.org

BART Planning, Development & Construction

Dining and entertainment

Multi-unit housing, possibly induding
Special needs housing

Performing arts facility

Hotel

Community facilities

Cultural/civic facilities

1/4 mile

{shared vehicle facility 1/8 mile)

1,600
Underground or embedded parking
structures





Concord Community Reuse Project (CRP)

2] North Concord TOD Core

“TOD [ .
District — i Proportionate share | Proposed
Area } of developmentby | Program
Plan I land area (~1/3)
Approximate 55 1 20 20
Acres I
I
Approximate 700 | 233 360
Homes i (51% of total)
I
Approximate 3,000,000 § 1,000,000 800,000
Commercial Floor : (26% of total)
Space (square ft) i
L.-.-.-.-.-.-.-.-.-.-.-.-.-.d

BART Planning, Development & Construction





Concord Community Reuse Project (CRP)

Specific Plan — Land Use (Preliminary)

' First Rwspnﬂd@r

Diablo Creek
Golf Course

i prd auun

North C@ncord/
Martmez Bart

East Bay Regional
Park

District
Boundary

Concord
High School

Concord Blvd.

pment & Construction

ay on n

2.

LAND USE CATEGORY

I Vixed Use MU-1

[ Mixed Use MU-2

Mixed Use MU-3
Commercial Flex C-2

Medium Density Residential R-2

Lower Density Residential R-1

Schools CF-2

icampus

PG&E Substation

Greenway 05-1
City Wide Park 08-2

[ District Parks 08-3

[ Creek Butfer 08-4

[ wetland Restoration 0S-5

[ Wetland Mitigation 08-5
‘Joint Use School Fields 0§8-6
Conservation Areas 05-7

Specific
Plan Area
Boundary
<%
A






Concord Community Reuse Project (CRP)

Specific Plan — Land Use (Preliminary)

LAND USE CATEGORIES

Mixed Use MU-1
Mixed Use MU-2

Medium Density Residential R-2 |
Lower Density Residential R-3

Schools CF-2
Campus

Greenway 05-1 ; 7 y iy

District Parks 08-3 Y > 4 ? !

\Joint Use School Fields 0S-6 : —i& ‘ / Plaza
T S BT

® . |

Central Park
(Existing Hilltop)

Community:Center
Location)

Lennar/FivePaint
Phase 1

P & ¥ P

onstruction

BART P'Ianr-ling, Devéiopment &C





Concord Community Reuse Project (CRP)

e Overall Development Program

e Up to 800,000 sf of Commercial Space, in 3-8 story buildings
« Up to 360 Dwelling Units in 3-6 story buildings

e Up to 100% Replacement parking for BART users in a 1,977
space, phaseable parking garage.

« 15-35% of commercial parking located offsite in interim surface
lots

« Multi-modal transit plaza at BART station

» Possible replacement of existing station building

BART Planning, Development & Construction





BART Concord Community Reuse Project (CRP)
Community Feedback

* Open space amenities throughout plan area

» Potential traffic generated from project; impact on neighborhood
and Port Chicago highway

 BART Parking on neighborhood streets

« Transition to existing community — concern about shadows,
privacy, noise and lighting

» Accessibility of station for people with disabilities

e Interest in better transit service connections or shuttles

BART Planning, Development & Construction 10





Transition to existing
community

e Questions about size of
buffer from single family
neighborhoods — Range
from 50-100’ or more
proposed

» Exploration of land swap to
allow for wider buffer

BART Planning, Development & Construction

Concord Community Reuse Project (CRP)

Community Feedback - Buffer

P

LEGEND

-

BART Station Entrance
(existing)

~ Attachment

Future Additional BART
Station Entrance

{ S \'i\:_

5_‘_%?:

Transit Plaza

-k

Linear Park -- 100" wide

TOD Plaza
Retail Zone

Town Square

- ‘-'. :

North Concord/ /%

o LN s W N

Civic Site

~ Martinez Bart,

o Y
N =0

Central Park
Landscape Buffer

| Hilltop Park

Neighborhood Park

-
w

- |t
(LI

-
-3

Elementary School
Pocket Park ('in tract'*)
Campus Open Space ('in

_| tract’ open space*)
Private Open Space

11





North Concord / Martinez BART Station TOD

Summary Objectives for TOD on BART site

1.  High quality public realm and open spaces; welcoming “gateway” to community
Seamless pedestrian, bike, and transit connections within and beyond property

3.  Work with adjacent property owners to logically plan infrastructure such as parking
replacement

4.  Promote “reverse commute” (mix of uses with emphasis on employment)

5. Locate employment and retail uses closest to station; parking and residential
further away

6. Gradual transition in height to existing community
7.  25% affordable housing minimum, consistent with adjacent development goal

Concept A

12





North Concord / Martinez BART Station TOD

oo f Next Steps

May / June 2018: Incorporate feedback from City Council, Planning
Commission, and Advisory Committee into Request for Qualifications

(RFQ)
Summer 2018: Issue RFQ

Winter 2018/2019: Seek Board authorization for exclusive
negotiating agreement (ENA) with developer

BART TOD Phases & Approximate Timeline

L 5 3. Project
- Pre- S Refinement
Solicitation . Sggféﬁg)nn/ & Developer

Agreement

We are here Mid-2018 — 2019-2021 2021+
Early 2019

13






()]
)
®
©
O
D
-
©
al
O
)
)]
M
=
T
<

June 2018

f‘l

BART Planning, Development and Construction

11






Overview

Master Plan — Methods
Master Plan — Program Recommendations

Master Plan — Program Funding Proposal

I

Next Steps





2015 Art Policy Vision

San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District’s arts
program enriches rider experience, strengthens station
identity, connects communities and supports a distinctive
sense of place at stations and beyond.

BART’s art program builds on the best practices, leads the
field in community participation strategies, engages with
artists, arts and cultural organizations, and makes riding
BART more delightful, vibrant, and welcoming.





Why An Art Program?

= BART is modernizing, brightening and expanding.

= Art improves the rider experience through an enhanced
sense of place, connectivity and safety.

= Art connects with the many different communities living
near stations and in transit oriented developments.

= Critical need to mitigate the risk of loss of significant
iInvestment in BART’s existing artworks through
conservation and maintenance.





What's In The Art Master Plan?

v' Long Term Program Plan

v' Program Financing
Strategy

=  Administrative Guidelines

=  Fjve-Year Goals and Metrics

LT
£
el

T
= _:'-.-':

L






How the Plan Was Developed

Document Advisory

& Process Committee
Review

Social
Cultural Media &

BART and
Community
Interviews

Survey

Mapping Customer

A/

Master

Plan






What We Heard

Diversity Make BART

and Equity Work

r he Public | : ) ’ )
Engage the Public :
with sate, Clean Celebrate and Fuﬁgzlr?gs;;at?)lihe
and High Quality Support Diversity At Program
Environments
\ J \ J \ J
" Arts to Connect | " Bring Awareness ) ( )
Transit Oriented Diverse anq Increase BART’s
Development to Dynamic H|st'or|es - Overall I?esign
Stations and Connect Stations to Quality
Communities . People & Places . )
& V,
"Promote BART as a | " Streamlineand |
: Market Arts and ) Cultural Corridor Make Transparent
Culture as a Key Fostering Ridership Processes for
Part of Customer & Economic Implementing the
Experience . Development . Art Program )
\\ J






Connections To BART Policies & b
Initiatives

STRATEGIC PLAN VISION: Rider experience / Economy / Equity /
Environment

SUSTAINABILITY: Art uses sustainable practices and increases patron
satisfaction by providing a pleasant alternative to driving.

STATIONS: Art creates a strong sense of place at stations, building on the
history and culture the surrounding area.

TOD: Art will create connections between transit oriented developments, their
surrounding neighborhoods and BART riders.

)
— I






Align With BART Art Policy Goals bo

= Cohesion

=  Opportunity
= Partnerships _ .
=  Make Transit Work jj % Y
= Showcase Art |
= |ntegrated Design
= Transparency

= Engagement






Cultural Equity & Mapping

= Mapping informs us
about the region’s
many arts and cultural
venues.

BART can promote the
arts as a tool that
creates connections
and introduces people
to new experiences.

Promoting diverse,
BARTable arts
adventures will
encourage ridership
and improve the
regional arts economy.

BART Lines O BART Stations © Arts/Cultural
Venues






Master Plan
Recommendations

11





How to Include the Arts

0
&

<

X'"a Integrate art seamlessly into the design

of new stations and station
modernization

Create opportunities to show changing
art at stations and construction

enclosures, and encourage different
types of performances

Feature community arts in the system —
artwork with or by community
stakeholders

Continued engagement with the
existing art collection

Employing Arts
& Cultural
Experiences to
Make BART a
Better System

12





Integrated Art

Create standard material
specifications consistent with
BART Facility Standards

ldentify key locations for art to
enliven the BART experience

aligned to Station Experience

Design Guidelines (SEDG)

Build a roster of diverse artists
to collaborate on station design

Integrate artists to design
teams to collaborate in creating

a unified station experience






Create standardized display
systems for changing artwork and
locations for performances

Outsource curation of diverse
displays and cultural
programming in a variety of
media to regional arts
organizations

Work with Marketing and
BARTable to develop
sponsorships and partnerships to
support these activities.

*AS LONG AS YOU PUT IT ON THE GROUND ¥

o

“ m Of m “s nm M -.;<
e
o) A i

N

Ed

or wt cea ¢ i

® sommmon

14





Changing Art: Weekend Events J e

Performances, pop-up markets and events can enliven plazas
and public areas of stations on weekends, attracting people to
travel by BART. e





Commission artists to
enhance construction
enclosures installed by
BART M&E and BART
contractors

Commission guided
cultural tours by BART
to entice exploration of
Bay Area’s rich culture
via public transit.

16





= |dentify places for

artist-led community %5

projects

= Partner with local
cities to commission
art adjacent to
BART as part of
larger TOD and
station access
projects

17





QCollection Management

= Assess and
conserve art in
BART’s existing
collection (Nat’l
Endowment for the
Arts grant).

= Make BART’s art
collection accessible
through effective
asset management
and interpretive
strategies.

18






Art Program Funding

19





Capital Investments By Other North Jee

American Transit Agencies

. Expanding Systems Extensively Sized Systems (by Slow Growing, Smaller
# of stations) Sized Systems

Vancouver: 1%

Seattle: 1%

Quebec City EW
e ChICago Ottawa Montrea : )
Minneanalis

~ Denver - Negotiated Cleveland: 1.5% ' New York: 1%
Fixed Contribution T AT g

. . 0.5%>%$20M
$100,000/station

PENNSYLVAS ] ork
Q’ United S ILLNOIS| INDIANA " pinsturgh’  PhiadelRp [, New Jersey:
nited States Kansas City Q el LAl Columbus MARYLAND 1 5(y
AL f Stgp's Cincinnat IEGINIA [ " 0

S o . St. Louis: 1.5%"

Portland: 1.5%

TIA

Hamiit

- Q - Philadelphia:
Los Angeles: 0.5% T Maanss S 0.5-1%

| ($400,000/station) Charlotte: 1%

-------

s Atlanta: 1%
San Al:tfrlt donston Y $25'3 M/]yl'm

Urlandag

20






NYC 2nhd Ave Extension

With every public works project, | believe there is an opportunity to elevate the everyday,
to build a public space where community can gather and where culture and shared civic

values are celebrated. - Governor Andrew M Cuomo

$4.5 M — 4 stations (1%)

— o -

69 Street &

== =
- x It 2 Avenue
=] NE Corner

21





" HFLHI' : ) |1.ulm“h| Hl
oo sli] B

RS o i B ot i AT
. ' L | - 1  Tarh - S o Bt S T -
e o | -~ =i ISl & ! fer s Siars ¥ it
[/ T ) mmabadil Sk o PR TR T
" » - :
[} —
il R —

* 1.2M art project cost — including base glass cost (approximately
1.3% of total construction cost)

22





Past Projects: OAC

‘\‘\ - S

Colise Statio $350,000 Oakland Airport Station $350,000

* Art budget paid for glass at station

23





Recommended Art Program

Funding Sources

Capital Funds.

v

AN NN

Applied to projects with visibility to community or customers.

Not applied to life safety or system critical (train control), or ADA required compliance.
Calculated at 35% design with no escalation.

Allow for pooling of funds to reach stations and communities where no capital work occurring

» 2% of construction cost in and adjacent to stations

» 0.25% of construction costs for visible trackway projects (guideways), shops & yards,
substations & vents (above grade), train car procurement (306), and other locations
visited by riders or seen by community

Operating Funds: Establish annual funding for artwork maintenance, outreach, temporary
programming, and partnership development.

Developer Funds: Specify developer art requirements in TOD projects. Require city
regulated % for art stay on project. 1% for projects without city ordinance

Partnerships: Seek sponsors and partners to support changing art and programming in
stations.

24





Funding Resources by

Program Elements

Integrated Art Community Arts Collection

Management
~> P
_ ' L%
CIP: % from Select Partnerships: Partnerships: Operating
Capital Projects Local Public & Local Public & Funds
Private % for Art Private % for Art
Partnerships: Partnerships: Partnerships: CIP:
BIDs/CBDs, Advertising, Community & Major
corporate sponsors Communications, & neighborhood groups Conservation as
BARTable Capital Project
Partnerships: Partnerships: Partnerships: Partnerships:
Local Public & Cultural institutions, Grants Grants
Private % for Art Colleges, Artists &
Grants
Developer Funds: Operating Funds Developer Funds:

25

TOD TOD





Annual Capital Funding Forecast: b’

% Hard Costs |Budgeted | Potential Total Budgeted &
CIP Projects Projects Potential

2% $86,000 $474,000 $560,000
1.5% $65,000 $355,000 $420,000
0.25% $235,000 $111,000 $346,000
Total $321,000 $585,000 $906,000
2% + 0.25%

Total $300,000 $466,000 $766,000

1.5% + 0.25%

* Source BART FY17 CIP - Forecast Funding by Program, total budgeted & non-budgeted projects $17,850,000,000.

Railcars 15 year at 0.25% = $3.2M 06





Partnerships

Museums,
Galleries &
Non-profits

Commissions

BID &
Community
Groups

Corpora-
tions

Ad Space &

Universities
& Art
Schools

Foundations
& Granting
Agencies






Operating Funds — FY20 and Beyond bo

e Collection Management — general program
administration and outreach $35,000/yr

e Conservation and Maintenance

« Baseline maintenance funding and conservation
backlog $175,000/yr until backlog cleared

28





Upcoming :
Mosaics at El Cerrito Del Norte

Total Project Cost: $220,000.
(Artist fee for design & fabrication: $180,000)

Artist: Kyungmi Shin






Upcoming:
19th St Oakland

4 ” E"A ’igigimﬁfl”ﬁﬁg

Total Project Cost: $135,000 (Artist fee for design: $45,000 total)
Artists Phillip Hua, Lisa & Hailey Banks, Ron M. Saunders






Jpcoming.
Powell St.

Total Project Cost: $138,000 (Artist fee for design: $28,000)
llluminated ceiling mural, Artist: Stephen Galloway 31





Next Steps

= |ncorporate Board
Comments to Final
Master Plan

= Return to Board for Action
on Funding
Recommendations -
Summer 2018

= Publish Final Master Plan
and Initiate
Implementation of
Administrative Guidelines

32





Comments & Questions?





		Art Master Plan Update

		Overview

		2015 Art Policy Vision

		Why An Art Program?

		What’s In The Art Master Plan?

		How the Plan Was Developed

		What We Heard

		Slide Number 8

		Align With BART Art Policy Goals�

		Cultural Equity & Mapping�

		Slide Number 11

		Slide Number 12

			Integrated Art

				Changing Art: Performance

			Changing Art: Weekend Events

			Changing Art: Quick Wins

				Community Arts

			Collection Management

		Slide Number 19

		Capital Investments By Other North American  Transit Agencies 

		NYC 2nd Ave Extension

		Past Projects: Warm Springs

		Past Projects: OAC�

		Recommended Art Program �Funding Sources

		Funding Resources by �Program Elements 

		Annual Capital Funding Forecast:�

		Partnerships

		Operating Funds – FY20 and Beyond

		Upcoming :�Mosaics at El Cerrito Del Norte 

		Upcoming:�19th St Oakland

		Upcoming: �Powell St.

		Next Steps

		Slide Number 33




Quarterly Report of the
Controller-Treasurer
Period Ending 03/31/18

BART Board of Directors
June 14, 2018





Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer
Period Ended 03/31/18

» The District currently provides benefits to employees which include, but are not limited to:

Retirement Pension Plan managed by the California Public Employee Retirement System
(CALPERS), and funded by contributions from the District and it’s employees. CALPERS is
the largest pension plan in the United States with assets of approximately $300 billion.

Retiree Medical Benefits coverage funded by a Trust established by the District in 2005.
The Trust as of March 31, 2018.
a. Invested in a combination of stocks, bonds, REIT & cash,
b Benchmark 6.75%,
c. Total net assets $296.9 million and inception to date return is 6.8%,
d Quarterly Report to the Unions

Survivor Benefits of active and retired employees funded by the employees
(S15/month),

Life Insurance for retired employees.

The District also accrues liabilities through Property & Casualty insurance and workers
compensation claims and maintains the required reserves related to its self-funded
insurance programs for worker’s compensation and general liability based on an annual
actuarial study.





Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer
Period Ended 03/31/18

Funding Summary of Pension, Retiree Health & Other Post-Employment Benefits

Valuation Date _Market Value of Assets Total Liability Unfunded Liability % Funded

Retirement Pension with CALPERS

Miscellaneous Employees 6/30/2016 S 1,614,430,356 S 2,180,799,091 S 566,368,735 74.0%

Safety Employees 6/30/2016 S 180,391,930 S 306,909,516 S 126,517,586 58.8%
Retiree Health Benefits 6/30/2017 S 270,151,000 S 573,941,000 S 303,790,000 47.1%
Other Post Employment Benefits

Life Insurance 6/30/2017 S - S 34,429,000 S 34,429,000 0.0%

Survivors Benefits 6/30/2016 S $6,814,000 S 39,322,000 S 32,508,000 17.3%





%

Q ®m® Q S ©€ =M

120.0%

Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer

Period Ended 03/31/18

CALPERS Pension Plan Funding Progress

100.0% \
80.0%

.\ \/./.\.7 &
60.0%

40.0%

20.0%

=== Miscellaneous
=f—Safety

0.0%

6/30/2008

6/30/2009 6/30/2010 6/30/2011 6/30/2012 6/30/2013 6/30/2014
Valuation Date

6/30/2015 6/30/2016





Funded

Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer
Period Ended 03/31/18

Retiree Health Benefits Plan

70.00%
60.00%
50.00%
40.00%
30.00%
20.00%
10.00%

0.00%
6/30/2008 6/30/2009 6/30/2010 6/30/2011 6/30/2012 6/30/2013 6/30/2014 6/30/2015 6/30/2016 6/30/2017

Valuation Date





Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer
Period Ended 03/31/18

Accounts Payable

»  Our goal is to pay 93% of our invoices within 30 days. We continue to keep our focus on getting our vendors paid
as quickly as possible. During the most recent quarter, the District was able to process 89.7% of all paid invoices
within 30 days. Of those that were not processed in 30 days, 9.0% were processed within 60 days, and 1.3% were
processed within 90 days. The trend depicting the past year is shown here:

100% /

90% -

Quarterly Number of Voucher Payment Trend

80% -
70% -

60% - M 1-30 Days Paid Percent

50% - M 31-60 Days Paid Percent
B 61-90 Days Paid Percent
40% -
91+Days Paid Percent
30% -

20% -

Number of Voucher Paid in Percent

10% -
3.7% 4.4%

. (o]

0%

. (o]

2017 Q4 2018Q1 2018Q2 2018Q3 h

Invoiced Fiscal Quarter






Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer
Period Ended 03/31/18

Accounts Receivable

»  The time to receive reimbursement funding from our funding partners is shown in the chart below. The amount

outstanding is $30,036,000 as of March 31, 2018.

Amount Billed A/R Grants as of 03/31/2018

Amount Billed A/R Grants as of March 31, 2018

$17,118
518,000 OTH, $1,155
CALEMA, $1,143
$16,000
MTC, $1,103
414,000 FTA, $2,961
$12,000 CCTA, $954

$10,000
oHs, 63,714 97,239

TOTAL OUTSTANDING (in thousands)

OTH, $495
$8,000
VTA, $1,383 MTC, $372
ECCRFFA, $1,643 $4,728
$6,000 OTH, $261
CCTA, $2,176 MTC, $505
LTRANS, 54,7 ECCRFFA, $952
>4,000 ACTC, $265
$2,000 $354 ACTC, $3,010
MTC, $260
ACTC, $77
s_

01-30 days 31-60 days 61-90 days 91-120 days 121+ days

$597, OTH, $114
ECCRFFA, $483





Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer
Period Ended 03/31/18

3. DISTRICT FINANCES

The District continues to actively search for investments which meets the Investment Policy and generates a yield higher than
zero. Shown below are the composition of the District’s cash and investments as of the end of the quarter.

Cash and Investments

Total Cash in Banks: $180,374,965

Total CD Investments: $866,216

Total Government Securities: $461,653,000

Return on T-Bill Investments: Weighted average is 1.46% - Due to a better market, rates are up slightly from 1.24% reported
in previous quarter. The weighted average maturity (WAM) of our T-Bill Investment portfolio is 174 days.

Pie chart showing the difference in cash, CD investments and government securities

Y VYVVVY

/_$865,216 Government Securities:

* FHLB
e UST

* |ADB
* |FC

* FNMA
¢ IBRD

m Cash In Bank m CD Investments m Government Securities





Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer
Period Ended 03/31/18

Debt

>

The District currently has two types of debt outstanding:
1. Sales Tax Revenue Debt
2. General Obligation Debt

Sales Tax Revenue Debt

>
>
>

>

Currently outstanding debt of $528.81 million.
Annual Debt Service $45.6 million (effective after December 2017 Sales Tax Refunding).

Debt Services comes “off the top” of sales tax revenues remitted to the district by the State
Board of Equalization.

This directly impacts the operating budget.

General Obligation Bonds

YV YV V

YV YV V

** Measure AA

Currently outstanding debt of $566.2 million.

Issued $740 of S980 authorized.

Most recent assessment for fiscal year 2017/2018 is $6.30/$100,000
¢ Measure RR

Currently outstanding debt of $271.6 million.
Issued $300 million out of $3.5 billion authorized.
Most recent assessment for fiscal year 2017/2018 is $2.10/$100,000





		Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer �Period Ending 03/31/18�

		Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer�Period Ended 03/31/18

		Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer�Period Ended 03/31/18��Funding Summary of Pension, Retiree Health & Other Post-Employment Benefits

		Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer�Period Ended 03/31/18

		Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer�Period Ended 03/31/18

		Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer�Period Ended 03/31/18

		Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer�Period Ended 03/31/18

		Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer�Period Ended 03/31/18

		Quarterly Report of the Controller-Treasurer�Period Ended 03/31/18





